PROSPECTUS

RED SEA HOUSING SERVICES COMPANY

Sale of 9,000,000 shares representing 30% of Red Sea Housing Services Company through an Initial Public Offering at
an Offer Price of SAR 58 per Share

RED SEA

HOUSING SERVICES

A Saudi Joint Stock Company (under conversion) in accordance with the Ministerial Resolution No. 1801 dated 5/7/1427H
(Comresponding to 30/7/2006G)

Offer Period: 1 8/7/1427H to 27/7/1427H (Corresponding to: 12/8/2006G to 21/8/2006G)

Red Sea Housing Services Company (‘Red Sea” or the “Company”) was formed as a Saudi general partnership with Commercial Registration
Number 4030052466 dated 03/05/1406H (comesponding to 13/01/1986G). The Company was converted on 07/1 1/1411H (corresponding 1o
21/05/1991G) into a Saudi limited liability company with Commercial Registration Number 2055006105 dated 26/10/1424H (corresponding to
20/12/2003G), as amended. The Minister of Commerce and Industry has, pursuant to resoluton No. 1801 dated 5/7/1427H (Corresponding to
30/72006G), authorized the conversion of the Company into a joint stock company with a share capital of SAR 300 million comprising thirty (30)
million shares with anominal value of SAR |0 each. Following completion of the Offering (as defined below) and the conclusion of the Conversion
General Assembly, an application will be submitted to the Minister of Commerce and Industry requesting him to announce the conversion of the
Company. The Company wil be considered duly converted into a joint stock company from the date of issuance of the Ministerial Resolution
dedlaring its conversion.

The Initial Public Offering (the “Offering”) of 9,000,000 shares (the “Offer Shares”) with a nominal value of SAR 10 each, all of whidh are fully paid,
and representing 30% of the issued share capital of the Company, is directed at and may be accepted by individuals having the Saudi nationality
(‘Subscriber” and collectively referred to as the ‘Subscribers”). The Offer Shares are being sold by Dabbagh Group Holding Company Limited
(‘Dabbagh Group” or the “Selling Shareholder”), which owns 24,300,000 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) representing 8 1% of the share
capital of the Company before Offering. Upon completion of the Offering, Dabbagh Group will own 519% of the Shares and will consequently retain
a controlling interest in the Company. The net proceeds from the Offering will be paid to the Selling Shareholder. The Company will not receive
any part of the proceeds from the Offering. The Offering is fully underwritten (Please refer to section “Underwriting”).

The Offering will commence on Saturday 18/7/1427H (comesponding to 12/8/2006G) and wil remain open up to and including Monday
2717/1427H (Comesponding to 21/8/2006G) (the “Offering Period”). Subscription to Offer Shares can be made through branches of each of the
Lead Manager and the Receiving Banks (as defined in the “Important Notice” section) during the Offering Period.

Each individual subscriber to the Offer Shares must apply for a minimum of ten (10) Offer Shares. Each Subscriber may not apply for more than
twenty five thousand (25,000) Offer Shares. Each Subscriber will be allocated a minimum of ten (10) Offer Shares with the remaining Offer Shares,
if any, being allocated on a pro-rata basis. The Company does not guarantee the minimum allocation of ten (10) Offer Shares in the event that the
number of Subscribers exceeds nine hundred thousand (900000). In that case, the Offer Shares will be allocated equally between all Subscribers. If
the number of Subscribers exceeds the number of Offer Shares, the allocation will be determined at the discretion of the Capital Market Authority
of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia ("CMA” or “Authority”). Excess of subscription monies, if any, will be refunded to Subscribers without any charge
or withholding by the Lead Manager and the Receiving Banks. Nofification of the final allotment and refund of subscription monies, if any, will be
made no later than Monday 4/8/1427H (Corresponding to 28/8/2006G). (Please refer to section “Subscription Terms and Conditions” — Allocation
and Refunds).

Each Share entitles the holder to one vote and each shareholder (“Shareholder”) with at least 20 Shares has the right to attend and vote at the
general assembly meeting (the “General Assembly Meeting”). The Offer Shares will be entitled to receive dividends declared by the Company from
the date of commencement of the Offering Period and for subsequent fiscal years. The Company's net ncome amounted to SAR 97.9 miillion for
the fiscal year ending March 31,2005G of which SAR 48.6 million was paid out as dividends to the shareholders of the Company and the Company
is expected to pay approximately SAR 60 milion in dividends for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2006G to the Existing Shareholders (Please refer
to section “Dividends Record and Policy”).

Prior to the Offering, there has been no public market for the Shares in Saudi Arabia or elsewhere. An application has been made to the CMA for
the admission of the Shares to the Official List and all relevant approvals pertaining to this Prospectus and all other supporting documents
requested by the CMA n addition to all relevant regulatory approvals required to conduct the Offering have been granted. Trading in the Shares is
expected to commence on the Exchange soon after the final allocation of the (Please refer to section “Key Dates for Investors”). Subsequent to the
Shares commencing trading, Saudi and GCC nationals, companies, banks and funds as well as individuals having an Igama (resident permit) in Saudi
Arabia will be permitted to trade in the Shares. The “Important Notice” and "Risk Factors” sections in this Prospectus should be considered
carefully prior to making an investment decision in the Shares offered hereby.
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This prospectus includes information given n compliance with the Listing Rules of the Capital Market Authority of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The
directors whose names appear on page (V), collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
prospectus and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the omission
of which would make any statement herein misleading. The Authority and the Saudi Stock Exchange (the “Exchange”) do nottake any responsibility
for the contents of tis prospectus, do not make any representation as to its accuracy or completeness, and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever forany loss arising from, orincurred in reliance upon, any part of this document

The date of this ﬁrospectus is 6/7/1427H (corresponding to 31/7/2006G)
English Translation of the Official Arabic Prospectus




IMPORTANT NOTICE

This Prospectus provides full details of information relating to Red Sea and the Offer Shares. In applying for Offer Shares,
investors will be treated as applying on the basis of the information contained in the Prospectus, copies of which are
available for collection from the Receiving Banks (as defined below) or by visiting both the Company’s website
(www.redseahousing.com) and the website of the Capital Market Authority of Saudi (www.cma.org.sa).

The Company has appointed Swicorp Financial Advisory Services SA. (“Swicorp”) as its Financial Advisor and Saudi Hollandi
Bank as the Lead Manager and Lead Underwriter (the “Lead Manager’), The Company has also appointed Saudi Hollandi
Bank, Banque Saudi Fransi and Nationa Commercial Bank as Underwriters (“Underwriters”) in relation to the Offer Shares
described herein.

This Prospectus includes details given in compliance with the Listing Rules of the CMA. The directors, whose names appear
on page (V) of this Prospectus, collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information
contained in this Prospectus and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries that to the best of their knowledge and belief,
there are no other facts the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading. The CMA and the Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this document, make no representations as to its accuracy or completeness, and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss arising from, or incurred in reliance upon, any part of this document.
While the Company has made all reasonable enquiries as to the accuracy of the information contained in this Prospectus as
at the date hereof, substantial portions of the market and industry information herein are derived from extemal sources, and
while neither Swicorp nor any of the Company’s advisors whose names appear on page (V) of this Prospectus (the
“Advisors”) has any reason to believe that any of the market and industry information is materially inaccurate, such
information has not been independently verified and no representation is made with respect to the accuracy or completeness
of any of this information.

The information contained in this Prospectus as at the date hereof is subject to change. In particular, the actual financial state
of the Company and the value of the Shares may be adversely affected by future developments in inflation, interest rates,
taxation, or other economic, political and other factors, over which the Company has no control. Neither the delivery of this
Prospectus nor any oral, written, or printed interaction in relation to the Offer Shares is intended to be, or should be
construed as or relied upon in any way as, a promise or representation as to future eamings, results or events.

The Prospectus is not to be regarded as a recommendation on the part of the Company, the Selling Shareholder or any of
their advisors to participate in the Offering. Moreover, information provided in this Prospectus is of a general nature and has
been prepared without taking into account individual investment objectives, financial situation or particular investment needs.
Prior to making an investment decision, each recipient of this Prospectus is responsible for obtaining independent professional
advice in relation to the Offering and for considering the approprateness of the information herein, that the information is
with regard to individual objectives, financial situations, and needs.

The Offering is being made to, and is only capable of acceptance by, nationals of Saudi Arabia. The distribution of this
Prospectus and the sale of the Offer Shares in any other jurisdiction are expressly prohibited. The Company, Selling
Shareholder, and Lead Manager require recipients of this Prospectus to inform themselves about and to observe all such
restrictions.

Industry and Market Data

In this Prospectus, information regarding the manufactured housing industry and other data regarding the market segment in
which the Company operates have been obtained from (i) the Company's estimates, (i) data and analysis on the
manufactured housing industry, which were obtained from various publicly available third party sources and materials,
including a report issued on Apnl 5, 2005G by Icon Group International, a global market research firm. Icon Group
Intemational states on its website (http://www.icongrouponline.com) that the statements in its reports are derived from or
based upon various information sources and/or econometric models that Icon Group Intemational believes to be reliable, but
do not guarantee their accuracy, reliability or quality. Such information, sources, and estimates are believed to be reliable, but
have not been independently verified by the Company or Swicorp and no guarantee can be presented as to their accuracy or
completeness.




Industry and market data is subject to change and cannot always be verified with complete certainty due to limits on the
availability and reliability of raw data, the voluntary nature of the data gathering process and other limitations and uncertainties
inherent in any survey of market size. None of the publications, reports or other published industry sources referred to in
this prospectus were commissioned by the Company or prepared at its request and the Company has not sought or
obtained the consent from any of these sources, including lcon Group Intemational, to include such market data in this
prospectus.

Financial Information

The audited financial statements of Red Sea for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as the
intenm audited financial statements for the eight months ended November 30, 2005G of the Company's fiscal year ending
March 31, 2006G and the notes thereto, which are incorporated elsewhere in this Prospectus, have been prepared in
conformity with the accounting principles issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA™). Red
Sea publishes its financial statements in Saudi Arabian Riyals (“SAR™).

The AJC/PwC report included in this offering document relates to the Company's historical financial information only.
Transfer of Head Office

The Company transferred its head office from Jeddah to Jubail under Commercial Registration No. 2055006105 dated
26/10/1424H (corresponding to 20/12/2003G).

Forecasts and Forward Looking Statements

Forecasts set forth in this Prospectus have been prepared on the basis of certain stated assumptions. Future operating
conditions may differ from the assumptions used and consequently no representation or warranty is made with respect to
the accuracy or completeness of any of these forecasts.

Certain statements in this Prospectus constitute “forward looking statements”. Such statements can generally be identified by
their use of forward looking words such as “plans’, “estimates’, “believes’, “expects’, “may”, “will”’, “should”’, or "“are
expected”, “would be”, “anticipated”, or the negative or other vanations of such terms or comparable terminology. These
forward looking statements reflect the current views of the Company with respect to future events, and are not a guarantee
of future performance. Many factors could cause the actual results, performance, or achievements of the Company to be
significantly different from any future results, performance, or achievements that may be expressed or implied by such
forward looking statements. Some of the risks and factors that could have such an effect are described in more detall in other
sections of this Prospectus (Please refer to section “Risk Factors”). Should any one or more of the risks or uncertainties
matenialize or any underying assumptions prove to be inaccurate or incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those

described in this Prospectus.

Subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules, Red Sea must submit a supplementary prospectus to the CMA if at any time
after the Prospectus has been approved by the CMA and before admission to the Official List, Red Sea becomes aware that:
(1) there has been a significant change in material matters contained in the Prospectus or any document required by the
Listing Rules, or (2) additional significant matters have become known which would have been required to be included in the
Prospectus. Except in the aforementioned circumstances, Red Sea does not intend to update or otherwise revise any industry
or market information or forward looking statements in this Prospectus, whether as a result of new information, future
events, or otherwise. As a result of these and other risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward looking events and
circumstances discussed in this Prospectus might not occur in the way the Company expects, or at all. Prospective investors
should consider all forward looking statements in light of these explanations and should not place undue reliance on forward
looking statements.



CORPORATE

Proposed Directors

Name
|. Dr Majid Abdullah Al Kassabi
2. Engr Hussein Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al Dabbagh
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4. Mr. Don Brown Sumner
5. Mr. John Hugh Parry
6. Mr. Mohammed Husnee Jazeel
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Registered Office
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Red Sea Housing Services Company (under conversion)
P.O.Box 531, Jubail 31952
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Board of Directors’ Secretary
Mr. Tareq Abboud Hassan

Dabbagh Group Holding Company Limited

2" Floor, Badr Center

Thaliah Street

P.O.Box 1039
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Financial Advisor
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121l —Geneva

Switzerland
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Riyadh 11491
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MEMBER FIRM OF
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Al Juraid & Company, member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers
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Reporting Accountants

Sami E. Farah, Abdulhamid M. Bushnagq
& Partner
Member

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

INTERNATIONAL LTD.

Sami E. Farah, Abdulhamid M. Bushnaq & Partner; member firm of Emst & Young Intemational Limited
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Riyadh 11351

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
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The Saudi Investment Bank
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Banque Saudi Fransi
P.O.Box 56006, Riyadh-1 1554, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

National Commercial Bank
P.O.Box 3555, Riyadh-21481, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Saudi Hollandi Bank
Al-Dhabab Street, P.O. Box 1467, Riyadh- 11431, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Banque Saudi Fransi
P.O.Box 56006, Riyadh-I 1554, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

National Commercial Bank
P.O.Box 3555, Riyadh-21481, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Al Rajhi Banking and Investment Corp.
P.O. Box 28, Rivadh-I 141 |, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Arab National Bank
P.O. Box 9806, Riyadh-11423, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Bank Albilad
P.O.Box 140, Riyadh-1 1411, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Bank Aljazira
P.O.Box 6277, Riyadh-21442, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Riyad Bank
P.O.Box 22622, Riyadh-I [416, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Saudi British Bank
P.O.Box 9084, Riyadh-1 1413, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Samba Financial Group
P.O.Box 833, Riyadh-1 1421, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The Saudi Investment Bank
P.O.Box 3533, Rivadh-I 1481, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia



Share Capital

Offer Price

Nominal Value

Number of issued Shares
Number of Offer Shares
Percentage of Offer Shares

Total value of Offer Shares

Number of Offer Shares
Underwritten

Amount Underwritten

Minimum number of Offer Shares
to be applied for

Minimum subscription amount

Maximum number of Offer Shares
to be applied for

Maximum subscription amount

Selling Shareholder

Dabbagh Group Holding Company
Limited*

THE

OFFERING

SAR 300000,000

SAR 58

SAR 10 pershare

30,000000 fully paid ordinary shares
9,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares

The Offer Shares represent 30% of the Company's issued

share capital

SAR 522 000,000
9,000,000 shares

SAR 522,000,000

10 shares

SAR 580

25,000 shares

* Please referto section “Dabbagh Group (The Selling Shareholder)”.

viii

SAR 1,450,000
Pre-Offering Post-Offering
SAR 10 par value/share SAR |0 par value/share
Shares Percent  Capital (SAR) Shares Percent Capital (SAR)
24,300,000 81.00% 243,000,000 15,300,000 51.00% 153,000,000



Use of Proceeds

Allocation of Offer Shares

Excess of Subscription Monies

Offering Period

Dividends

Voting Rights

Share Restrictions

Listing of Shares

The net proceeds of the Offering wil be paid to the Selling
Shareholder. The Company will not receive any proceeds from the
Offering.

Each Subscriber will be allocated a minimum of ten (10) Offer Shares
with the remaining Offer Shares being allocated on a pro-rata basis. In
the event that the number of Subscribers exceeds nine hundred
thousand (900000), the Company does not guarantee the minimum
allocation of ten (10) Offer Shares. In that case, the Offer Shares will be
allocated equally between all Subscribers. If the number of Subscribers
exceeds the number of Offer Shares, the allocation will be determined
at the discretion of the CMA. (Please refer to section “Subscription
Tems and Conditions” — Allocation and Refunds).

Excess of subscription monies, will be refunded to Subscribers without
any charge or withholding by the Recewving Banks on Monday
4/8/14727H (Corresponding to 28/8/2006G). (Please refer to section
“Subscription Terms and Conditions’ — Allocation and Refunds).

The Offering will commence on Saturday 18/7/1427H (corresponding
to 12/8/2006G) and will remain open up to and including Monday
271711427H (Comresponding to 2 1/8/2006G).

The Company’s net income amounted to SAR 97.9 million for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2005G of which SAR 48.6 million were paid out
as dividends to the shareholders of the Company. In the first half of
2006G, the Company is expected to pay approximately SAR 60 million
in dividends for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2006G to the Existing
Shareholders. The Offer Shares will be entitled to receive dividends
declared by the Company from the date of commencement of the
Offering Period and for subsequent fiscal years. For a discussion of the
Company's dividend policy, please refer to section “Dividends Record
and Policy”.

The Company has only one class of Shares and no Shareholder has any
preferential voting rights. Each Share entitles the holder to one vote
and each Shareholder holding at least 20 Shares has the right to attend
and vote at the General Assembly Meeting. For a discussion of the
Company's voting nights, please refer to section “Voting Rights".

The Existing Shareholders may not dispose of any Shares during the
period of 6 months from the date on which trading of the Offer Shares
commences on the Exchange. After the 6-months share trading
restriction period has elapsed, the Existing Shareholders may dispose of
their Shares only after obtaining CMA approval.

Prior to the Offering, there has been no public market for the Shares in
Saudi Arabia or elsewhere. An application has been made to the CMA
for the admission of the Shares to the Official List and all relevant
regulatory approvals required to conduct the Offering have been
granted. Trading in the Shares is expected to commence on the
Exchange soon after the final allocation of the Shares and after all
relevant official procedures have been completed (Please refer to
section “Key Dates for Investors”).



Risk Factors

There are certain risks relating to an investment in this Offering. These
risks can be categorized into (i) Risks related to the Company’s
operations, (i) Risks related to the market, and (jii) Risks related to the
ordinary shares. These risks are described in the “Risk Factors” section
of this Prospectus which should be considered carefully prior to making
an investment decision in the Shares offered hereby.



KEY DATES FOR INVESTORS

Offering Timetable Date*
18/7/1427H to 27/7/1427H
Offer Pericd
(corresponding to 12/8/2006G — 21/8/2006G)
Last date for submission of application form and subscription monies 2717/1427H (corresponding to 21/8/2006G)

Notification of final allotment and refund of subscription funds (in the event of
4/8/14727H (corresponding to 28/8/2006G)
over-subscription)

Start date of trading of Offer Shares Upon completion of all relevant procedures

*The above timetable of events is indicative. Actual dates wil be conveyed through printed press.

SUBSCRIPTION PROCEDURE

The Offering is directed to and may be accepted by individuals having the Saudi Arabia nationality only. Subscription Forms
will be made available during the Offering Period at the branches of the Lead Manager and Receving Banks and on the
website of the Lead Manager. Subscription can be also effected through the intemet, phone banking, or automated teller
machines through the Receiving Banks that offer one or all of those facilities to those Subscribers which have previously
subscribed to recent offerings, given that (i) the Subscriber holds an account at such Receiving Bank providing such services,
and (i) there are no changes to the Subscrber’ information or details since the Subscriber's subscription in a recent offering.

The Subscription Forms must be completed in accordance with the instructions described in the “Subscription Terms and
Conditions’ section of this Prospectus. Each Subscriber must agree to and complete all relevant sections of the Subscription
Form. The Company reserves the right to decline any Subscription Form, in part or in whole, in the event any of the
subscription terms and conditions is not met. Amendments to and withdrawal of the Subscription Form shall not be
permitted once the Subscription Form has been submitted. Furthermore, the Subscription Form shall, upon submission,
represent a binding agreement between the Subscriber and the Company (Please refer to section “Subscription Terms and
Conditions”).
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SUMMARY OF THE KEY INFORMATION

This summary of the key information aims to give an overiew of the information contained in this Prospectus As it is a summary, it does not contain all of the
information that may be important to interested Subscribers Redpients of this Prospectus should read the whole Prospectus before making a dedision to invest in the
Company. Capitdlized and abbreviated terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the 'Definitions and Abbreviations” section and elsewhere in this
Prosp ectus.

The Company

Red Sea Housing Services Company (the “Company” or “Red Sea”), is a Saudi company operating in the manufactured
housing market in the Middle East, Africa and Asia. The Company sells and leases a wide range of manufactured buildings for
commercial and residential applications and offers quick and durable housing solutions to the oil & gas, construction, and
mining sectors as well as govermment and multiateral organizations. Red Sea has three manufacturing facilities strategically
located in Jubail Industial City in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Jebel Ali Free Zone in the United Arab Emirates and Accra in
the Republic of Ghana (the latter through its wholly-owned subsidiary Red Sea Housing Services (Ghana) Limited) to serve
the growing demands of its clients wordwide and has successfully completed projects in over 40 countries over the last 20
years.

Red Sea Housing Services company was formed as a Saudi general partnership with Commercial Registration Number
4030052466 dated 03/05/1406H (corresponding to 13/01/1986G). The Company was converted on 07/11/1411H
(corresponding to 21/05/1991G) into a Saudi limited liability company with Commercial Registration Number 2055006 |05
dated 26/10/1424H (comresponding to 20/12/2003G), as amended. The Company has two subsidiaries, the first of which —
Rea Sea Housing Services (Ghana) Limited — is a wholly owned Ghanaian limited liabiity company registered under
commercial registration number CA-14,06 | issued in Victoriaburg, Accra on 20/10/2004G. The second company — SARL Red
Sea Housing Services Algeria Ltd — is a 99% owned Algerian limited lability company registered under commercial
registration number 189878 issued in Algiers on 08/03/2006G.

The Minister of Commerce and Industry has, pursuant to resolution No. 1801 dated 5/7/1427H (Corresponding to
30/712006 G), authorised the conversion of the Company into a joint stock company with a share capital of SAR 300 million
comprising thirty (30) million shares with a nominal value of SAR 10 each. Following completion of the Offering (as defined
below) and the conclusion of the Conversion General Assembly, an application will be submitted to the Minister of
Commerce and Industry requesting him to announce the conversion of the Company into a joint stock company. The
Company will be considered dully converted into a joint stock company from the date of issuance of the Ministerial
Resolution dedaring its conversion.

Ownership Structure of Red Sea

Pre-Offering Post-Offering

Shares Percent Capital (SAR)* Shares Percent Capital (SAR)*
Dabbagh Group Holding
Company Limited 24,300,000 81.00% 243,000000 15300000  51.00% 153,000000
Tanmiah Commercial Group [,200000 4.00% 12,000,000 1,200,000 4.00% 12,000,000
Supreme Foods Company
Limited 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000
National Scientific Company
Limited 1,500000 5.00% 15,000,000 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000
Marketing and Commercial
Agencies Company Limited 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000
Offering Subscribers 0 0.00% 0 9,000,000 30.00% 90,000,000
Total 30,000,000 100.00% 300,000,000 30,000,000 100.00% 300,000,000

*SAR 10 par value/share
Source: Red Sea
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Red Sea has been growing and profitable in the past with net income averaging 17% of revenues during the past three fiscal
years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004 G, and 2005G. Retum on assets and retum on equity over this period averaged 27% and
51% respectively. The revenues of the Company grew from SAR [77.1 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003G to
SAR 394.8 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004G and SAR 421.6 million for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2005G. This translated into growth in revenues of 123% and 7% during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004G and 2005G
respectively. Net income of the Company grew from SAR 22.7 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003G to SAR
63.0 million for the fiscal year ended March 31,2004G and SAR 979 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005G. This
translated into growth in net income of 178% and 55% during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004G and 2005G
respectively (Please refer to section “Management’s Discussion and Aralysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations”).

With three manufacturing facilities strategically located in Saudi Arabia, the United Arab Emirates, and the Republic of Ghana,
(the latter through its wholly-owned subsidiary Red Sea Housing Services (Ghana) Limited), Red Sea is certified to the ISO
9001:2000 standard for its quality management system in two of its production facilities with the newly established
manufacturing facility in Republic of Ghana currently in the process of obtaining an ISO 90012000 certification. The Company
has a current production capacity of 335000 m” per year and serves its clients with products built under high standards to
ensure their uniformity and quality. (Please referto section “Manufacturing Facilities and Operations”).

Red Sea takes pride in its reputation for expertise, craftsmanship, and durability evidenced by the fact that it is one of the
manufactured housing companies in the Kingdom which is certified by Saudi Aramco. Building on its vast experience in design,
planning, and production of manufactured housing, the Company continuously strives to deliver high quality products and
loval service.

Enjoying considerable operating flexibility, Red Sea strives to meet its customers’ specific needs ranging from a small
guardhouse up to a spacious hotel. Red Sea offers a broad range of housing products with a proven track record of expertise
in providing tumkey package solutions, i.e. completely fumished buildings, utilities, and infrastructure work.

Red Sea has a large and diverse customer base with sales offices strategically located at Jubail in Saudi Arabia, Dubai in the
United Arab Emirates, and Accra in the Republic of Ghana as well as sales representative and agents and site offices to meet
the specific needs of its customers.

Red Sea currently employs 968 full time personnel. Its Management is highly qualified and possesses a diverse and relevant
experience in both the Middle Eastem and intermnational markets.

Vision Statement

“To be the supplier of choice forall major multinational oil & gas, and mining companies operating in our market area’”.

Mission Statement

“To be totally committed in providing our customers with quality products that shall be delivered defect-free and on time™.

Competitive Advantages

Company’s position in large and growing markets: Red Sea’s management believes that the Company benefits from its
position in the important manufactured housing markets of the Middle East, Africa, and Asia. The Company'’s main focus is on
the oil & gas, construction, and mining sectors as well as government and multilateral organizations. The importance of these
market segments is evidenced by the key characteristics of these regions including the abundance of natural resources,
ongoing industrial development, geo-political conditions, and the housing needs of the growing populations across these
regions.
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Comprehensive product range: Red Sea has developed a comprehensive range of products over the years to meet the
specific needs of its customers. Red Sea is recognized to meet a wide range of housing requirements, with either temporary
or permanent structures, including accommodation units, offices, power generation plants, water treatment plants,
kitchen/dining units, recreation units, laundry areas, labor quarters, drill/rig camps, dormitories, guard houses, hospitals/clinics,
hotels, relief housing facllities, and schools. With products ranging from the single-section, moveable camp shelters to multi-
section, luxury villas, Red Sea strives to meet the growing manufactured housing demands of its diverse customer base using
high quality products tailored to the specific needs of each customer. Additionally, the Company offers a range of value added
services to its customers including lease, buy back, rental, camp management, and civil works, which not only bring additional
revenues to the Company but also help increase the sales of its core products through bundling and enhanced customer
satisfaction.

Large, diverse, and loyal customer base: Red Sea'’s robust performance over the past several years is underpinned by a large
and diverse customer base, evidenced by the successful completion of hundreds of projects in over 40 countries over the
past 20 years. Red Sea’s amray of customers stems from both public and private sectors, including oil & gas, construction, and
mining companies as well as government and multilateral organizations. These different customer demographics and their
differing housing needs enable Red Sea to avoid over-dependence on any single geographic or market segment.

Reputation for quality of products, superior customer service, and tumkey solutions: Red Sea’s management believes that the
Company is perceived by its customers as being among the best providers of manufactured housing products and services in
the markets it serves with high ethical values in its customer dealings. In addition, the Company’s tumkey solutions that
include the design, the delivery, the provision of civil and foundation works, and the assembly sets Red Sea distinctly apart
from the competition. Red Sea also prides itself in working with its customers and showing a high degree of flexibility to
optimize and tailor its products and services to match the specifications and economics desired by its customers.

Ability and willingness to deliver quickly under challenging circumstances: Red Sea believes it has positioned itself to be the
most responsive provider of manufactured housing products within its market area as a result of the Company’s strategy to
effectively manage inventories in order to meet the sudden demand surges, the high flexibility of its workforce, and the use of
the most appropriate delivery services.

Strategically located manufacturing facilities: Red Sea's existing manufacturing facilities are strategically located in the Middle
East and Africa in Jubail, Saudi Arabia, Jebel Ali Free Zone, UAE, and Accra, Republic of Ghana (the latter through its wholly-
owned subsidiary Red Sea Housing Services (Ghana) Limited). Current production capacity in excess of 335,000 m” per year
allows Red Sea to serve its clients promptly and efficiently, delivering high quality products and solutions on tight schedules
(Please referto section “Manufacturing Facilities and Operations”).

Talented management team and workforce with a diverse and relevant experience: Red Sea is managed by a highly
experienced team of professionals, many of whom have more than 20 years of industry experience, mostly acquired within
Red Sea. The Executive Management team possesses extensive experience in both regional and intemational manufactured
housing markets with expertise in production and installation and other relevant disciplines such as procurement, supply chain
management, marketing, distribution, logistics, and finance. Having served more than 130 major customers over the last 20
years across the Middle East, Africa, and Asia, the Red Sea management possesses a unique experience and insight into the
core markets of the Company. A large proportion of the Red Sea employees have technical skills in multiple areas of
manufacturing and installaton operations which helps to avoid operational disruptions that might occur due to any on site
emergency situation (Please referto section “Executive Management”).

Well reputed selling shareholder: Red Sea'’s Selling Shareholder, Dabbagh Group is one of the Middle East’s leading business
corporations comprising more than 28 autonomous companies with major interests in real estate development, food and
agniculture, energy, technology, media & telecommunications, trade and financial services sectors, currently operating in
various countries around the world.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The selected financial information presented below should be read in conjunction with the audited finandial statements for the fiscd years ended March 31, 2003G
2004G, and 2005G and the eight months ended November 30, 2005G as well as unaudited interim financial statements for the eight months ended November 30,

2004 G including in each case, the notes thereto, induded elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Financial Highlights (SAR 000s)

Eight Months Ended

Fiscal Year Ended March 3| November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G

Income Statement Summary
Revenues 177,126 394,763 421624 307,68l 273,184
Cost of Revenues (126326) (287 486) (278571) (200,724) (163,080)
Gross Profit 50,800 107,277 143053 106,957 110,104
Selling and Marketing (13988) (15969) (27832) (20998) (16,774)
General and Administrative (15487) (29879) (18282) (13350) (14225)
Reversal of excess accruals - - - - 14’700
Operating Income 21,325 61,429 96,939 72,609 93,805
Financial Income (Charges) - Net (44) (154) [,180 332 835
Other Income 2,064 3,736 2325 1,650 2,991
Income Before Zakat 23,345 65011 |00 444 74591 97,631
Zakat (612) (1,981) 511) (1,854) (4571)
Net Income 22,733 63,030 97933 72,737 93,060
Balance Sheet Summary
Current Assets 81,973 186,283 220326 219926 (*%)390/414
Non-Current Assets 56,319 48,336 45955 41,167 67,062
Total Assets 138,292 234,619 266281 261,093 (**)457,476
Current Liabilities 59,720 124,651 106,150 77 844 94,287
Non-Current Liabilities 4,873 4,863 5732 5407 6,230
Total Liabilities 64,593 129,514 111882 83,251 100517
Share Capital 3,000 3,000 3000 3000  (**)300,000
Statutory Reserves 1,500 [,500 | 500 | 500 [,500
Retained Famings 69,199 100,605 149 899 173342 55,459
Total Shareholders' Equity 73,699 105,105 154,399 177,842 356,959
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 138,292 234,619 266728l 261,093 457476
Key Ratios
Sales Growth 24.2% 122.9% 6.8% (k%) 169%  (***) (2.8%)
Total Assets Growth 16.7% 69.8% 13.5% [1.3% 15.5%
Gross Profit Margin 28.7% 27.2% 33.9% 34.8% 40.3%
Net Income Margin 12.8% 16.0% 232% 23.6% 34.1%
Current Ratio |4 1.5 2.1 (**%)2.8 (***)25
Total Assets Tumover l.3 |7 16 (***) 1.8 (***) 13
Retum on Assets 16.4% 26.9% 36.8% (%) 42% (F#%) 45%
Retum on Equity 30.8% 60.0% 63.4% (***) 61% (***) 67%

0.8 2.1 33 2. 3.1

Eamings per Share (SAR)#*##%

*Unaudited financials ** Pursuant to the Partners Resolution signed by the Existing Shareholders and notarized before the Notary Public of the Chamber of
Commerce and Industry in the Eastern Province on 29/6/1427H (Comresponding to 25/7/2006G), the Capital of the company was increased from SAR 3
million (consisting of 3,000 Shares at a nomina value of SAR 1,000 each) to SAR 300 million (consisting of 30,000,000 Shares at a nominal value of SAR 10
each) through a transfer of SAR 147 million from retained earnings as of November 30,2005G and the injection of SAR 150 million in new capital by the
Dabbagh Group, on December 4, 2005G.(Please refer to section “Capitalization”).*** Percentages are computed by amualising the 8-months figures (8-
months figures*| 2/8), Ratios for the eight months ended November 30 2005G are computed without taking into account the SAR 150 million injection in
new apitd. **** Eamings per share for the years ended March 31, 2005G, 2004 G and 2003G and forthe months ended November 30 2004G and 2005G
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have been computed by dividing the net income for each of those years/period by thirty million shares to give a retroactive effect of the prospective increase

in share capital mentioned in “Capitdization” section. Source: Red Sea Figures are rounded.
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1 DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

[tems
AED

Authority

AutoCAD

Board or Board of Directors

CBM
CFO
clIs

CMA

Companies Regulations

Dabbagh Group

Directors

Engr.

Exchange
Financial Advisor

Existing Shareholders

G

GCC

GDP

GM
Government
H

ISO

T

JAFZA

KGS
Kingdom
LC

Listing Rules

Lead Manager

m
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Definitions
United Arab Emirates Dirham

The Capital Market Authority of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, including, where applicable, any
committee, employee or agent delegated with any function of the Authority

A popular computer aided drafting program

Board of Directors of the Company

Cubic Meter

Chief Financial Officer

Commonwealth of Independent States

The Capital Market Authority of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The Companies Regulations, issued underthe Royal Decree Number (M/6), dated
22/3/1385H, as amended

Dabbagh Group Holding Company Limited, a limited liability company with Commercial
Registration Number 4030088071 issued in Jeddah on 07/01/1413H

Proposed Members of Board of Directors of Red Sea
Engineer

The Saudi Stock Exchange

Swicorp Financial Advisory Services S.A.

Dabbagh Group Holding Company Limited, Tanmiah Commercial Group, Supreme Foods
Company Limited, National Scientific Company Limited, Marketing and Commercial Agencies
Company Limited

Notation for Gregonan Year

Gulf Cooperation Council

Gross Domestic Product

General Manager

The Government of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Notation for Hijrah Year

International Organtzation for Standardization
Information Technology

Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority

Kilograms

The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Letter of Credit

The Listing Rules issued by the CMA pursuant to Article 6 of the Capital Market Law
promulgated under Royal Decree No. (M/30) dated 02/06/1424H (comresponding to
31/072003G)

Saudi Hollandi Bank

Meters



2
m

Management
MBA
MD&A

MoCl
NGOs
Offering or IPO

Offering Period
Offer Price
Offer Shares
Official Gazette
Official List

Person
Prospectus
PVvC

Receiving Banks

Red Sea or Company

SAR

SASO

Saudi Arabia
Saudi GAAP

Saudization

Selling Shareholder
Shareholders
Shares

SIBOR

SOCPA
Subscriber

Swicorp

Tadawul

UAE

UK

Underwriters

xXiii

Meters Squared
Management of Red Sea
Master of Business Administration

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of the
Company

Ministry of Commerce and Industry
Non-governmental Organizations

The initial public offering of 9,000,000 ordinary Shares of Red Sea, representing 30% of its
issued share capital

The period of time during which applications can be made for subscription to the Offer Shares
SAR 58 per Offer Share

Up to 9,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company

Um AlQura, the Offical Gazette of the Govemment of Saudi Arabia

The list of securities maintained by the Capital Market Authority in accordance with the Listing
Rules

A natural person

This prospectus prepared by the Company in connection with the Offering

Poly-Vinyl Chloride

Saudi Hollandi Bank, Banque Saudi Fransi, National Commercial Bank, Al Rajhi Banking and

Investment Corp., Bank Abilad, Bank Aljazira, Riyad Bank, Saudi British Bank, Samba Financial
Group, The Saudi Investment Bank.

Red Sea Housing Services Company Limited and upon its conversion into a joint stock
company, Red Sea Housing Services Company

Saudi Arabian Riyal

Saudi Arabian Standards Organization

The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Generally accepted accounting principles in Saudi Arabia

Labour market regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia making it mandatory for companies
operating in Saudi Arabia to employ a certain proportion of Saudi nationals

Dabbagh Group

Holders of the Shares at any particulartime

Fully paid ordinary shares of the Company with a nominal value of SAR 10 perShare
Saudi Inter Bank Offer Rate

Saudi Organisation for Certified Public Accountants

Each person subscribing forthe Offer Shares

Swicorp Financial Advisory Services S.A, the financial advisor for the Offering
Automated system fortrading of Saudi shares

United Arab Emirates

United Kingdom

Saudi Hollandi Bank, Banque Saudi Fransi, National Commercial Bank



Lead Underwriter Saudi Hollandi

US, USA United States of America
US$ / USD United States Dollar
WTO World Trade Organization
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2 RISK FACTORS

In addttion to the other information wntained in this Prospectus, prospective Subsaibers should consider carefully the risk factors set
forth below before making a decision to invest in the Offered Shares. The risks described below are not the only ones that the
Company may face. Additional risks not currently known to the Company or ones currently deemed immaterial may also impair their
business operations. The Company's bushess and financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected
by any of these risks. The trading price of the Offered Shares could decline due to any of these or other risks, and Subscribers may
lose partof or all of their investment.

2.1 RISKS RELATED TO THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS

2.1.1 UNEXPECTED BUSINESS INTERRUPTION

Red Sea's business is dependent on the ongoing, efficient operations of its manufacturing facilities in Jubail, Saudi Arabia, Jebel
Ali Free Zone, UAE and Accra, Republic of Ghana (the latter through its wholly-owned subsidiary Red Sea Housing Services
(Ghana) Limited), as well the systems and infrastructure that Red Sea has in place. Inherent risks include natural disasters,
failure of critical machinery, accidents to key personnel, power, water supply, and computer equipment.

Matenial interruptions in production capabilities will inevitably increase production costs and reduce revenues and profitability
of the Company. Furthemore, any interruptions in the Company’s manufacturing capabilities may require the Company to
make large capital expenditures to remedy the situation, which could have a negative effect on the Company’s profitability
and cash flows.

Although the Company maintains insurance policies consistent with industry norms and has put in place safety and protective
measures to minimise the effects of such risks including fire protection, back-up machines, and contingency plans among
others, such measures may not adequately compensate the Company for losses that may occur and any losses and/or
damages incurred could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business.

2.1.2 REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

Red Sea's business is subject to regulations in Saudi Arabia and in certain foreign jursdictions in which the Company operates
or into which its products may be sold. The regulatory environment in which the Company operates may be subject to
change. Regulatory changes caused by poalitical, economic, technical and/or environmental factors could significantly impact the
Company's operations by restricting the development of the Company or its customers, restricting sales and distrbution of
the Company's products or increasing the opportunity for additional competition. The Company may deem it necessary or
advisable to modify its products or operations in order to operate in compliance with such regulations, which may have a
negative impact on the Company'’s profitability and cash flow.

To the best of the Management's knowledge, there are no indications as of the date of this Prospectus of any changes in the
regulatory environment that may have an adverse materia effect on the Company's operations and future prospects.

2.1.3 RELIANCE ON KEY CUSTOMERS

Over the years, Red Sea has developed strategic relationships with a number of its key customers which have commissioned
the Company's products and services on a repetitive basis and contributed significantly to the Company's operations.
However, the Company cannot guarantee that the customers will keep on relying on Red Sea for their manufactured housing
needs. Any incident(s) or factor(s), which may or may not be in the Company’s control, may result in the loss of one or more



of such customers and there can be no guarantee that such a loss will not materially affect the results of operations and
financial condition of the Company.

2.1.4 RELIANCE ON KEY SUPPLIERS

Red Sea relies on a number of suppliers, both domestic and intemational, which supply different raw matenals used in the
production of the Company’s products. The Company cannot guarantee that existing supplier relationships will continue on
their existing basis. Any incident(s) or factor(s), which may or may not be in the Company’s control, may result in the loss of
one or more of Company's suppliers and there can be no guarantee that such a loss will not materially affect the results of
operations and financial condition of the Company.

2.1.5 GROWTH PROSPECTS

While Red Sea has achieved healthy growth over the past with revenues growth averaging 44% during the three fiscal years
ending March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and 2005G, there is no guarantee that a similar rate of growth can be sustained. In
particular difficulties may anse in hiring and training sufficient number of qualified personnel to keep pace with the growth in
the demand for the Company’s products. In addition, the Company may experience difficulties in upgrading, expanding, and
developing its manufacturing facilities fast enough to absorb the demand for its products. In the event Red Sea is unable to
manage rapid growth successfully, its business could be adversely affected.

2.1.6 FUTURE AVAILABILITY OF ADDITIONAL CAPITAL

Whilst Red Sea has sufficient capital to meet its envisaged needs, the Company may require additional capital in the future,
which may not be available or only be available at unfavorable terms. In order for the Company to grow, it will require to
expand its base of operations to remain competitive. Red Sea may also require additional capital which will be dependent on
its future financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able
to obtain additional capital in a timely manner or on acceptable terms.

2.1.7 EXCHANGE RATE

The Companies’ expenses and revenues involve a number of currencies due to the raw matenals procurement from a
number of different markets, manufacturing facilities located in more than one country, and sales being generated from a
number of different markets. As the Company currently does not employ any foreign exchange risk management practices, a
significant movement of exchange rate between the Saudi Arabian Riyal and the other cumencies in which the Company
might do any trade may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s profitability. Even if the Company employs foreign
exchange risk management tools in the future, it might still affect the Company's profitability due to the added cost of
employing such tools.

2.1.8 RAW MATERIAL PRICE

Most of the products utilzed for production by Red Sea are Lumber, Wood, Paint, Steel and PVC. The prices of these
products are a function of the global changes in the supply and demand forces. Accordingly, any material changes in raw
matenial prices could adversely impact the company’s results, operations and financial position.



2.1.9 FAIR VALUE

Fair value represents the amount of cash for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm'’s length transaction. Red Sea'’s financial statements are prepared using historical cost and differences
may arise between the book values and fair value estimates.

In the case of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables and other receivables, and accounts payables and other
payables, fair value is deemed to approximate the book value due to their short-term nature. In the case of borrowings, fair
value is based on discounted cash flows.

In line with the Intemational Accounting Standards, no value is estimated for the Red Sea brand in the Company’s financial
statements. With this exception, Management and Directors believe that the fair values of Red Sea's financial assets and
liabilities are not matenally different from their book values as stated in the financial statements.

2.1.10 CREDIT

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a transaction may fail to meet an obligation and will cause another party to
incur a financial loss. The principal financial instruments that expose Red Sea to credit risk are accounts receivables. Red Sea’s
accounts receivables are predominantly with its long term customers.

Red Sea does not consider itself exposed to a concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables due to a large customer
base, the reputation of its clients and the nature of existing relationships with its clients. Cash and cash equivalents are placed
with national and intemational banks with sound credit ratings.

2.1.11 COMMISSION RATE

Commission rate risk arises due to the exposure to various risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
commission rates on Red Sea’s financial position and cash flows. Red Sea does not have significant commission bearing assets.
Due to banks, which at March 31, 2005G amounted to SAR 5 million are commission bearing liabilities. Due to the
insignificance of commission bearing liabilities, Red Sea cumently does not employ any hedging instruments against the
commission rate risk.

2.1.12 LIQUIDITY

Liquidity risk arises due to an enterprise encountering difficulties in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from the inability to sell a financial asset quickly at an amount close to its fair
value.

Liquidity risk is managed by ensuring that sufficient funds are available to meet future commitments. Red Sea has adequate
funding available to meet anticipated future commitments.

2.1.13 EMPLOYEE MISCONDUCT

Despite established internal guidelines, controls and procedures regarding employee conduct, the Company cannot guarantee
that employee misconduct will not happen in future. Employee misconduct could result in violation of law by the Company,
regulatory sanctions, financial liability and/or serious damage of reputation to Red Sea. Such misconduct may include:

B |mproperuse ordisclosure of confidentia information



m  Concealment of unauthorzed or unsuccessful activities

Recommendation for products and/or services that are not suitable

®  Engagement in misrepresentation or fraudulent, deceptive or otherwise improper activities while
marketing or selling the Company’s products and/or services to customers; or

m Disregard for applicable laws or intemal controls and procedures

There can be no guarantees that the Company will always be able to deter employee misconduct, as the safety measures
taken to prevent and detect these activities may not be successful in all cases. Red Sea, therefore, cannot guarantee that
employee misconduct will not materialy and adversely affect the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

2.1.14 RELIANCE ON KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The Company's business and prospects depend to a significant degree upon the continuing contributions of certain key
Executive Management members, incduding Don B. Sumner, Mark M. Sumner, Donnie B. Sumner, Dan M. Meikleham, Glenn
Warren, John N. Moon, Partick Cain, Craig Conklin, and Jeny MclLaine. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to refain the services of its existing key management personnel or attract and retain additional qualified personnel as and
when needed. In addition, employee compensation levels may need to be increased in order to retain existing officers and
attract additional key personnel.

The Company is aware of the importance of its management and has a number of measures in place to retain and attract key
management employees, but the success of these measures in retaining existing key management employees or attracting
new ones cannot be guaranteed. The loss of any of Red Sea’s key management employees could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s ability to implement its business plan and business, results of operations and financial condition.

2.1.15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Company had trade accounts receivable — net of SAR 660 million as of March 31,2005G. Of this total amount, two key
customers accounted for SAR 319 million whereas the remaining amount was due from a large number of customers. As of
March 31, 2005G, all trade accounts receivable over one year old were fully provided for. Although, the Company has not
incurred any major problems in collecting its trade accounts receivable, there can be no guarantee that this will continue to
be the case and the inability of the Company to recover a major portion of its trade accounts receivable for any reasons
including any of the clients going bankrupt might adversely affect the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.
The Company's trade account receivable - net as of November 30, 2005G amounted to SAR 975 million. (Please refer to
section "Current Liabilities”).

2.1.16 PROTECTION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Red Sea has received the approval of the competent authorities for the registration of the trademark “Red Sea Housing
Services” (including its logo) in Saudi Arabia under Class 37 of the intemational trademark classification system. Red Sea does
not, however, have any trademark (including its logo), or other intellectual property registered in its name in any of the other
jurisdictions in which the Company operates. The Company has recently engaged a leading intellectual property firm which
has already begun the process of taking the necessary steps to protect its trademarks through their registration in the
principal markets outside Saudi Arabia in which the Company operates.

The Company's competitive position depends, in part, upon its ability to use its name and logo on its products in the
jurisdictions where the products are marketed and sold. The inability to prevent infringement in junsdictions where the
Company operates may adversely affect the brand and may make it more expensive to do business thus adversely affecting
the Company’s operating results. The Company's business could be further affected if it were to have to compete with similar



trademarks within the major markets in which it operates and if it were to cease to have the right to utilze trademarks to
which it does not have complete ownership rights.

2.1.17 TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGES

The primary technological risks associated with the manufactured housing industry are the innovation in the manufacturing
technology and processes as well as the materials. Though the Company’s manufacturing facilities enable it to keep pace with
the market, there is no guarantee that this will continue to be the case and any radical developments in these areas might
impact the competitive position, results of operations and financial condition of the Company.

2.2 RISKS RELATED TO THE MARKET

2.2.1 COMPETITIVE LANDSCAPE

The Company operates in competitive markets. There are a number of companies which compete directly with Red Sea and
such competition may put pressure on the margins for the Company's products. In addition, the Company's future
performance might be adversely impacted by new entrants to its markets.

2.2.2 WTO CONSIDERATIONS

The Middle East in general and Saudi Arabia in particular, comprises one of the most important markets for the Company. As
part of a drive by a number of regional economies for accession into the WTO, there are demands for a higher degree of
domestic economic liberalzation and removal of certain mechanisms in place to protect the local producers. As a result of
such compliance with the future WTO obligations, the competitive conditions faced by the Company may change significantly
and affect its sales and profitabllity.

2.2.3 MARKET AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Although the economies of the Middle East and North Africa region continue to pursue a policy of diversification to enhance
the contribution of non-oil sectors to their GDPs, ol related revenues are expected to continue to play a dominant role in
the economic planning and development of these economies.

The market wide economic downturn also imposes serious risks for the industries like manufactured housing due to their
relatively large fixed assets base. In case, large investments are made in new facilities, equipment, and machinery to cope with
the rising demand, and suddenly the market conditions tum unfavorable, cash flows can be serously impacted. As such
conditions are not possible to predict with any certainty, there can be no guarantee that this will not happen and in the event
such a situation materializes, it may have material effect on the Company’s results of operations and financial condition.

2.2.4 GOVERNANCE AND SECURITY CHALLENGES

Governance and security challenges are common in a number of countries especially across Africa. Such challenges can result
in a range of problems for the businesses operating across these markets including the business of Red Sea, security of the
Company personnel, delivery of products, production, recovery of receivables, and fair award of contracts. The Company
cannot guarantee that such challenges will not materially affect its results of operations and financial condition.



2.3 RISKS RELATED TO THE ORDINARY SHARES

2.3.1 PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The value of the Shares could be adversely affected if the Selling Shareholder, in whom Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al-
Dabbagh has a 98% stake, were to dispose of its shareholding in the Company following the share-restriction period referred
to in the “Future Sales and Offerings” section.

2.3.2 EFFECTIVE CONTROL BY THE SELLING SHAREHOLDER

Following this Offering, the Selling Shareholder will own no less than 51% of the Company’s issued Shares. The Selling
Shareholder will therefore be able to influence all matters requiring Shareholder approval, including significant corporate
expenditures and the appointment of directors (except as prescribed by Articles 69 and 70 of the Companies Regulations).

As a result, the Selling Shareholder may exercise this ability in @ manner that could have a significant effect on the Company's
business, financial condition and results of operations including significant corp orate transactions and capital adjustments.

2.3.3 DIVIDENDS

Future dividends will depend on, amongst other things, the future profit, financial position, capital requirements, distributable
reserves and available credit of the Company and general economic conditions and other factors that the Directors of the
Company deem significant from time to time.

Although the Company intends to pay annual dividends to its shareholders, the Company does not make any assurance that
any dividends will actually be paid nor any assurance as to the amount, which will be paid in any given year. The distribution
of dividends is subject to certain limitations contained in the Company’s proposed By-Laws (Please refer to section “Summary
of the Company’s Proposed By-Laws").

2.3.4 ABSENCE OF A PRIOR MARKET FOR THE SHARES

Currently, there is no public market for the Company’s Shares, and there can be no assurance that an active market for the
Company's Shares will develop or be sustained after this Offering. The Offer Price has been determined based upon several
factors, indluding the history of, and prospects for, the Company’s business and the industry in which it competes and an
assessment of the Company’s management, operations, and historic and projected financial results. Various factors, including
the Company’s future financial results, general conditions in the industry, health of the overall economy or other factors
beyond the Company's control could cause significant fluctuations in the price and liquidity of the Company's Shares. Specific
factors that could cause market price fluctuations include:

® price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market from time to time;

® significant volatility in the market price and trading volume;

B actual oranticipated changes in the Company's eamings or fluctuations in the Company's operating

results or in the expectations;

B general economic conditions and trends;
sales of large blocks of shares of the Company'’s stock, or
m  departures of key personnel.



2.3.5 FUTURE SALES AND OFFERINGS

Sales of substantial amounts of the Shares in the Public market following the completion of the Offering, or the perception
that these sales will occur, could adversely affect the market price of the Shares.

Upon the successful completion of the Offering, the Existing Shareholders will own 70% of the Shares and would be subject
to a 6-month holding period. After the Capital Market Authority approval, the sale of a substantial number of Shares by the
Company, or any of the Existing Shareholders following the 6-month holding period could have an adverse effect on the
market forthe Shares and the market price of the Shares.

The Company does not currently intend to issue additional shares immediately following the Offering. If and when the
Company decides to raise additional capital by issuing new shares, the newly issued shares will dilute existing shares to a
certain extent and could potentially reduce the value of such shares.



3 MANUFACTURED HOUSING MARKET

3.1 GLOBAL MARKET

3.1.1 OVERVIEW

With shelter being one of the basic human needs, demand for manufactured housing around the world has been growing in
line with global population growth, governmental efforts especially in emerging markets to improve housing conditions for
their populations, and increasing demand for more affordable, quick, and innovative solutions tailored to people’s specific
housing needs.

The manufactured housing industry is a diverse and fragmented one. The key market segments of the manufactured housing
industry include:

= Commercial and industrial housing which includes facilities such as offices, hotels, construction
camps, and multipurpose buildings. This category is driven by a number of major factors such as
general economic growth and industrial demand.

= Residential housing (single or multi family housing) which covers a wide range of housing types and
sizes and is primarily aimed at permanent residents and the leisure markets. This category is driven by
demographic factors especially population growth.

A feature of the manufactured housing market is that customer types and their specific product requirements differ according
to the characteristics of the specific geographic markets (eg. natural resources, industrial base, geological conditions, political
situation, and cultural values).

In the service-based, developed economies, with affluent and increasingly independent populations like North America,
Europe, and Japan, manufactured housing products and services are targeted mostly towards the general public and
consumers to satisfy their holiday as well as permanent housing needs at relatively low cost.

Conversely, in countries with vast reserves of natural resources and major industrial and infrastructure projects, these
products and services are mostly tailored towards satisfying the temporary housing needs of commercial and industnal clients.
Military conflicts are also an important factor driving demand for manufactured housing products in certain developing
countries in order to provide housing for the refugees and reconstruction and rehabilitation of such areas. Natural disasters,
governmental and non-governmental humanitarian aid works, and climatic and geological conditions are among the other
factors shaping the nature of markets for manufactured housing in different geographies.

According to lcon Group Intemational, the global demand for manufactured housing currently exceeds $53.5 billion with an
average annual growth rate of about 2.6 percent over the last 4 years. The following chart highlights the global demand for
manufactured housing for the period 2001 -2005.



Exhibit 3.1: Global Demand for Manufacturing Housing
E750% -
L5000 |

LL 4

SO 4
o J I
ELYes v T T
2001 20002 2003 200 2005

Source: ICON Group Intemational, Dated: 2005

% Milan

The distribution of the world demand, however, is not evenly distributed across the different regions. Africa, Europe & the
Middle East is the largest market with $17.8 billion or 33.3 percent, followed by Asia with $17.0 billion or 318 percent, and
then North America & the Caribbean with $13.8 billion or 25.8 percent of the world market. In essence, if firms target these
top 3 regions, they cover 908 percent of the global latent demand for manufactured homes, mobile homes, and non-
residential mobile buildings.

The following chart highlights the current geographic breakdown of the manufactured housing demand worldwide.

Exhibit 3.2: Regional Demand for Manufacturing Housing
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Due to the fact that the nature of customers as well as products and services provided by the manufactured housing industry
change from one geographic market to the other, trends in terms of growth, profitability, and innovation vary widely among
these markets as well. Overal, however, management believes the emerging markets are likely to grow faster than the
mature markets.

3.1.2 COMPETITION

Competition in the manufactured housing industry can be categorized into two distinct categories:

= Local Competitors
| Intemational Competitors



There are a large number of small sze local producers concentrating on narrow geographic markets in close proximity to
their production operations, and offering limited ranges of products. These producers are usually competitive at supplying the
small size contracts utilizing local standards. However, in case of large size contracts usually commissioned by muftinational
corporations, and governmental and multiateral agencies, such small producers do not possess the required expertise or
capabilities to complete large projects under tight schedules. Providing the sophisticated building specifications and special
equipment requirements generally involved in such projects presents a formidable challenge for small producers. Additionally,
the complexity of paper work involved in the tendering for such projects, where the tender documents are long and require
verifiable data on priorsimilar experiences, is an overwhelming challenge forthe small size producers.

The major contenders in Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates are Red Sea, Eastemn Homes (KSA), New Fab (KSA),
Space Maker (UAE), Al-Massod Bergman (UAE), Nitco (UAE).

Intemational competitors are usually large manufactured housing producers with centralized production facilities. These
manufacturers are usually capable of complying with sophisticated customer requirements. However these manufacturers face
a number of challenges including:

m  Higheroverhead costs driven mainly by substantial labor costs

Higher raw material costs due to the fact that these companies mostly procure raw materials in their home
markets of North America and Europe where prices of raw materials are relatively higher compared to Asia

High transportation costs driving up the prices of the offered products

Manufactured housing is not the core business of some of the contenders

Narrow range of products

Longer delivery time

No turnkey installation for every location

Highertax costs

The major contenders in this category are ATCO Structures (Canada, and Hungary), PortaKamp (USA), IBS (USA),
PortaCabin (England), and Top Housing (Sweden).

Although accurate market data and market share information are not readily available for this industry, based on the
information provided by Icon Group Intemational and Red Sea’s financial data, it is estimated that Red Sea has an average
market share of 6% across the main geographic areas in which they operate.

3.2 THE MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICAN MARKET

3.2.1 MARKET OVERVIEW

Due to the vast reserves of oil, gas, and other mineral resources, and the presence and development of related industries, a
large portion of the demand for manufactured housing products and services in the Middle East and Africa has traditionally
arisen from the commercial and industrial segments. The demographic trends across the region with young and growing
populations, are also gving rise to significant demand for residential housing in a drive by both the govemment and the
private sector to improve the housing conditions for the populations. The geopolitical conditions and natural disasters have
also been a key factor in driving the demand growth for the manufactured housing across the Middle East and Africa from
governmental and multilateral organizations, as well as reconstruction and infrastructure development firms. The particular
characteristics of the manufactured housing notably, quick delivery and low cost, make them particularly suitable to cope with
emergency housing requirements.

Currently, according to lcon Group Intemational, the demand for manufactured housing across the Middle East and Africa
(excluding Israel, Turkey, and South Africa) stands at around $2.6 billion per year with the demand growing at an average
annual rate of around |.7 percent overthe last 4 years.

The following chart highlights the demand levels for the manufactured housing industry across the Middle East and Africa
(excluding Israel, Turkey, and South Africa) for the period 2001 -2005.
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Exhibit 3.3: Middle East & Africa Demand for Manufacturing Housing
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3.2.2 MARKET OUTLOOK

The demand for the manufactured housing across the Middle East and Africa is expected to achieve healthy growth of 5.7
percent over the coming years driven mainly by the oil & gas, mining, commercial and industrial activities, government
initiatives to improve the housing conditions for their populations, as well as the humanitarian efforts in the conflict zones
across the region to provide housing for the large number of refugees across the region and rehabilitation and reconstruction
efforts in the conflict zones.

The following chart highlights the projected demand levels for the manufactured housing industry across the Middle East and
Africa (excluding Israel, Turkey, and South Africa) forthe period 2006-201 1.

Exhibit 3.4: Middle East & Africa Demand for Manufacturing Housing
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However, the demand growth may be much higher especially if:

m  Oil prices, which are currently around US$ 70 per barrel, continue to be high, as this will boost the
government revenues and hence the govemment spending on petrochemical projects; and

®  Financial aid for the conflict stricken areas across the region is boosted by the intemational
community for the rehabilitation and reconstruction of these areas

®m  The large number of mega projects expected across the region in the infrastructure, real estate,
oil & gas, and petrochemical sectors in particular matenalize
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The current drive by a number of regional govemments to enhance the development of their industrial sectors in order to
diversify their economies, reduce reliance on oil & gas, and provide jobs for their growing work force, is expected to play a
major role in driving demand for manufactured housing across the Middle East and Africa. These efforts, which include
privatizations, the development of industrial and free trade zones, more friendly investment climate, and provision of
subsidized financing is expected to amplify the industrial activity across the region through a higher involvement of the private
sectorand higher inflows of foreign direct investment.

There are also notable efforts across the Middle East and Africa by govemments to improve the housing conditions for their
populations which include higher spending on infrastructure and housing developments, incentives for private investors in the
construction sector, as well as initiatives to develop the mortgage markets which are expected to boost the demand for
manufactured housing products and services.

Development and reconstruction efforts across the Middle East are expected to continue to drive healthy demand for
manufactured housing products as the infrastructure and housing projects are implemented and the industrial and commercial
activities keep growing.

The implementation of the recommendations of the Africa Commission Report Dated April, 2005G, will also have an impact
on the demand for manufactured housing across the African market. The recommendations in that report among other
things, call for the doubling of the aid for Africa to improve the living conditions of the people and promotion of better trade
and investments across Africa.

Also, about US$ 4.5 billion pledged by a donors’ conference held in Norway in April 2005G for the rehabilitation of over six
million displaced Sudanese in Southern Sudan is expected to be a major factor in the future demand for the manufactured
housing in this market as this money will be mainly spent on the housing and infrastructure development (source: Norwegian
Ministry of Foreign Affairs website: http://www.odin.dep.no).

A number of mega projects planned across the region in a range of sectors including real estate, energy, and petrochemicals
sectors are also expected to result in a substantial demand for manufactured housing products to meet the temporary as well
as permanent housing needs for these projects. The sheer size of these projects is highlighted by the example of a recent
address by His Royal Highness Prince Mohammad bin Fahd bin Abdul Aziz of Saudi Arabia. Speaking at the First Saudi Mega
Projects Conference in Dammam in May 2005G, he highlighted the US$ 56 billion worth of investment opportunities in Jubail
2 industnal city according to AME Info (http://www.ameinfo.com). Similarly, the Yanbu 2 industrial city inaugurated in July 2005G
by the Custodian of the Two Holy Mosques King Abdullah bin Abdul Aziz of Saudi Arabia (Crown Prince at the time) is
expected to attract investments of US$ 306 billion according to AME Info (http:/lwww.ameinfo.com).

3.2.3 SECTOR LIFE-CYCLE

The industry life cycle is an important factor to consider in any business and provides valuable information on what strategic
actions to take for future predictions. It appears that while there remains a large demand for housing products in the Middle
Eastemn countries, many attractive future sales opportunities will come from the African region due to:

B Immense amounts of global aid pouring into the continent
®m  The shift of oil exploration companies from the Middle East region to African countries

Characterized by a normal growth rate, the manufactured housing products sector in the Middle East region is expected to
be in the mature stage of the industry life cycdle. However, Africa is reckoned to be in the development phase of the industry
life cycle. With proper execution and a well conceived strategy, a company can achieve higher growth in its revenues and
eamings than could be achieved in other sectors in the African market. Accordingly, a company accessing this market may be
able to maximize its eamings potential.
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4 THE COMPANY

4.1 OVERVIEW

Red Sea Housing Services Company (the “Company” or “Red Sea”), is a Saudi Arabian company operating in the
manufactured housing market in the Middle East, Afica and Asia. The Company sells and leases a wide range of
manufactured buildings for commercial and residential applications and offers quick and durable housing solutions to the oil &
gas, construction, and mining sectors as well as govemment and multilateral organizations (Please refer to section “Key
Products and Services”). Red Sea has three manufacturing facilities strategically located in Jubail, Jebel Ali and Accra (the latter
through its wholly-owned subsidiary Red Sea Housing Services (Ghana) Limited) to serve the growing demands of its clients
worldwide and has successfully completed projects in over 40 countries over the last 20 years.

Red Sea Housing Services company was formed as a Saudi general partnership with Commercial Registration Number
4030052466 dated 03/05/1406H (corresponding to 13/01/1986G). The Company was converted on 21/05/1991G
(corresponding to 07/11/1411H) into a Saudi limited liability company with Commercial Registration Number 2055006 |05
dated 26/10/1424H (comresponding to 20/12/2003G), as amended. The Company has two subsidiaries, the first of which —
Rea Sea Housing Services (Ghana) Limited — is a wholly owned Ghanaian limited liability company registered under
commercial registration number CA-14,06 | issued in Victoriaburg, Accra on 20/10/2004G. The second company — SARL Red
Sea Housing Services Algeria Ltd — is a 99% owned Algerian lmited lability company registered under commercial
registration number 189878 issued in Algiers on 08/03/2006G.

Pursuant to the Partners Resolution signed by the Existing Shareholders and notarized before the Notary Public of the
Chamber of Commerce and Industry in the Eastern Province on 29/6/1427H (Corresponding to 25/7/2006G), the Capital of
the company was increased from SAR 3 million to SAR 300 million through a transfer of SAR 147 million from retained
eamings as of November 30, 2005G and the injection of SAR 150 milion in new capital by the Dabbagh Group, on
December4, 2005G.

The Minister of Commerce and Industry has, pursuant to resolution No. 1801 dated 5/7/1427H (Corresponding to
30/712006 G), authorised the conversion of the Company into a joint stock company. The share capital of the Company is
SAR 300 million comprising thirty (30) million shares with a nominal value of SAR 10 each. Following completion of the
Offering (as defined below) and the conclusion of the Conversion General Assembly, an application will be submitted to the
Minister of Commerce and Industry requesting him to announce the conversion of the Company. The Company will be
considered duly converted into a joint stock company from the date of issuance of the Ministerial Resolution declaring its
conversion.

Exhibit 4.1: Ownership Structure of Red Sea

Pre-Offering Post-Offering

Shares Percent Capital (SAR)* Shares Percent Capital (SAR)*
Dabbagh Group Holding 24300000  81.00%  243,000000 15300000  51.00% 153000000
Company Limited
Tanmiah Commerdal Group 1200000  4.00% 12,000000 1200000  4.00% 12,000000
Supreme Foods Compary 1500000  500% 15000000 1500000  500% 15000000
Limited S .
National Scientific Company | 500000 5.00% 15,000,000 | 500000 5.00% 15,000,000
Limited s ' hatd '
Marketing and Commercial 1500000  500% 15,000000 1500000  5.00% 15000000
Agencies Company Limited Y ' e '
Offering Subscribers 0 0.00% 0 9000000  3000% 90000000
Total 30,000,000 10000% 300,000,000 30,000,000 10000% 300,000,000

FSARTU parvaluelshare
Source: Red Sea
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Following is a brief overview of Red Sea actual shareholders:

m Dabbagh Group Holding Company Limited: (Please refer to section “Dabbagh Group (The Selling
Shareholder)”)

®m Tanmiah Commercial Group Company Limited: Tanmiah Commercial Group Company Limited is a
limited liability company based in Jeddah. It was established in 14/10/1411 H under laws and
regulations applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and is an affiliate of Dabbagh Group Holding
Company Limited. Tanmiah Commercial Group Company Limited principally functions as a holding
company for Dabbagh Group's interests in the real estate sector.

m Supreme Foods Company Limited: Supreme Foods Company Limited is a private liability company
based in Riyadh. It was established in 06/04/1412 H under laws and regulations applicable in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and is a subsidiary of Dabbagh Group Holding Company Limited. Supreme
Foods Company Limited is a leading high quality food and distribution company which operates fully
integrated food production and distribution centers throughout the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the
neighboring GCC region enabling it to provide a wide range of innovative fresh and frozen food
products and services to customers throughout its target markets.

m National Scientific Company Limited: National Scientific Company Limited is a limited liability
company based in Jeddah. It was established in 28/04/1423 H under laws and regulations applicable in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and is a subsidiary of Dabbagh Group Holding Company Limited.
National Scientific Company Limited offers a comprehensive range of technical products and services
to customers throughout the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Bahrain and the United Arab Emirates, and
principally specializes in industrial and scientific chemicals, laboratory equipment, scientific instruments
and related research and training services.

m  Marketing & Commercial Agencies Company Limited: Marketing & Commercial Agencies Company
Limited is a limited liability company based in Jeddah. It was established in 30/12/1413 H under laws
and regulations applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and is a subsidiary of Dabbagh Group
Holding Company Limited. Marketing & Commercial Agencies Company Limited principally functions
as a holding company for Dabbagh Group's interests in the financial services sector, including interests
in investment banking and insurance activities.

Red Sea is a profitable and growing company with net income averaging 17% of revenues during the past three fiscal years
ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and 2005G. Return on equity over this period averaged 51% per annum. The revenues of
the Company grew from SAR |77.1 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003G to SAR 394.8 million for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2004G and SAR 4216 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005G. This translated into growth in
revenues of 123% and 7% during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004G and 2005G respectively. Net income of the
Company grew from SAR 227 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003G to SAR 63.0 million for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2004G and SAR 97.9 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005G. This transhkted into growth in net
income of 178% and 55% during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004G and 2005G respectively (Please refer to section
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”).

Building on its vast experience in design, planning, and production of manufactured housing, the Company continuously strives
to deliver high quality products and loyal service.

m Red Sea takes pride in its reputation for expertise, craftsmanship, durability and infrastructure work
evidenced by the fact that it is one of the manufactured housing companies in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia which is certified by Saudi Aramco.

m The Company is certified by Bureau Veritas Quality Intemational to the ISO 9001:2000 standard for
its quality management system in its production facilities in Jubail and Jebel Ali, and is in the process of
obtaining it forthe Republic of Ghana.

m Al imported material used in the manufacturing process meets the Saudi SASO quality standards.
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Enjoying considerable operating flexibility, Red Sea strives to meet its customers’ specific needs ranging from a one bedroom
unit to a multi-room hotel, a small guard house or a fully functional field hospital. Red Sea offers a broad range of housing
products with a proven track record of expertise in providing entire tumkey camp package solutions, ie. completely furmnished
sleeping accommodations, restaurants and recreational facilities, electricity and water utilities, roads, and gated security
infrastructure.

Red Sea has a large and diverse customer base with sales offices strategically located at Jubail in Saudi Arabia, Dubai in the
United Arab Emirates, and Accra in the Republic of Ghana as well as sales representative offices, agents, and site offices in the
Company's major target areas to serve existing customers and seek additional business.

Red Sea cumrently employs 1,315 personnel (968 full time employees and 347 contracted labor) and the Management is
highly experienced and qualified in the manufactured housing industry with a vast array of experience in both the Middle

Eastern and intemational markets (Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financia Condition and Results of Operations
please refer to section ""Executive Management”).

4.2 HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENT

Exhibit 4.2: Key Historic Developments

Year (G) Event

1986 e Formed as a Saudi general partnership known as Red Sea Housing Services Company
with a share capital of SAR 550 thousand

1991 e Converted into a Saudi limited liability company known as Red Sea Housing Services
Company Limited with a share capital of SAR 2 million

1991 e Manufacturing facility of the Company opened in Jubail, Saudi Arabia

1998 ® A manufacturing facility is established in the Jebel Ali Free Zone in Dubai, UAE

2002 e The Company is awarded ISO 900 1:2000 certification

2004 e Red Sea Housing Services (Ghana) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Red Sea, is

established in Accra, Republic of Ghana

2005 ® A manufacturing facility is established in Accra, Republic of Ghana

2006 e SARL Red Sea Housing Services Algeria Ltd, a 99% owned subsidiary of Red Sea is
established in Algena

2006 ® Increase of the share capital of the Company to SAR 300 million

Source: Red Sea

4.3 VISION STATEMENT, MISSION STATEMENT, AND CORPORATE
STRATEGY

4.3.1 VISION STATEMENT

“To be the supplier of choice forall major multinational oil & gas, and mining companies operating in our market area’”.
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4.3.2 MISSION STATEMENT

“To be totally committed in providing our customers with quality products that shall be delivered defect-free and on time”.

4.3.3 CORPORATE STRATEGY

Red Sea is one of the leading players in the manufactured housing markets of the Middle East, Africa, and Asia with particular
emphasis on oil & gas, construction, and mining sectors as well as govemment and multilateral organizations. The Company's
Management believes that Red Sea is recognized among its customers as a highly responsive provider of manufactured
housing products under challenging conditions, while maintaining high levels of quality and cost control. Red Sea's current
corporate strategy is based on its goal to consolidate its leadership position and create superior value for its shareholders
overthe long term.

In order to achieve this goal, Red Sea has based its corporate strategy on the following key objectives and performance
drivers:

Revenue growth: Growing by:

B Focusing on the most valuable and high growth market segments, especially oil & gas, and also
construction, mining, as well as govemment and multilateral organizations

® Increasing its market share in these markets through a sustained effort to enhance quality, pricing of
products and services, and reducing time of delivery
® [ncrease its cument customer base by identifying areas of significant opportunity for geographic

expansion outside its core markets, and more specifically acquire a higher market share in Africa and
expand into new markets in South America

m  Providing value added services (e.g. infrastructure work, transportation, leasing, owning and operating
camps etc) to the customers to generate additional revenues, healthier margins, as well as to increase
the attractiveness and sales of the products being bundled along with these services

Profitability: Enhancing the overall profitability of the Company by:

Prioritizing higher margin businesses

Reducing costs by effectively deploying the intellectual and technology resources of the company
Implementing cost control/monitoring mechanisms, and more specifically applying standardized project
management techniques and deploying integrated T systems (Enterprise resource planning)

®  Maintaining a pool of preferred suppliers with a dual objective of reducing input/raw material costs and
securing multiple sources of supply

Return on invested capital: Maximizing retum on invested capital by:

m Strategically placing the manufacturing and support facilities of the Company in areas of greater
opportunity (e.g Africa) and where market volume is expected to justify logistical investments creating
reduced product delivery time and pricing

® Increasing the production capacity and the assets utilzation thereof

Continuous product development: Consistently improving the product offering to respond to customer needs by:
m Debriefing marketing and installation teams to understand customers needs and identify ways to satisfy

them
m  Supporting the continuous process improvement culture and applying extemal best practice
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m Developing new methods of production and incorporating new production matenals to enhance the
quality and reduce the cost of the end product

Human resources excellence: Continuous enhancement of human resources excellence by:

®m  Attracting and retaining highly qualified and talented professionals

® Empowering management and employees along with effective control and accountability systems in
place

m Developing deep and special expertise in each functional area through training, development, and
focused operational experience

®m Ensuring high employee motivation by offering additional compensation based on individual success
and Company success

4.4 COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

Company’s position in large and growing markets: Red Sea’s management believes that the Company benefits from its
position in the important manufactured housing markets of the Middle East, Africa, and Asia. The Company’s main focus is on
the oil & gas, construction, and mining sectors as well as government and multilateral organizations. The importance of these
market segments is evidenced by the key characteristics of these regions including the abundance of natural resources,
ongoing industrial development, geo-palitical conditions, and the housing needs of the growing populations.

Comprehensive product range: Red Sea has developed a comprehensive range of products over the years to meet the
specific needs of its customers. Red Sea is recognized as being able to meet a wide range of housing requirements, with
either temporary or pemmanent structures, including accommodation units, offices, power generation, kitchen/dining units,
recreation units, laundry areas, labor quarters, drill/rig camps, dormitories, guard houses, hospitals/clinics, hotels, relief housing
fadilities, and schools. With products ranging from the single-section, moveable camp shelters to multi-section, luxury villas,
Red Sea strives to meet the growing manufactured housing demands of its diverse customer base using high quality products
tailored to the specific needs of each customer. Additionally, the Company offers a range of value added services to its
customers including lease, buy back, rental, camp management, and civil works, which not only bring additional revenues to
the Company but also help increase the sales of its core products through bundling and enhanced customer satisfaction.

Large, diverse, and loyal customer base: Red Sea's robust performance over the past several years is underpinned by a large
and diverse customer base, evidenced by the successful completion of hundreds of projects in over 40 countries over the
past 20 years. Red Sea’s array of customers stems from both public and private sectors, including intermational muttilateral
organizations, mining, and construction companies, governments, NGOs, public and private companies, and civilians. These
different customer demographics and their differing housing needs enable Red Sea to avoid over-dependence on any single
geographic or market segment.

Reputation for quality of products, superior customer service, and tumkey solutions: Red Sea’s management believes that the
company is perceived by its customers as being among the best providers of manufactured housing products and services in
the markets it serves with high ethical values in its customer dealings. In addition, the company's tumkey solutions that include
the design, the delivery, the assembly and the provision of civil and foundation works set Red Sea distinctly apart from the
competition. Red Sea also prides itself in being unique in working with its customers, by showing a high degree of flexibility to
optimize and tailor its products and services to match the specifications and economics desired by its customers.

Ability and willingness to deliver quickly under challenging cirumstances: Red Sea positions itself to be the most responsive
provider of manufactured housing products across the Middle East, Africa, and Asia thanks to the strategy of the Company to
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effectively manage inventories in order to meet the sudden demand surges, the high flexibility of its workforce, and the use of
the most appropriate delivery services.

Strategically located manufacturing facilities: Red Sea's existing manufacturing facilities are strategically located in the Middle
East and Africa in Jubail - Saudi Arabia, Jebel Ali Free Zone - UAE, and Accra - Republic of Ghana (the latter through its
wholly-owned subsidiary Red Sea Housing Services (Ghana) Limited). An overall production capacity in excess of 335000 m’
per year allows Red Sea to serve its dlients promptly and efficiently, delivering high quality products and solutions on tight
schedules.

Talented management team and workforce with a diverse and relevant experience: Red Sea is managed by a highly
experienced team of professionals, many of whom have more than 20 years of industry experience, mostly acquired within
Red Sea. The Executive Management team possesses extensive experience in both regional and intemational manufactured
housing markets with expertise in production and installation and other relevant disciplines such as procurement, supply chain
management, marketing, distribution, logistics, and finance. Having served more than 130 major customers in the last 20 years
across the Middle East, Africa, and Asia, the Red Sea management possesses a unique experience and insight into the core
markets of the Company. A large proportion of the Red Sea employees have technical skills in multiple areas of
manufacturing and installaton operations which helps to avoid operational disruptions that might occur due to any on site
emergency situation (Please referto section “Executive Management”).

Well reputed selling shareholder: Red Sea'’s Selling Shareholder, Dabbagh Group is one of the Middle East’s leading business
corporations comprising more than 28 autonomous companies with major interests in Real Estate Development, Food and
Agriculture, Energy, Technology, Media & Telecommunications, Trade and Financial Services sectors, currently operating in
various countries around the world.

4.5 EXAMPLES OF MAJOR PROJECTS ACCOMPLISHED

Over the years, the Company has completed a number of high profile projects, and prides itself on completing them in a
timely fashion and within budget. Few examples are presented below:

Saudi Arabia

In 1997G Red Sea built more than 10 residential housing compounds in Jeddah, comprising more than 175 housing units in
total, with a varety of product types tailored to specific customer needs and valued at SAR 11625 million. Khalidiah
Compound, Lotus Compound, and Al-Zahra Compound are some examples.

In 2001G Red Sea provided a SAR 43.125 million complete tumkey housing facility for 1,700 workers involved in a Gas Plant
in a remote area south of Riyadh, Saudi Arabia.

In 2002G Red Sea completed a SAR |31.25 million project considered the largest modular office building totaling 10,000 m2
forthe Jubail United Petrochemical Company (JUPC) in Saudi Arabia.

In 2004G Red Sea completed two major residential housing projects in Jubail totaling SAR 46.875 million and comprising
more than 200 housing units utilizing varying product specifications.

Chad
In 2003G and 2005G Red Sea delivered a 2,500 man camp for the oil & gas industry of Chad for a value of more than SAR
33.75 million.

Equatorial Guinea
From 2003G to date Red Sea supplied over SAR 1125 million of housing and office facilities for 5000 workers in developing
the gas fields of Equatorial Guinea.
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Greece
As part of the initial rebuilding effort resulting from the earthquake in 1999G, Red Sea was selected to provide 400 houses
valued at SAR 13.125 million. Red Sea was the first to deliver houses in this plan and set the stage for others to follow.

Kuwait
In 2002G Red Sea manufactured, delivered, and installed a 342 man camp including fumiture equipment and civil work and
valued at SAR 9 million.

Kyrgyzstan
In 2005G Red Sea completed a SAR 12.75 million project involving the construction of camps.

Nigeria
In 2003G and 2004G Red Sea manufactured, delivered and installed office facilities and camp housing at a Petrochemical
Facility valued at SAR 165 million.

Sudan
In 2004G and 2005G Red Sea delivered a total of |7 camps forthe United Nations valued at SAR 68.625 million.

In 2004G Red Sea manufactured, and installed 3 rig camps in addition to camp facilities valued at over SAR | | 25 milion

Tanzania
In 2004G and 2005G Rea Sea manufactured and installed a SAR 18.75 million office & kitchen/diner; air terminal building
including fumishings fora 500-man camp in Tanzania, Africa

4.6 KEY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

4.6.1 PRODUCT RANGE

Red Sea sells and leases a wide range of manufactured buildings in the markets of the Middle East, Africa, and Asia. With
products ranging from the single-section, moveable camp shelters to multi-section, luxury villas, Red Sea strives to meet the
growing manufactured housing demands of its diverse customer base.

Red Sea is recognized as serving a wide range of commercdial and residential housing requirements, with either temporary or
permanent structures, including accommodation units, offices, power generation, water treatment plants, kitchen/dining units,
recreation units, laundry areas, labor quarters, drill/rig camps, dormitories, guard houses, hospitals/clinics, hotels, relief housing
facilities, and schoals.

Although Red Sea is flexible to custom design and manufacture housing to customers’ specifications, the Company has also
developed various standard types of buildings. The following is a brief overview of standard products currently being offered
by Red Sea (the pictures shown below have been taken from existing Red Sea projects):

Sitemaster-3 Series

These are standard camp buildings utlized extensively for remote workforce camps and
offices that can be relocated from one project to another. Built to rugged specifications,
many of the Sitemaster units built in 1982 are still in use today. Sitemaster-3 Series is
designed to endure the extreme weather conditions in both hot and cold climates.
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Sitemaster-3 Roughneck

These are economical heavy duty buildings for g camps used for oilfield explorations.
The building is mounted on steel skid to provide flexibility and easy relocation from one
place to other. It is specifically designed to meet the housing needs in tough conditions
experienced in the ailfield areas. Sitemaster-3 Roughneck can be shipped in cube or in
knockdown configuration, depending on the client’s requirements.

Seaway Series

These buildings are designed to endure the tough weather conditions experienced in
the oilfield operations and exploration areas. These units are heavy duty with steel
skids to provide flexibility and easy relocation from one project to another. The
Seaway buildings are especially suitable for extreme climates.

The Seaway Series’ walls and ceilings are clad with PVC composite panels which are
specially manufactured in-house. The panels do not need repainting, are fire resistant,
easy to clean, and insect resistant.

The Seaway Series is designed to lst for 20 years or more in the toughest
environments. All container units used to build the Seaway Series are 1SO certified.
The containers come in standard 8'’x20" and 8'x40’ measurements. The Seaway Series can also be mounted on rolling wheels,
as required by customers.

Sitemaster-25 Series

This is the newest and an innovative product developed by Red Sea. Sitemaster-25 is a
revolutionary housing system, versatile and the very first of its kind in the manufactured
housing industry. Sitemaster-25 is applicable for both commercial and residential
applications.

Sitemaster-25 walls are constructed of Red Sea’s propriety PVC composite panels,
insulated with polystyrene insulation, manufactured at Red Sea’s facilies. Each
composite panel undergoes stringent quality control testing to ensue that they are of
required building standards and free from any defects.

Red Sea's PVC panels are environmentally friendly, fire and heat resistant, water proof, do not rust, never need repainting,
require low maintenance, termites and insect resistant, withstand extreme weather conditions, economical, with high
insulation value, and sound proof. These buildings can be packed for shipping, leading to low shipping costs.

Sitemaster-25 Roughneck
This is a heavy duty unit, made of PVC materials mounted on steel skids.
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Rolling Roughneck

Rolling Roughnecks are designed to meet tough weather conditions experienced in
oilfield operation and exploration. These units are heavy duty and mounted on wheels
to provide easy relocation from one site to another.

Rolling Roughneck interior walls and ceilings are clad with PVC composite panels. The
Rolling Roughneck is designed to last for 20 years or more in the toughest environments.
The units are available in various custom sizes (3mxém, 3mx/m, 3mx8m, 3mx9m,
3mx!|0m, 3mxI Im, 3mx12m). Other sizes are available on special order.

Steel Roughneck

Steel Roughnecks are designed to meet the tough weather conditions experienced in
oilfield operations and explorations. These units are heavy duty with steel skids to
provide flexibility and easy relocation from one project to another. Steel Roughnecks are
highly suitable for extreme climates.

The Steel Roughneck units can also be transported on wheels for frequent relocation
from site to site.

Premier Series

These are houses intended primarily
for residential applications. The
interior and exterior finishes are of
deluxe quality to create a more
permanent settled look while still
retaining full portability. Premier
Series houses are designed with
energy conservation features, such
as fully insulated walls, roofs,
windows, and doors. These houses -
are almost four times as energy efficient as conventional block structures. The sturdy construction blends |tself to a variety of
design applications, from single storey to two storey homes.

4.6.2 SERVICES

Red Sea provides a range of value added services to its customers in order to assist them in choosing the most suitable
solution for their specific needs. By bundling various services with its products, Red Sea is able to offer comprehensive
solutions to its customers and act as a “one stop shop” for manufactured housing. These value added services are geared
towards increasing the profile of the Company in the industry in addition to creating other profit sources. A brief overview of
the services currently provided by Red Sea to its customers is given below.

Designing

Red Sea has extensive experience in designing a diverse range of manufactured housing products ranging from single sleeping
units to multi-section units for use as villas, offices, restaurants, recreation, medical and other special purposes such as
convenience stores. This includes the building as well as interior designing of the projects being offered using advanced
computer aided simulation programs and state of the art techniques and know how. The Company's competence in
designing helps it to offer excellent added value to its customers.
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The Company's expertise in designing an entire camp to suit diverse needs of its customers helps it to prepare competitive
bidding proposals to win over the entire contract. This is especially valuable to the customer in cases of contact prior to the
issuance of their requests for proposal as it enables Red Sea to interact with the customer in formulation of the design
concepts better suited to the geography and enhances Red Sea's opportunity to secure the contract.

Turnkey Installations

Red Sea Housing strives to satisfy the customers' needs by offering a full installation service. This service facilitates the
utilization of the product by the customer within a minimum timeframe. Tumkey installations include: shipment of the
products, receipt of the products at port of discharge and delivery to the customer's site, offloading and installation of
products at the site, civil works required to make the products operational at the customer's site, and furnishing the products.
This service enables customers to focus all their efforts on their core activities while ensuring that important ancillary services
such as housing are being provided by professionals according to a predefined time plan.

Property Management

In addition to providing products for housing complexes, the Company offers the service of managing the property on behalf
of the customer. This service includes marketing the property, negotiating with third parties and finalizing lease or occupancy
agreements, operation and maintenance of the property, collection services, and financial booking. The Property management
activities were slowed down during 2004G and 2005G to focus on the production of prefabricated housing and respond to
the increasing demand for these products. In 2006G, Red Sea decided to increase its Property management activity level.

Product Rental/Leasing
Red Sea offers the luxury of manufacturing, installing, and then renting the products to customers. Accordingly, this service
provides many advantages to the customer; including the ability to focus on their core business rather than being distracted

by property management as well as reducing the upfront cash requirement. Additionally, the Company offers a range of value
added services to its customers including lease, buy back and rental.

4.7 CUSTOMER BASE

Over the years, Red Sea has developed strategic relationships with a number of customers which have commissioned the
Company's products and services on a recurrent basis. The vast customer base of the Company includes multinational oil &
gas, construction, and mining sectors as well as govemment and muttilateral organizations. The following table gives a
breakdown of the Company's net sales by customer segment for the fiscal years ended March 31,2003G, 2004G, and 2005G
as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 4.3: Revenues Breakdown by Customer Segment (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Oil & Gas / Construction 130,126 15637 203,624 48.3% 184930 212,650
Mining 22,000 0 10000  24% 0 19515
Government and muttilateral organizations 25,000 279,126 208,000 49.3% 122,751 41019
Total 177,126 394763 421,624 100% | 30768l 273,184

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea

4.8 GEOGRAPHIC COVERAGE

Red Sea takes pride in being able to assist in the improvement of human lives by meeting the housing needs of the people in
a large number of geographic markets. Over the past 20 years, the Company has served its customers in over 40 countries
across the Middle East, Africa, and Asia. The ability and willingness of the Company to serve its customers in a timely fashion
at any place including conflict and disaster zones is a key factor behind the cumrent market leading position of the Company in
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the manufactured housing markets of the Middle East, Africa, and Asia. The following table gives a geographic breakdown of
the Company’s net sales for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended
November 30,2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 4.4: Revenues Breakdown by Geography (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Middle East 99,864 331962 252815 60% 160,135 119,398
Africa 24,268 8,288 97921  232% 71477 77,775
Asia 52,994 54,513 70,888 168% 76,069 76,011
Total 177,126 394,763 421624 100% | 307,68l 273,184

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea

4.9 MANUFACTURING FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS

The manufacturing process at Red Sea is a production line process whereby the product moves through various workstations.
Each station has a particular process similar to an assembly line for products such as automobiles. The first station creates the
chassis and floor of the product, the next adds walls, and the next completes the roof, with the process continuing on down
the line until the final completion and inspection.

There are certain other manufacturing support processes taking place in the manufacturing facilities of Red Sea to produce
components used in different products. Such processes include typical industrial welding, sand blasting and painting, fiberglass
molding, and PVC extrusion among others.

The installation process varies depending on the nature of each product and the specification to which it is built. Some
products are installed on concrete foundation blocks spread even under each building unit according to a floor loading
calculation for each product. Others may be installed on a concrete slab and still others, such as drilling rig camps, may be
installed on a skid to enable the mobility from one site to another. All installation processes at Red Sea generally utilize
industrial handling equipment such as cranes, forklifts, and other miscellaneous hand tools.

4.9.1 MANUFACTURING FACILITIES OVERVIEW

Red Sea cumrently has three manufacturing facilities strategically located in Jubail - Saudi Arabia, Jebel Ali Free Zone - UAE,
and Accra - Republic of Ghana to meet the housing needs of its customers. These facilities currently manufacture, deliver, and
install all the housing products supplied by Red Sea to its customers across the Middle East, Africa, and Asia with a current
overall production capacity of 335000 m” per year. The yearly production reached 212259 m’ in March 31 2005G (Please
referto Exhibit 4.7 “Company’s Annual Production”).

The following table gives a breakdown of the Company’s assets value by operation for the eight months ended November
30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 4.5: Asset Value by Operation (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended November 30
2004G* 2005G
Jubail manufacturing facility 23,358 19,280
Jebel Ali Free Zone Operation 17,228 28,319
Accra Manufacturing facility 580 19,462
Total 41,166 67,061

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea
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Each facility is assisted by a marketing and sales department and all facilities coordinate their operations with each other to
achieve the best possible solution for each customer. Requests may come into either facility for quotations and proposals for
a wide variety of housing needs. Each request is jointly reviewed by the management and a decision is taken about which
type of product is the best solution for each specific customer's needs and how each facility can play a role in a successful
effort to provide the required products and solutions to the customers in the shortest possible time.

In many circumstances, one facility may build the products for customers served by other facilities, and forces are combined
as necessary to achieve the best results. Each facility has its own Plant Manager and a Field Construction Coordination that
supervise the manufacturing and installations of each project. Close coordination also takes place with the shipping
department as the product is completed and required in the field. Timing is important and the products may go by land, sea
orair depending on the customers' needs.

The following table gives a breakdown of the Company’s sales by operation for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G,
2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005 G.

Exhibit 4.6: Revenues Breakdown by Operation (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Property Management 7,064 1,570 0 0.0% 0 0
Jubail Operation 62,664 290877 226,135 53.6% 160,650 113,003
Jebel Ali Free Zone Operation 107,398 102316 195489 464% 147,031 159,436
Accra Operation 0.0% 0 745
Total 177,126 394,763 421,624 100% | 30768l 273,184

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea

4.9.2 JUBAIL MANUFACTURING FACILITY

This is the oldest of the two existing manufacturing facilities of the Company and was established in 1991G at Jubail, Saudi
Arabia, a strategic industrial location in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia with a well planned and developed infrastructure and
supporting industries. Currently, this facility mainly serves the demands of the local Saudi Arabian market as well as the
neighbouring GCC countries such as Kuwait and Bahrain.

Currently, 489 personnel (215 full time employees and 274 contracted labor) are employed at the Jubail facility which has an
annual production capacity of 140,000 m”. Though mostly constructing wood specifications, this facility is also capable of
producing other specifications including steel and PVC. With in-house architectural and design capablities using modem
computer-based designing systems; this faclity serves the housing needs of a diverse customer base with a host of innovative
products.

The manufacturing machinery and equipment installed in this facility include welding machines, overhead hoists, compressors,
fork lifts, sheet metal cutting and bending machines, and assorted carpentry, electrical and plumbing tools. This facility has in-
house maintenance and repair capabilities to cope with technical problems and ensure seamless operations.

4.9.3 JEBEL ALI FREE ZONE MANUFACTURING FACILITY

Red Sea’s Jebel Ali Free Zone manufacturing facilitiy has an annual production capacity of over 95000 m’. This facility is
capable of producing the whole product range being offered by Red Sea using wood, steel and PVC matenals. It was
established in 1998G at the Jebel Ali Free Zone in Dubai, UAE to cope with the growing intemational demand for the
Company's products.
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This facility primarily provides for the international operations of the Company. It is currently employing 551 personnel (478
full time employees and 73 contracted labor) and is @ modem and sophisticated facility equipped with the manufactured
housing technology and equipment and has in house architectural and design capabilities. This facility also houses the PVC
extrusion operations of Red Sea used to produce PVC panels for all of the manufacturing faciities of the Company as
needed.

The manufacturing machinery and equipment installed in this facility include welding machines, overhead hoists, compressors,
fork lifts, sheet metal cutting and bending machines, assorted carpentry, electrical and plumbing tools and PVC extrusion
machinery.

4.9.4 ACCRA MANUFACTURING FACILITY

Red Sea, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Red Sea Housing Services (Ghana) Limited, recently established a new
manufacturing facility in Accra, Republic of Ghana in West Africa to meet the strong and growing demand for its products
and services in Africa.

The new facility employs 275 full time employees and is mainly aimed at placing the Company's manufacturing operations
closer to its customers across Africa, to improve the time of delivery. This facility has been setup with an initial capacity of
100,000 m® per year and is planned to be equipped to produce wood, PVC, and steel based products. Due to the relative
lack of steel fabrication capabilites in the area, this facility will include a steel fabrication department with the intent to
produce, in addition to housing products, various steel fabricated structures utilzed mainly in the oil & gas industries. This will
be an add-on product to be offered to the Company’s customers in the oil & gas sector.

Exhibit 4.7: Company’s Annual Production

‘ Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30

2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G 2005G
Company's annual production (m?) 129 485 218,58l 212,259 ‘ 157911 134,417
Company's annual production (units) 3,703 5,732 5403 3929 3,754

Source: Red Sea

4.10 PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

Product development plays an important role in the success of the company. Accordingly, over the past 3 year, the company
developed new methods of production in order to:

®  Enhance the quality of the end product
®  Improve customer utility satisfaction
B Reduce costs
m  Increase efficiency through reducing time consumption for production and installation.
The conventiona products utilized in the production are wood and metal; however, consequent to thorough product
development initiative, the Company developed a new product utilzing PVC extrusion developed from polyethylene resin
that has the capability to replace wood and metal and outperform these materials in many ways. The advantages of the new
PVC product are:

Cheaperimport and stocking requirements
The product is faster and easier to assemble
The product is fire, rust, and termite resistant.
Much less maintenance is required.

Extended life expectancy of the product.

The new composite panel is being currently utilized in several Red Sea products (Please refer to section “Product Range").
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4.11 MARKETING AND SALES
Each manufacturing facility of the Company is responsible for sales in a particular area with exception in the situations where
the project size or required product specifications might require the involvement of another facility. The areas usually served

by the manufacturing facilities of the Company are:

Exhibit 4.8: Markets served by Red Sea Manufacturing Facilities

Jebel Ali Free Zone, UAE Jubail, Saudi Arabia Accra, Ghana
Afghanistan Bahrain South America
Azerbaijan Iraq West and South Africa
India Jordan
Iran Kuwait
Kazakhstan Lebanon
Kyrgyzstan Qatar
North and East Africa Saudi Arabia
Oman Syria
Pakistan
Tajikistan
Turkmenistan
United Arab Emirates
Uzbekistan
Yemen

Source: Red Sea

In reality, there might be overlapping of these sales areas served by different manufacturing facilities of the Company
depending on the customer and factory production at the time of the projects. Different manufacturing facilities of the
Company coordinate sales and production very closely, with some of the larger projects being supplied by more than one
facility. Additionally, some projects are sold by one manufacturing facility with the production being camied out entirely at
another manufacturing facility of the Company. This helps rationalize the capacity utilization of different manufacturing facilities
of the Company.

Each manufacturing facility has its own independent sales and production engineering departments. All design, engineering,
and estimating works are performed in-house utilizing qualified civil, mechanical, electrical, and structural engineers supported
by a staff of AutoCAD operators.

The Company's General Manager for International Business Development maintains and develops relationships with the
existing customers, and looks for new opportunities in the targeted industries and beyond. He also coordinates the
Company's effort in responding to the various requests for quotation with the necessary sales and marketing departments.

4.11.1 MARKETING AND SALES STRATEGY

The basic philosophy behind the marketing and sales strategy of Red Sea is “Total Customer Satisfaction” and is based on
two main principles:

Clear marketing strategy driven by deep customer insight:

m Careful targeting of the market segments and deep understanding of their characteristics

m  Clearly defining the objectives for each target segment

m  Understanding of the overall strategic fit between objectives for each target segment and the overall
Company objectives

m  Understanding the specific needs of each customerand the drivers behind those needs
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Distinctive value proposition with strong branding:

m  Clear understanding of the specific product features and services that satisfy the specific needs of the
customers

m  Understanding of the key features that distinguish the Company’s products and services from the
competition

m  Understanding of the customer service being offered by the Company

m  Clearly defined pricing strategy and understanding of the appropriate pricing levels for different
products and services

Red Sea is adopting many marketing and promotional means in orderto achieve its objectives. Among these means are:

Direct marketing
The Company initiates many direct marketing activities such as sending promotional packages to a list of customers by mail or
email in orderto increase awareness of the company.

Event sponsorship
The Company is responsible for sponsoring events related to targeted industries. Among these events, Red Sea co-sponsored
the Oil Barons' event in Dubai which is a premier event in the oil industry.

Customer database

The marketing departments input all coordinates of potential and existing customers met during events and exhibitions in the
Company'’s customer database. Moreover, the marketing personnel try to maintain contact with the customers through direct
marketing activities.

Online marketing
One of the major channels utilized to establish contact and enhance awareness among customers was to launch Red Sea's
website (Www.redseahousing.com) that promotes the company’s profile, products, services, achievements, and capabilities.

Media marketing

Red Sea utilizes media, mainly specialized publications and magazines, to reach its customers. The specialized publications and
magazines selected are mainly related to the targeted industries. Among these are the “Engineering News Record” and the
"Pipeline Magazine”.

Sales Representative and Agents

Red Sea has sales representatives and agents located at strategic sites around the world. This is in order to be closer to the
customers and to respond in a very timely manner with “boots on the ground”. These sales representatives and agents are
located in Houston (USA), Calgary (Canada), Luanda, (Angola), Sanaa (Yemen), Doha (Qatar), and Tripoli (Libya).

4.12 DISTRIBUTION & LOGISTICS

Red Sea has extensive warehousing and storage facilities at its current facilities in Jubail, Saudi Arabia Jebel Ali, UAE and Accra,
Republic of Ghana. With a broad geographic presence, Red Sea has 20 years of experience in shipping and installing
manufactured housing products in over 40 countries around the world. The table below describes the locations where Red
Sea has provided housing solutions:
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Exhibit 4.9: Countries in which Red Sea has completed Projects

| — Albania Il — Egypt 21 — Kenya 31 —Saudi Arabia
2 — Algena |2 — Equatonal Guinea 22 — Kuwait 32 —Somalia

3 —Angola |3 — Eritrea 23 — Kyrgyzstan 33 —Sudan

4 — Aruba |4 — Ethiopia 24 —Libya 34 —Syna

5 — Azerbaijan |5 —Gabon 25 — Madagascar 35 — Tajikistan

6 — Bahrain |6 —Ghana 26 — Nigeria 36 — Tanzania

7 — Cameroon |7 — Greece 27 — Oman 37 — Turkmenistan
8 — Chad I8 — India 28 — Pakistan 38 -UAE

9 — Curacao |9 — Jordan 29 — Qatar 39 — Uzbekistan
|0 — Djibouti 20 — Kazakhstan 30 — Republic of Congo 40 — Yemen

Source: Red Sea

Red Sea products are shipped by land, sea or air, anytime, anywhere in the Middle East, Africa and Asia. The buildings are
normally shipped in flat-packed format when possible, thereby minimizing shipping volume and overall shipping cost for the
clients. Wet and mechanical areas such as bath cubes and kitchen modules are shipped fully assembled, thereby eliminating
plumbing work at the site. Site installation can be carried out with a small crew under Red Sea supervision.

4.13 DABBAGH GROUP (THE SELLING SHAREHOLDER)

Dabbagh Group Holding Company Limited (*Dabbagh Group”), a limited liability Company based in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia is one of the Middle East's leading business corporations, comprising more than 28 autonomous companies operating
in various countries around the world. Operating successfully for over 40 years, Dabbagh Group was founded in 1962G by
Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al-Dabbagh, its principal shareholder, who graduated from Cairo University in 1946G and
became the first Agricultural Engineer and Minister for Agriculture in Saudi Arabia. A vision to contribute towards the needs
of an emerging nation placed him among those who pioneered Saudi Arabia’s program of irmgation and cultivation.

On leaving Government Service in 1962G, Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al-Dabbagh established his company based initially
on Agriculture and Engineering and a philosophy of professional, strategic and long-term management thinking. By the tum of
the century, Mr. Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al-Dabbagh's vision of a global operating group of companies had been fully
realized with 28 autonomous companies, operating in diverse businesses in several intemational markets. Today, Dabbagh
Group's Portfolio is comprised of five diversified and strategic portfolios:

Real Estate Development

Food and Agriculture

Energy

Technology, Media & Telecommunications
Trade and Financial Services
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5

5 CORPORATE STRUCTURE

.1 ORGANISATION OVERVIEW

Red Sea’s organisation is mainly reflective of its corporate make up designed along its manufacturing facilities as well as
centraly provided support functions like intemal audit, Investor relations, IT, marketing, sales, distribution, finance and
accounting, legal, and business development.

Exhibit 5.1: Red Sea Organisation Overview

1. Managing
Director
2. Chief Financial 3. G.M. 4. G.M.
Officer Int. Bus. D Admini {
|
| 1 |
5. Accounts 6. Asset 7. Human Resources
Manager Manager Manager
L 1
8. G.M.Jubail 9. G.M. Jebel Ali 10. G.M. Accra
Operations Operations Operations
1. Plant 1 12. Sales 13. Sales 1 14. Plant 15. Sales 1 16. Plant
Manager Manager Manager Manager Manager Manager

17. Administration
Manager

21. Supply Chain
Manager

24. Field Construction
Coordination

18. Shipping & Trans.

Manager

- Proposed

Actual

| 19. Supply Chain
Manager

| _ 20. Administration
Manager

| 22. Quality Control

| 23. Supply Chain
Manager

Manager

| _ 25. Safety/Health &
Env. Manager

|__26. Field Construction
Coordination

_ 27. Field Construction
Coordination

Don B. Sumner

2. Daniel M. Meikleham

3. Glen D. Warren 4. John N. Moon

5.

Kohinoor Noushad

9. Don B.Sumner

6. Randy Gehol
10.Mark M. Sumner

7. Jun Repato 8. Donnie B. Sumner

I'I.Craig Conklin

|2. Mike Martinez

| 3. Brian Goldberg

14.Patrick Cain

I5.]ohn Micock

16.]erry Mclaine

|7.]Jay Castro |8. Yasser Samir 19.Russell Jahn 20. Demonthenes Palamos
21.Zaldy Espino 22.Danilo Castillo 23.Donald Ardelian 24. Hugh Care
25. Mark Farrell 26.Paul Rainey 27.Emesto Dayawon

Source: Red Sea
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Red Sea is cumrently being managed through a combination of centrally provided services through the head office as well as
decentralized management at the fadilities level due mainly to the fact that the Company has multiple manufacturing facilities
located at different places across the Middle East and Africa and complete centralzation of operations is not feasible.

The head office in Jubail is led by the Company's Managing Director who is the overall head of the Company's
management. He is supported by the Chief Financial Officer; General Manager — Intemnational Business Development, and
General Manager— Administration of Red Sea. The head office of Red Sea is responsible mainly for the overall supervision of
the Company's business, setting its long term strategy, and business development objectives. Additionally, the head office of
the Company currently provides a number of support services to all of its manufacturing facilities.

The Jubail and Accra operations of Red Sea are organized and managed in a similar way with a General Manager (“GM") of
the facility being the overall head of the respective operation. The GM of each of these operations is supported and reported
to by the Plant Manager, the Administration Manager, the Supply Chain Manager, the Field Construction Coordinator, and
the Sales Manager. Though these managers report directly to the GM of their respective operation, in certain cases, they can
directly coordinate with the central departments (e.g. finance, administration, business development, etc) at the head office on
an as needed basis.

The Jebel Ali operation is organized in a slightly different manner. The General Manager of this operation is supported by
the Plant Manager, the Supply Chain Manager, the Quality Control Manager, the Safety / Health & Environment Manager, the
Field Construction Coordinator, the Sales Manager, and the Shipping and Transportation Manager. Though these managers
report directly to the GM of the Jebel Ali operation, in certain cases, they can directly coordinate with the central
departments (e.g. finance, administration, business development, etc) at the head office on an as-needed basis.

The Company is currently finalzing and intends to put in place upon completion of the Offering a new structure whereby the
Board of Directors (the "Board”) will rely on two specific committees, namely, the Audit Committee and the Governance,
Compensation & Nomination Committee to monitor and enforce its new corporate governance policy. The Audit
committee will be supported by the Internal Audit and the Investor Relations & Compliance functions. These functions do
not report to the Managing Director but to the Board of Directors in orderto ensure their independence.

These committees will operate in accordance with applicable law, and the applicable CMA Listing Rules. The Board shall
ensure that:
m All committees have written and approved terms of reference explaining their roles and responsbilities;
® Minutes are prepared for all meetings held and copies of such minutes are reviewed by the full Board;
and
m Fach committee’s powers and authority is clearly specified.

The Audit Committee is primarily role is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in respect to (a) the
financial statements and other information provided by Red Sea to its stockholders (b) the Company's compliance with all
legal and regulatory requirements, (c) the auditors' qualifications and independence and (d) the performance of the
Company's financial management.

The Governance, Compensation and Nomination Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors to assist it in (i)
identifying individuals qualified to become Board members and to recommend to the Board the director nominees, (ii)
recommending to the Board the corporate governance guidelines, code of ethics and other policies, relating to corporate
governance, and (i) overseeing the Board's annual review of its performance (iv) approving and evaluating the compensation
plans, policies, and programs of the Company.

The Internal Audit's primary role is to identify, monitor and report financial and operational risks. Its objective is to provide
an independent assessment of the soundness of risk management strategies and practices, management control frameworks
and practices, and information used for decision-making and reporting.

The Investor Relations & Compliance function (i) ensures that the Company is compliant with the legal and regulatory
requirements of the Capital Market Authority of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, (i) overseas all public communications
ensuring that price sensitive information is properly handled (jii) prepares and distributes annual and interim financial reports
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prepared by the investor relations team (iv) acts as a primary contact for Red Sea's shareholders (v) keeps the public and the
Company’s shareholders wel informed of all major developments within the Company through publicly announced financial
performance reports, and annually at the Company’s Annual General Assembly.

5.2 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Company's Board of Directors (‘Board of Directors”) is to provide effective guidance and
implementation of internal controls to safeguard the interests of the Company.

Red Sea believes strongly that good corporate govemance is a requirement for the Company's long-term business success.
The Company's success to date has been the direct result of the Company's key business strategies and the highest business
standards. The Board will have the necessary authority and practices in place to review and evaluate the Company's
operations and to make decisions that are independent of the Company’s management.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for defining and implementing the corporate policies of the Company,
appointment of executve officers and authorized signatories of the Company, and supervision over the Company's
management. The Board of Directors is also responsible for organizing the Shareholders’ meetings and carrying out
Shareholders’ resolutions.

The Composition of the Company’s Board of Directors is as follows:

Exhibit 5.2: Directors

Name Title
I. Dr. Majid Abdullah Al Kassabi Chairman
2. Engr Hussein Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al Dabbagh Director
3. Mr. Jamal Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al Dabbagh Director
4. Mr. Don Brown Sumner Managing Director
5. Mr. John Hugh Parry Director
6. Mr.Mohammed Husnee Jazeel Director
7. Mr. Tareq Abboud Hassan Director
8. * Director
9. * Director
*To be apponted as independent members by the Shareholders in the Conversion General Assembly to take place following the
Offeting

Source: Red Sea

The Company shall be managed by a Board of Directors composed of nine (9) members to be appointed by the Ordinary
General Assembly for a term of three years.

The following are short biographies of the Directors:

Dr. Majid Abdullah Al Kassabi

Chaiman, Saudi

Dr. Majid Abdullah Al Kassabi, aged 45 years, Saudi national, holds a Ph.D degree in Engineering Management (with honors)
from Missouri University, USA (1985G), a master degree in Engineering Management (with honors) from Missouri University,
USA (1983G), a master degree in Civil Engineering (with honors) from Berkley University, USA (1982G), and a bachelor
degree in Civil Engineering (honors) from Portland University, USA (1981G). His professional experience includes Assistant
Professor in Industrial Engineering department of College of Engineering at King Abdul Aziz University Jeddah, Director
General of Kara Construction Est, Secretary General of Jeddah Chamber of Commerce & Industries, and Director General of
Sultan bin Abdulaziz Al-Saud Foundation. His current memberships include:

m  Board Member, Saudi Cables Company, |420H to date
®  Member of Foundation, Board of Directors of Jeddah Holding Company
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Board Member, The Savola Group, June 200 1G to date

Board Member, Almarai Company

Board Member, General Ports Authority, |420H to date

Board Member, Al-Furousiya at Holy Makkah Area 1420H to date

Board Member of Saudi Council of Engineering

Consultative Organization for Economica Affairs Higher Economical Council
Higher Organization for developing “Hail’ Region

Engr. Hussein Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al Dabbagh

Director, Saudi

Engr Hussain Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al Dabbagh, aged 54 years, Saudi national, holds a Bachelor degree in Civil
Engineering from University of Texas in Arlington, USA (1983G). He is a member of the Saudi Engineering Committee and is
Managing Director of the Consulting and Engineering Bureau, Managing Supervisor of REEM (a Dabbagh Group company), a
Manager of Tanmiah Commercial Group Company Limited and General Manager of:

Advanced Petroleum Services Limited

Express Quality Automotive Services Company Limited
GulfPower Intemational

Intemational Saudi Logistics and Electronics Company Limited
National Scientific Company

Gulf Cooperation Insurance Company

Intemational Projects Developers

He is also a member of the board of directors of Dabbagh Group Holding Company Limited.

Mr. Jamal Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al Dabbagh

Director, Saudi

Mr. Jamal Abdullah Mohammed Ali Al Dabbagh, aged 45 years, Saudi national, holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from King Saud University, Saudi Arabia (1999G). He is Agricultural Committee Member at Chamber of Commerce
Riyadh — Pouttry Committee, member of the Saudi Cooperative Association of Poultry Producers, Managing Director of
Supreme Foods Company, a Manager of Tanmiah Commercial Group Company Limited and General Manager and member
of the board of directors of Dabbagh Group Holding Company Limited. He is also a member of the board of directors of the
Pure Breed Chicken Company.

Don Brown Sumner

Managing Director, American

Don Brown Sumner, aged 53 years, American National, joined Red Sea in 1986G. He has a thirty-two years work experience
in the manufactured housing and construction business, with twenty-seven years of that in the Middle East, Saudi Arabia, and
the CIS (Kazakhstan). Over the last twenty years, he has built Red Sea to its present level leading the Company's
management team and manages the Jebel Ali manufacturing operations of Red Sea. He holds a high school degree from the
United States of America.

Mr. John Hugh Parry

Director, British

Mr. John Hugh Parry, aged 60 years, British National, is Chief Operating Officer of Dabbagh Group, and serves as a member
of the Dabbagh Group’s Executive Committee. Prior to his appointment as Chief Operating Officer, he served as Vice
President for Strategic Operations, and was responsible for the Dabbagh Group's overall strategic development. Prior to that,
and for over nine years, he served as head of the Dabbagh Group’s Food & Agriculture Portfolio. He has previously served as
Sales & Marketing Director of Moy Park Foods Ltd. and Commercial Director of Sims Food Group Plc. He studied Business
Administration in Wales, and is a member of both the British Institute of Management and the Chartered Institute of
Marketing.
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Mr. Mohammed Husnee Jazeel

Director, Sri Lankan

Mr. Mohammed Husnee Jazeel, aged 46 years, Sri Lankan National, is currently the Chief Financial Officer of Dabbagh Group.
He is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, UK (2003G) and counts nearly 25 years of experience
in the fields of audit practice, corporate finance and general management. Prior to joining Dabbagh Group, he had a successful
career at PricewaterhouseCoopers, serving them with professional achievements in the many countries where he was based:
Sri Lanka, Singapore and Malawi. He also serves as a director of many other overseas subsidiaries and affiliates of the
Dabbagh Group.

Mr. Tareq Abboud Hassan

Director, Jordanian

Mr. Tareq Abboud Hassan, aged 35 years, Jordanian National is General Counsel of Dabbagh Group, and serves as a
member of the Group’s Executive Committee. He has responsbility for all legal matters affecting Dabbagh Group companies.
Prior to joining Dabbagh Group, he was a Senior Associate in the Jeddah office of White & Case LLP. Prior to that, he was an
Associate in the Corporate and Energy Practice Groups of Stroock & Stroock & Lavan LLP in New York City. He holds a
Doctor of Law degree from Georgetown University (1995G), a Master of Law degree from the London School of Economics
and Political Science (1998G), and a Bachelor of Arts degree from Columbia University (1992G). He is also a graduate of
Deerfield Academy and The Eaglebrook School. He was admitted to the New York Barin 1998, and is a member of the
New York City and American Bar Associations.

5.3 EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Red Sea is managed by a highly experienced and qualified management team with a vast array of experience in both the
Middle Eastem and intermational markets, operating under a transparent and accountable corporate culture. The current
senior management team is as follows:

Exhibit 5.3: Red Sea Executive Management
Age  Service with Red Sea

Name Title Nationality
(Years) (Years)
Don B. Sumner Managing Director of Red Sea and General USA 53 20
Manager of Jebel Ali Operations
Daniel M. Meikleham Chief Financial Officer of Red Sea UK 62 05
Glen D. Warren General Manager Intemational Business USA 56 19
Development of Red Sea
John N. Moon General Manager Administration of Red Sea USA 58 20
Donnie B. Sumner General Manager of Jubail Operations USA 33 14
Mark M. Sumner General Manager of Accra Operations USA 43 15
Craig Conklin Plant Manager of Jubail Plant USA 37 10
Patrick Cain Plant Manager of Jebel Ali Operations Canada 39 4
Jerry Mclaine Plant Manager of Accra Operations Canada 37 |

Source: Red Sea

Don B. Sumner
Managing Director of Red Sea and General Manager of Jebel Ali Operations
(Please referto section “Board Of Directors”)
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Daniel M. Meikleham

Chief Financial Officer of Red Sea

Daniel M. Meikleham has been retained by Red Sea as the Company's CFO. He has forty-six years of experience in various
industries, including Industrial Manufacturing, Military, Industrial Relations, Insurance, Management Consulting, Risk
Management, Securities, [T, Corporate Finance and Compliance in both private and public corporations. He has held positions
as Director of Finance and CFO of US and Canadian public and private corporations. He studied commercial practice and
finance at the Central College of Commerce and Distrbution, Glasgow, Scotland and advanced management and intemal
audit courses with the Royal London Mutual Insurance Society, City of London, In 1973G, he emigrated to Canada where he
studied Insurance and Risk Management at the University of Calgary, Canada.

Glen D. Warren

General Manager Intemational Business Development of Red Sea

Glen D. Warren joined Red Sea in 1986G. He has twenty-nine years of overall experience in construction, maintenance, and
operations with twenty-one years in the Middle East (Kuwait, Yemen, and Saudi Arabia). He is responsible for setting
standards of marketing and on-site civil works. His qualifications include Certificate in Civil Engineering from US Air Force
Technical School, Certificate in Contract Law from George Washington University, Certificate in Contract Administration
from George Washington University, Diploma in Project Management from George Washington University, and Bachelor of
Science in Business Administration from Robert Kennedy University, United States of America in 2000G.

John N. Moon

General Manager Administration of Red Sea

John N. Moon joined Red Sea in 1986G. He has thirty-one years experience in the Manufactured Housing industry with
twenty-two years in the Middle East, Africa, and the CIS. He has the overall responsbility of the human resources and
administration functions within Red Sea. John holds bachelor's degree in Industrial Engineenng from the Georgia Institute of
Technology in 1971G and a Masters of Business Administration from Georgia State University, United States of America in
1972G.

Donnie B. Sumner

General Manager of Jubail Op erations

Donnie B. Sumner joined Red Sea in 1991G. He has fourteen years experience in the manufactured housing industry
including field erection and operations. Donnie has recently taken responsibility for all the Jubail Operations. He holds a high
school degree from the United States of America.

Mark M. Sumner

General Manager of Acaa Operations

Mark M. Sumner joined Red Sea in 1990G. He has twenty years experience with fifteen years in Saudi Arabia in the field of
modular building production, field construction, and maintenance. He has recently been relocated from Jubail, Saudi Arabia
where he had supervision responsibilities for all the manufacturing and construction operations in Saudi Arabia. He is now
responsible for all the Company’s operations in Accra Republic of Ghana. He holds a high school degree from the United
States of America.

Craig Conklin

Plant Manager of Jubail Operations

Craig Conklin joined Red Sea in 1995G. He has ten years experience in the production and installation of modular buildings.
He is responsible for the production operations at the Jubail plant in Saudi Arabia. Prior to joining Red Sea, he served with
Ocala and Florida Fire Department. He holds a high school degree from the United States of America.

Patrick Cain

Plant Manager of Jebel Ali Op erations

Patrick Cain joined Red Sea in 2001G. He has fifteen years experience in all aspects of factory built housing including field
erection and operations. He is responsible for production in the Jebel Ali plant and field operations. He holds a diploma in
Inventory Control & Supply Chain Management from the Okanogan University College, and a degree in Business
Administration & Marketing Management from the Southern Alberta Institute of Technology, Canada.
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Jerry MclLaine

Plant Manager of Accra Operations

Jerry Mclaine joined Red Sea in 2005 following the expansion of the Company’s manufacturing operations to Republic of
Ghana. His responsibilities include production planning, resource allocation, budgeting, performance management, recruiting,
direct supervision, coaching and technical training at the Republic of Ghana operations of the Company. He holds a BSc
Chemistry degree (1991 G) from Saint Francis Xavier University and an MBA (2006G) from Athabasca University, Canada.

5.4 EMPLOYEES

Red Sea currently employs 968 full time personnel with varying degrees of experience and relevant expertise in the
production of manufactured houses or related support functions including marketing, sales, finance, accounting, procurement,
and general administration. A large number of Red Sea employees have experience and expertise in multiple functions
providing operating flexibility to cope with demand fluctuations and dealing with contingencies.

The Red Sea work force comprises a diverse mix of nationalities and backgrounds creating a unique atmosphere for cross-
fertilization of ideas. This work force is spread across different manufacturing, sales, and support facilities as well as site offices
to provide construction and erection along with a host of other value added services to the customers. The distribution of full
time work force of the Company across different operations for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and 2005G
is set out in the table below.

Exhibit 5.4: Full Time Employees’ Breakdown by Operation

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 Eight months ended November 30

2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G 2005G
Jubail, Saudi Arabia 225 225 212 218 215 22.2%
Jebel Ali Free Zone, UAE 334 384 418 400 478 49.4%
Jeddah, Saudi Arabia 60 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Accra Operation 0 0 0 0 275 28.4%
Total 619 609 630 618 968 1 00%

Source: Red Sea
The following table highlights the breakdown of the Company'’s full time employees by function as of November 30, 2005G.
Exhibit 5.5: Full Time Employees’ Breakdown by Function

Eight months ended November 30, 2005G

Production Support* Total Employees
Jubail, Saudi Arabia 193 22 215 22.2%
Jebel Ali Free Zone, UAE 454 24 478 49.4%
Accra Operation 259 16 275 284%
Total 906 62 968 100%

* Indudes (Human resources, finance, IT, etc...)
Source: Red Sea

In addition to the full time employees as shown in “Exhibit 54", Red Sea contracts certain amount of work force through
employment agencies.
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The following table highlights the breakdown of total Red Sea work force as of November 2005G including the full time
employees, contracted laborand total number of employees by operation.

Exhibit 5.6: Total Employees' Breakdown by Operation

Eight months ended November 30, 2005G

Full Time Employees Contracted Labor Total Employees
Jubail, Saudi Arabia 215 274 489 37.2%
Jebel Al Free Zone, UAE 478 73 551 41.9%
Accra Operation 275 0 275 209%
968 347 1,315 100%

Total

Source: Red Sea

In order to ensure high employee motivation and better alignment of interests of the Company’s employees and
Shareholders, Red Sea distributes 10% of its Profit before Zakat and management bonus among its employees (Please refer
to section “Remuneration of Directors and Management’). The employee bonus amounted to SAR 8.6 million for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2005G and SAR 6.6 million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004G. This is in addition to the
regular salaries paid to the employees of the Company.

Due to the global nature of Red Sea’s operations, the Company complies with Saudi Law for Saudi Workers, UAE Law for
Dubai workers and the Republic of Ghana Law for Ghana Workers.

The total number of Saudi nationals employed in the Jubail operation amounted to 45 as of November 30, 2005G, which is
equivalent to 21 % of the Company's workforce in Saudi Arabia.

Red Sea complies fully with the saudization requirements, and received a saudization certificate from the Ministry of
Employment dated 6/2/1427H.

5.5 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Good corporate govemance is seen as crucial to the success of the Company which requires the implementation of a clear
framework for transparency and disclosure to ensure that the Board of Directors acts in the best interests of the
Shareholders and present a fairand true picture of the Company'’s financial condition and results of operations.

The Company is currently finalizing and intends to put in place upon completion of the Offering a formal corporate
governance policy with a view to ensuring that the Company’s corporate govemance guidelines meet high standards. Such a
framework will have a positive impact for all the stakeholders of the Company including Shareholders, employees, and the
society among others.

The following is a summary of Red Sea’s proposed corporate governance framework:

Shareholders’ General Assembly

Shareholders shall be kept well informed of all major developments within the Company through extensive interaction,
provision of periodic financial performance reports, and promoting the participation of non-institutional Shareholders in the
Company'’s Annual General Assembly.

Board of Directors

A competent Board of Directors shall be ultimately responsible for running the Company, to provide effective leadership and
maintain a sound system of intemal controls to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the Company.
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Independent Non Executive Directors

To further improve the governance structure, 2 independent directors will be nominated. Independent directors refer to the
directors who hold no posts in the Company other than the position of director, and who maintain no relations with the
Company and its major shareholder that might prevent them from making objective judgment independently.

Chairman and Managing Director
Clear guidelines will be provided as to the responsibility sharing between the Managing Director and the Chairman of the
Board, in orderto ensure a balanced power-sharing and authority.

Board's Balance

The majorty of the Board of Directors shall be non-executive directors (these directors will hold no posts in the Company
other than the position of director) in order to provide objectivity and balance to the Board of Directors decision making
process.

Presentation of Financial and Other Information

The Board of Directors’ shall be responsible for presenting to the Shareholders a true and fair picture of the Company's
financial performance. Additionally, there shall be a mechanism in place to ensure that the Board of Directors receives the
relevant information in a timely fashion, to enable it to effectively fuffill its obligations.

Appointment and Re-election to the Board of Directors
A formal and transparent mechanism will be put in place at the Company for the appointment of new directors. Additionally,
all directors shall be required to submit themselves for re-election every 3 years.

Committees of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors shall form committees to enable it to ensure better management of the Company. The Board of
Directors shall ensure that:

B All committees have written and approved terms of reference explaining their roles and responsbilities;

m Minutes are prepared for all meetings held and copies of such minutes are reviewed by the full Board;
and

m Fach committee’s powers and authority is clearly specified.

Code of conduct and business ethics

The Company's "Code of Conduct and Business Ethics" manual sets out intemal guidelines, controls and procedures
regarding employee conduct. Employee misconduct could result in violation of law by the Company, regulatory sanctions,
financial liability and/or serious damage of reputation to Red Sea. The Company will always consider an act of employee
misconduct as a very serious matter and will be swiftly dealt with in a prudent manner. The Red Sea "Code of Conduct and
Business Ethics' manual has been and will be distrbuted to all Directors, Managers and supervisors of Red Sea. It is a
condition of employment forall employees to acknowledge receipt and acceptance of Red Sea's Code of Conduct.

5.6 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

Compensation of the members of the Board of Directors will be determined by the remuneration committee after the
approval of the Ordinary General Meeting in accordance with the official decisions and instructions issued in this regard,
within the limits of the provisions of the Companies Regulations and the laws or regulations complementary thereto.

The Board of Directors is responsible for submitting a report to the Ordinary General Assembly fumishing a statement of all
payments received by the members of the Board of Directors during the fiscal year, including salaries, profit share, attendance
allowances, expenses and other benefits. The report also includes a statement of payments made for any technical,
administrative or consultancy work carmed out by any member of the Board of Directors.

According to their employment agreements, the Managing Director, the General Manager Accra Operations, and the General

Manager Jubail Operations are each entitled to a fixed monthly salary as well as to an annual incentive bonus of 2.7% of the
Company'’s income before Zakat. Pursuant to their employment agreements, the executives undertake for a period of two
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(2) years following the termination of their employment for whatever reason, not to directly or indirectly act as an employee
for any legal entity, which is in competition with the Company, induce any employee of the Company to work for another
entity, or enter into a contract with a customer of the Company. The Company requires each employee to keep confidential
all information or data, which may be disclosed to him in connection with the duties entrusted to him. The Executive
Employment Agreements are governed by the laws and regulations of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Dubai and the Republic
of Ghana.

The total remuneration of the Executive Management for the two fiscal years ended 31 March 2005G, and 2004G amounted
to SAR [52 million and SAR 13.1 million respectively. The remuneration includes basic salaries, bonuses and all company
benefits, such as housing and education fees. Additionally, the total remuneration of the Executive Management for the eight
months ended November 30, 2005G and 2004G amounted to SAR [ .7 million and SAR 109 million respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, no commissions, discounts, brokerages, or other non-cash compensation were granted within the
last two years immediately preceding the application for listing in connection with the issue or sale of any Red Sea securities
to any director, proposed director, senior executive, promoter or experts.

Save as disclosed herein, there are no contracts or arrangements in effect or contemplated at the time of submission of the

Prospectus in which the Managing Director, CFO or a director or any relatives of any of them is matenally interested and
which is significant to the business of Red Sea.
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6 AUDITOR’S REPORT

The audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, and 2004G and the notes thereto have been
audited by Sami E. Farah, Abdulhamid M. Bushnag & Partner, member fim of Emst & Young Intemational Limited,
independent auditors of Red Sea at such time. These reports will be available for inspection at Red Sea’s head office in Red
Sea Housing Services Company.

The audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005G, and for the eight months ended November 30,
2005G and the notes thereto have been audited by Al Juraid & Company, member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
independent auditors of Red Sea, as stated in their report appearing herein. (Please refer to section “Auditor's Report” page
47)

The pro-forma condensed consolidated financial statements for the eight months ended November 30, 2005G and the
special purpose auditors’ report have been prepared by Al Juraid & Company, member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers, as

stated in their report appearing herein. (Please referto section “Auditor's Report” page 40)

The AJC/PwC report included in this offering document relates to the Company's historical financial information only.
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Al Juraip & COMPANY

MEMEBER FIRM OF

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS &

Arndalus Busine &4 Corner
Fid. Baix beedh

prehiah 11aha

Saiad Arabia

Selephone: A51-4880
tacsimile B% 5! D

May 18, 2006

To the Shareholders of Red Sea Housing Services Company Lid.:

We have examined the pro-forma adjustments reflecting the transactions described in Note 3
(the "Transactions™) and the application of those adjustments to the histoncal amounts in the
aceompanying pro-forma condensed conselidated balance sheet of Red Sea Housing Services
Company Ltd. (the "Company™) and its subsidiary as of November 30, 2005, and the related
pro-forma condensed consolidated statements of income, changes in sharcholders’ equity and
cash flows for the eight months then ended. The historical amounts in the accompanying pro-
forma financial information are derived from the historical consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the period ended Movember 30, 2005, which were audited by us,
appearing clsewhere, and we have 1ssued our unqualified audit report thercon dated February
&, 2006, The pro-forma adjustments are based upon the transactions described in Note 3. The
Company's management is responsible for the pro-forma financial information. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the pro-forma financial information based on our
examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with generally accepted attestation standards
and, accordingly, included such procedures as we considered necessary in the eircumstances.
We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The management's objective in presenting the accompanying pro-forma financial information
is to show what the significant ¢ffects on the historical financial information might have been
had the transactions described in Note 3 oceurred on November 30, 2005, However, the pro-
forma condensed financial information are not necessarily indicative of the results of
operations or related effects on financial positon that would have been attaimed had the
above-mentioned Transactions actually occurred earlier.

In our opinion, the Transactions described in Note 3 provide a reasonable basis for presenting
the significant effects directly anrbutable to the related pro-forma adjustments, and the pro-
forma column reflects the proper application of those adjustments to the historical financial
statement amounts 1o the pro-forma condensed consolidated balance sheet as of Movember
30, 2005, and in the related pro-forma condensed consolidated statements of income, changes
in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the eight months then ended.

AL JURAID & COMPANY
Member Firgn of PricewaterhouseCoopers

A
By: 1[“ &
Omar M. Al Sagga
License Number 369

AN jurald & Comgany, Lioense o, I5
Uensed Parmners:

Sbckallab A A Juradd, Peo BF

Saimil B&] Sairal P TeS

Wealld 1 Shark b 519

Eashikd 5 Al Eashoud, S0 1A6

Crrnar &L &l Sagga, Mo 160
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RED SEA HOUSING SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

(A Limited Liability Company)

PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

NOVEMEBER 30, 2005
Az adjmstad at
Movember 30, Pro-forma Movember 30,
2005 adjustments 2003
[Andited) (See Note 33 (Pro-forma)
ASSETS
CUBREEINT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents SR 48451261 SE 130000000 SR 198451261
Trade accounts receivable - nat 47455174 - 97435174
Due from related partias 99572 - 09572
Advances to suppliers 8,900,998 - 8,990,993
ventores - net 73622 240 - 75622 240

Prepayments and other 0,795,235 - 9,793,233
Total current assets 240414 480 130,000,000 390 414 480
FROPERETY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT - Met 42192 308 - 42,192 368
NVESTMENT PEOPERTIES - INet 24 869047 - 24 Ba9.047
TOTAL SR 307 4TS 805 SR O1s0000000 SR 457473 205
LIABILITIES AND

SHARFHOLDERS' EQUITY
CUREENT LIAEILITIES:
Short-term bank bormowings SR 741,234 SR - SE 741,234
Trade accounts payable 53,641, 416 - 53,641,416
Sharehelders’ accounts 2B11,048 - 2E11.048
Due to related parties 15,076 - 15,076
Advances from customers 3,704 873 - 5,704 873
Accrued expenses and other 27,208,570 - 27,208,570
Accrued zakat 4164473 - 4.164.473
Tortal cuwrent liabilites 94 286,690 - 94 2E6.890
EMPLOYEES TEEMIMNATION

BEWEFITS 220 B35 - 6 229 835
Toral liabalities 100,516,525 - 100,516,525
COMMITMENTS AND

COMNTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITTY:
Share capital 3,000,000 297 000,000 300,000 000
Proposed increase mn capital 147 000,000 (147 000, 0000 -
Stamitory reserve 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Petained eammings 35459370 35453937

Total shareholders' equity
TOTAL

The accompanying notes 1 to 4 form an

consolidated financial statements.

206.959.370

150,000,000

356.950.37

=B 307475895 SR 120000000

SE

457475 295

wmtegral pait of these pro-forma condensed




RED SEA HOUSING SERVICES COMPANY LTD.
(A Limited Liability Company)

PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS ENDED NOVEMEER 30, 2005

As adjusted at
Movember 30. Pro-forma MNovember 30,
2003 adjustments 2005
{Andited) (Ses Note 3) {Pro-forma)

REVENUES - Net SR 273184483 SR - SE 273,184 483
COST OF REVENUES (163.079.924) - (163.079.924)
GROES PROFIT 110,104,559 - 110,104,539
EXPENSES:
Selling and marketing (16,774,130) - (16,774,130)
(General and adminismative (14.225.187) - (14 225187
Reversal of excess accruals 14 700.013 - 14.700.013
OFERATING INCOME 03,805,253 - 03 803,253
FINANCIAL INCOME - Net 834,862 - 834 862
OTHER. INCOME 2990810 - 2990810
[NCOME BEFORE ZAKAT 97,630,927 - 97630927
TAKAT (4570647 - (4.570.647)
NET INCOME SE 03060280 SR - SE 03060280

The accompanying notes 1 to 4 form an integral part of these pro-forma condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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RED SEA HOUSING SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

{A Limited Liability Company)

PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMEXNT OF CHANGES IN

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS ENDED NOVEMEER 30, 2005

SHARE CAPITAL -
Balance at begimning and end of penod

PROPOSED INCREASE IN
CAPITAL:

Balance at beginning of penod

Transfer from retamed eamimngs

Balance at end of period

STATUTORY RESERVE -
Balance at begimning and end of penod

RETAINED EARNINGS:

Balance at begmning of penod

et mcome for the period

Dividends

Transfer to proposed increase m capital

Balance at end of period

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY

As adjusted at

Movember 30, Pro-forma Movember 30,
2003 adjustments 2003
(Aundited (See Mote 3) (Pro-forma)
SE 3000000 SB 297000000 SE 300000000
147.000 Q00 (1470000000 -
147,000 Q00 (147 00D 0000 -
1300000 1,300,000
149 899 Q90 149 890 Q90
Q3 060 280 93 060 280
(b, 500, 0007 (40, 300,0007
(147000 000 — (147,000 0007y
55459370 55459370

Ell; "-E!E ﬂi:!}'.‘;! E : ]-T.!:.ll'\ll'\ll" L El; 125:!':21'.'!

The accompanying notes 1 to 4 form an imtegral part of these pro-forma condensed

consolidated financial statements.
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RED SEA HOUSING SEREVICES COMPANY LTD.

(A Limited Liability Company)

PRO-FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOE THE EIGHT MONTHS ENDED NOVEMEBER 30, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPEEATING
ACTIVITIES:
et income
Adms 1= to reconcile net meome o net cash
provided by operating activities:
Diapreciation
Gamn on sale of property and egupmesnt and
mvesiment propertias
Changes 1 operating assafs and habulities:
Trads zcoonnts recervabls
Advances to suppliers
Luventories
Prapavments and other cumvent assets
Trads zcoounts payabls
Advances from customers
Apcruad expenses and other cuorent lizbilities
Acciuad zakat
Emplovees' termunation benefits
Mat cash providad by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property, plant and souipment

Purchase of mvestment propaiiies

Proceads from zale of property, plant and equipment
and myvestnent properiias

Mat cash used by inmvesting activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

et changs m short-termn bank borrowmzs

et change m shareholders’ accounts

Addihons fo share capiizl

Dimndends paid

INat cash used by fmancing activities

WET CHANGE I CASH AWD CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS AT
BEGIMNIING OF PEFIOD

CASH AWND CASH EQUIVAIFNTS AT END OF
FERIOD

MNovember 20,
2005

CAunditad)

SE 93060280 SKE

4,861,869

(2,355,533
(31,500,853
(3.683,230)
(31,424,938)
(5,843,307)

Pro-foomea
adjusimeents
See Note 3)

As adjusted at
MNeovember 30,
2005
Pro-foarna)

SE. 93,060,280

4,861,869

(2,255,533
(31,500,853
(3,683.230)
(31.424,938)
(5,843.302)

13,830,481 . 13,830,481
(2,451,878 - (2,451 878)
(10,232,445) - (10,232,445)
1,364,979 . 1,364,979
407,934 . 407,934
26.123.364 B 26.123.364

(29,009 548)

(29,009,548)

(820,690) (820,690)
6.217.757 - 6.217.757
(23 617 481) - (23612 481)
(4,258,766 . (4,258,766)

(10,116,127}

(40.500.0007

150,000,000

(10,116,127)
150,000,000

- (40,300,000

PS4 87 ER] 150000000 95 125 107
(52.364,010) 150,000,000 897,635,990
100,815 271 = 100,815 27])

SR 42451 26] SE 150000000 SE 198451 26]

The accompanyving notes 1 to 4 form an integral part of these pro-forma condensed

conzolidated financial statements.




45

RED SEA HOUSING SERVICES COMPANY LTD.
(A Limited Liability Company)

PRO-FOEMA NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIATL STATEMENTS
(UNATUDITED)
FOFE THE EIGHT MONTHS ENDED NOVEMEER 20, 2005

(5

THE COMPANY AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Red Sea Housing Services Company Ltd. (the "Company™) iz a limited liability
company registered in the Kingdom of Sandi Arabia under Commercial BEegistration as
last amended under oumbey 2053008105 dated Shawwal 26, 1424H (December 20,
2003). During 2003, the Companv's sharehelders decided to convert the Company from
a limited liability company to a clesed joint stock company, and eventually to a public
joimt stock company. Also. in this connection, the shareholders of the Company are in
the process of admitting new shareholders. Legal proceedings for thiz change have not
been completed as of November 30, 2005,

The objectives of the Company are to purchase land and real estate for the purpose of
developing and improving them and to manunfactore residential and comumercial
buildings therecon. and to ultimately sell or lease them. The Company's cbjectives also
include preducing non-conerete residential unidts.

The Company's head office 15 located at the following address:

P.O. Box 1531
Jubail 31951
Saudi Arabia

The Company has 100% ownership interest in Fed Sea Housing Services (Ghana)
Limited ("ESG"). which is registered and operates in Acecra, Ghana BESG 1s prinecipally
engaged in producing non-concrete residential units.

The Company alse has licenses to operate in Afshanistan and Equatorial Guinea.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The pro-forma condensed financial information as of November 30, 2005 has been
prepared by the management to show the effects of the transactions related to increase
in share capital (described in Note 3). on the actual historical financial information as
of MNovember 30, 2005 had such transactions occurred on MNovember 30, 20035,
However, the pro-forma condenszed financial information are not necessarily indicative
of the results of operations or related effects on financial position that would have been
attained had the above-menticned transactions actually occurred earlier.
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The historical amounts in the pro-forma financial information are denved from the
listorical consclidated financial statements of the Company for the period ended
November 30, 2003, which have been separately issued.

PRO-FORMA ADJUSTMENTS

During the vear ended March 31, 2005, the shareholders resolved to increase the share
capital of the Company from SR 3 million to SE 200 millicn. Such increase in share
capital was partly affected by transferring SE 147 million from retained earnings to
proposed increase in capital as of November 30, 2005, In December 2003, the
proposed mcrease m capital of SE 147 mullion was fransferred to share capital and a
cash mjection of SE 150 million was received from the shareholders to complete the
imncrease in share capital to SE 300 pullion. The legal formalities for the increase in
share capital to SE 300 mullion are cwrrently in progress.

MANAGEMENT'S APPROVAL

These pro-forma condensed consolidated financial information have been approved for
1ssue by the Company's management on May 18, 2006.
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AL Juraip & CompPany

MEMEBER FIRM OF

Preawsrioust(Gorers @

Anddus Business Cenler
PO Beon 16415

Jeciizh 271464

“auf Arabfa

Telephorne: 6534880

Facsimile: 6532370
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT February 8, 2006

To the Shareholders of
Red Sea Housing Services Company Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Red Sea Housing Services
Company Lid. {the "Company™} and its subsidiary as of November 30, 2005 and March 31,
2005 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in sharcholders' equity and
cash flows for the eight months ended November 30, 2005 and for the year ended March 31,
2005, and the notes which form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
These consolidated financial staternents are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial staterents based
on our andits,

We conducted cur audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Sandi
Arabia. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtsin reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An andit
includes ¢xamining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evalualing the overall financial
staternent presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In pur opinion, such consolidated financial statements taken as a whole present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company and Hs subsidiary as of
November 30, 2005 and March 31, 20035 and the resulis of their operations and their cash
flows for the eight months ended November 30, 2005 and for the year ended March 31, 2005
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Saixli Arabia appropriate to
the circurnstances of the Company and its subsidiary.

AL JURAID & COMPANY
Member Firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers

-

/1
sl
Omar M. Al Sagga
License Number 369

By:

Mjmﬂd&ompany,umnmzs
Lioensed Partnes: -

Abdublal A, Al Jurald, o, 99
Samd A. Al Sama), No. 165
walid 1. Shukel, Mo_ 129
Rashic 5. 4] Rashoud, No. 166
Omar h. Al Saggla, Mo, 369



RED SEA HOUSING SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

{A Limited Liability Company)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

NOVEMBER 30, 2005 AND MARCH 31, 2005

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade accounts receivable - net
Dwie from related parties
Advances to suppliers
Inventories - et

Prepaymests and other

Total current assels

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Net

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - Net

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'
EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Short-term bank borrowings

Trade accounts payable

Shareholders' accounis

Due to related parties

Advances from customers

Accrued expenses and other

Accrued zakat

Total current liabilities

EMPLOYEES' TERMINATION BENEFITS

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Share capital

Proposed increase in capital

Statutory reserve

Retained earnings

Toetal shareholders' equity

TOTAL

November 30, March 31,
Notes 2005 2005
3 SR 48451261 SR 100,815,271
4 97,455,174 63,954,321
5 09572 00,572
8,990,998 5,307,768
& 75,622,240 44,197,302
9,795,235 3.951933
240,414,480 220,326,167
7 42,192,368 15,399,616
8 24 .869.047 30,556,254
SR 307475895 SR266.281.437
9 SR 741234 SR 5,000,000
53,641,416 39,810,935
12 2,811,048 12,927,175
5 15,076 15,076
504,873 3,156,751
10 27,208,570. 37.441,015
11 4.164.473 2.790.494
94286,690 . 106,150,446
13 6.229.835° 5.731.901
100.516.525 111,882 347
24

14 3,000,000 3,000,000

14 147,000,000 -
15 1,500,000 1,500,000
55.459.370 149.859.090)
206.959.370 154.399.090
SR 307.475.895 SR 266281437

The accompanying notes 1 to 26 form an imtegral part of these consoclidated financial

staterments.



RED SEA HOUSING SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

(A Limited Liability Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2005 AND FOR THE YEAR

ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

Nowermnber 30, March 31,

Notes 2005 2005

REVENUES - Net 16 SR 273,184483 SR 421,624,309
COST OF REVENUES (163.072.924) (278,571.342)
GROSS PROFIT 110,104,559 143,052,967
EXFPENSES:
Selling and marketing 17 (16,774,130} (27,831,994}
General and administrative 18 (14,225,187) (18,282,427)
Reversal of excess accruals 19 14 700013 -
OPERATING INCOME 93,805,255 965,938,546
FINANCIAL TNCOME - Net 834 862 1,180,255
QTHER INCOME 20 2.990.810 2325034
INCOME BEFORE ZAKAT 97,630,927 100,443,835
ZAKAT 11 (4.570.647) {2.511.056)
NET INCOME SR__92.060280 SR 97,932,739

The accompanying notes 1 to 26 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statemenis.
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RED SEA HOUSING SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

{A Limited Liability Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOILDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2005 AND FOR THE YEAR

ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

SHARE CAPITAL -
Balance at beginning and end of period/year

PROFOSED INCREASE IN CAPITAL :
Balance at beginping of period/year
Trensfer from retained earnings

Balance at end of period/year

STATUTORY RESERVE -
Balance at beginning and end of period/year

RETAINED EARNINGS:

Balance at beginning of period/year
Net income for the pesicd/year
Dividends

Transfer to proposed increase in capitai
Balance at end of period/year

TOTAY SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

November 30, March 31,
Note 2005 2005

SR 3.000,000 SR _3.000.000
14 147,000,000 -
147,000,000 ]
1,500,000 1.560.000
149,899,090 100,604,917
93,060,280 97,932,739
(40,500,000) (48.638,566)
14 (147.000.000) .
55.459.370 149.899.090 .

SR 206,959.370 - SR 154.399.090

The accompanying notes 1 to 26 form an integral pari of these consolidated financial

staternents.
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RED SEA HOUSING SERVICES COMPANY LTD.

(A Limited Liability Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS ENDED NOVEMEBER 30, 2005 AND FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH. 31, 2005

November 30, March 31,
2005 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
SR 93,060,280 SR 97,932,739

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income o net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 4,861,869 7,044 016
Gain on sale of property and equipment and
invegiment properties (2,335,533) {1,881,751)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: :
Trade accounts receivable (31,500,853) (328,982}
Due from related parties - 1,478
Advances to suppliers {3,683,2300 2,710,801
Inventories (31,424,938) 7,486,893
Prepayments and other current assets (5.843,302) 1,072,381
Trade accounts payable 13,830,451 (10,760,900)
Advances from customers (2,451,878} (9,516,030)
Accrued expenses and other cirrent liabilities (10,232,445) {6,074,788)
Accrued zakat 1,364,979 848 853
Employees' termination benefits 497,934 868.758
Net cash provided by operating activities 26.123.364 89.403.468
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (29,009,548) (7,171,673)
Purchase of investment properties (820,690) (3,557.835)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment ) '
and investmert properties 6.217.757 . 7.948.231
Net cash used by investing activitics (23,612.481y (2,781.277)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net change in short-term bank borrowings (4,258,766) 2,855,008
Net change in shareholders’ accounts (10,116,127 4,147,024
Dividends paid (40,500,000 (48.638.566)
Net cash used by financing activities (54.874.893) {41.636,534)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (52,364,010) 44,985,657

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF PERIOD/YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
PERIOD/YEAR

100.815.271 55829614
SR 48451261 SRI00.815.271

The accompanying notes | to 26 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.



RED SEA HOUSING SERVICES COMPANY LTD.
(A Limited Liability Company)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2005 AND FOR THE YEAR

ENDED MARCH 31, 205

52

L

THE COMPANY AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Red Sea Housing Services Company Ltd. (the "Company") is a limited liabiliiy
company registered iz the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration as
last amended under number 2055006105 dated Shawwal 26, 1424H (December 20,
2003). During 20035, the Company's sharcholders decided to convert the Company from
a limited lability company to 2 closed joint stock company, and eventually to a public
joint stock company. Also, in this connection, the shareholders of the Company are in
the process of admitting new shareholders. Legal proceedings for this change have not
been comptleted as of November 30, 2005.

The objectives of the Company are to purchase land and real estate for the purpose of
developing and improving thern sod to manufactme residential and commerciat
buildings thereon, and 1o ultimately sell or lease them. The Company's objectives also
include producing non-concrete residential units.

The Company's head office is located at the following address:

P.Q. Box 1531

Jubail 31951

Saudi Arabia

The Company has 100% ownership interest in Red Sea Housing Services (Ghana)
Limited ("RSG"), which is registered mmd operates in Accra, Ghana. R5G is prmclpally
engaged in producing non-concrete residential units.

The Company alsohaslicenmtoopemtciuAfghauisﬁuanquuatoriaIGui:uea.

The Articles of Association of the Company specify its fiscal year to commence on
April T of each Gregorian calendar year and to end on March 31 of the following year.
However, the accompanying ¢onsolidated financial siatements for the period from
April 1, 2005 10 November 30, 2005 have been prepared for the use of the management

of the Compan}r

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying consolidated financtal statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting, ard in compliance with
the accounting standards promulgated by the Sandi Organization for Cerlified Public
Acconniants {SOCPA). Significant accounting policies are summarized as follows:

Basis_of consolidation - The consolidated financial staiements inchede the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiary set forth in Note I above. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Use of estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates and
assumnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent asseis and liabilities ai the date of the consolidated financial statements, and

the reporied amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Abthough
these estimafes are based on raamagement's best koowledge of cument evenis and
actions, actual results uliimately may differ from those estimates.,

Cash and cash equivalents - Time deposits purchased with original maturities of less
than three months are included in cash and cash equivalents,

Accounts receivable - Accounts receivable are carried at original amounts less
provision made for doubtful accounts. A provision for doubtfol accounts is established
when there is a significant doubt that the Company will not be able to collect all
amounis due according to the original terms of accounts receivable,

Inventories - Yaventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods includes the
cost of raw materials, direct labor and manufacturing overheads.

During the eight months ended November 30, 2005, the management of the Company
decided to change the method of determining the cost of inventories from the first-in,
first-out (FIFQ) method to the weighted-average method to comply with the provisions
of Saudi Accounting Standards. Had the Company used the FIFO method, the cost of
inventories and the cost of revenues for the eight months ended November 30, 2005

would not have been materially different.

Property. plant and equipment - Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, net
of accumnlated depreciation. Depreciation is caloulated using the straight-line method
over the estirnated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Years
Buildings and residential houses 5-20
Machinery and equipment 10-15
Motor vehicles 4 .
Furniture and fixtures 4-5
Leasehold improvements Owver the period of the ledse agreement

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs that do not materially extend the asset's life
are included in expenses. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amounts and are included in the consolidated statement of
income currently.

Invesiment properties - Properties held for long-term rental vields, which are not
occupied by the Company, are recorded at cost net of accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 20 years using the
straight-line method.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs that do not matertatly extend the asset's life
are included in expenses. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the camrying amounts and are included in the consolidated statement of

income currently.
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Impaitment of long-lived assets - Property, plant and equipment and investment
properties are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in

circumsiances indicate that the carrying amownt may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss, if any, is recognized for the amount by whick the carrying arount of
the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs io sel] and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately

identifiable cash flows.

Borrowings - Borrowings are recognized at the proceeds received, net of transaction
costs incarmed.

Other provisions ~ Other provisions are recognized when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimaie of the
amount can be made.

Emplovees' terminstion bencfits - Emplovees' termination benefits are accrued in
accordance with the labor and workmsan laws of the countries in which the Company
and RSG operate, and are charged to the consolidated statement of income currently.
The liability is calculated at the current value of the vested benefits to which the
employee is entitled, should the employee leave at the consolidated balance sheet date.
Termination payments arc based on the conditions stated in the laws of those countries,

Revenue recognition - Revenues from long-term confracts are recognized on the
percentage-of-completion method, measured by the percentage of cost incwrred to-date
to estimated total cost for each contract. Revenues from short-term copfracts are
recognized when the contract is completed or substaniially completed.

Contract costs include all direst material and labor costs and those indirect cosis related
to the contracts. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in
the period in which such losses are determined.

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts are
mchuded in wobilled trade accounts receivable. Billings in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on uncompleted contracts are included in advances from customers.

Rental income is recognized on the accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the
confracts entered into with the tenants.

General, administrative, selling and marketing expenses - General, administrative,
selling and marketing expenses include direct and indirect costs not specifically part of
cost of revenues as required under generally accepted accounting principles.
Allocations between cost of revenues and general, administrative, selling and
marketing expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basis.

Operating leases - Rentals in respect of operating leases are charged to the consolidated
statement of income over the terms of the related leases.

Zakat and income tax - The Company is subject to zakat in accordance with the
reguiations of the Department of Zakat and Income Tax ("DZIT"). The Jebel Ali branch
is not subject to any zakat or income tax in the comiry of operations. RSG is subject to
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tax regulations in Ghapa. Income tax related to RSG, if any, is charged to the
consolidated statement of income currently.

Additional zakat and tax payable, if any, on the finalization of the Company's and
R83's assessments are accounted for when determined,

Foreign currency franslation - The Compeny's books of account are maintained in Sandi
riyal. Foreign currency transactions are translated into Saudi riyal at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the ransactions. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
ciarencies are adjusted to reflect their Saudi riyal equivalents as of the consolidated
balance sheet date. Exchange adjustments, which were not significant for the
period/year, are charged or credited to the consolidated statement of income currently.

Assets and liabilities of RSG are translated at the exchange rates in effect at the date of
the consolidated financial statements. The components of RSG's equity accounts,

except retained earnings, are translaied at the exchange rates in effect at the dates the
related items originated. The elements of RSG's income statement are translated using

the weighted-average exchange rate for the period. Adjustments resulting from the
translation of RSG's financial statements into Saudi riyal are reported as a separate
component of shareholders' equity. Translation difference at November 30, 2005 and
Match 31, 2005 were not material.

Reclassifications - Certain amounts in the March 31, 2005 consolidated financial
statements have been reclassified to conform to the November 30, 2005 presentation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at November 30, 2005 and March 31, 2005 are comprised of

the following:
November 30, Masech 31,

2005 2005
Time deposits SE. 25,000,000 __SREZ,Z}ﬁﬂ,BﬁS
Cash at banks 23267775 38,361,307
Petty cash 183 486 03.59%
Total SR_48451.261 © SRI00.815271

TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts receivable at November 30, 2005 and March 31, 2005 are comprised of

the following:
November 30, March 31,

2003 2005
Trade acoounts receivable:
Billed SR 90,651,200 SR 67,199,317
Unbilled B.048.964 -
087,164 67,199,317
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (1.244.990) (1.244 996}

Trade accounts receivable - net SR 97455174 SR65954.321
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RELATED PARTY MATTERS

The following is a summary of balances with refated parties at Noverber 30, 2005 and

March 31, 2005:

Due from related parties:
Advance Petroleum Services Lid,

Guif Power International Company Ltd.

Dabbagh Information Tecknology Group Ltd.

Supreme Foods Company Lid.

Saudi Logistics and Electronics International
Company Lid.

Total -

Due to related parties:
Agricuttural Development Company Ltd.
National Scientific Company Ltd,

Total

November 30, March 31,
2005 2005

SR 34810 SR 34,610
32,046 32,046
19921 19,921
11,925 11,925
1,070 1.070
SR.._99572 SR___99.572
SR 13,560 SR 13,560
1,516 1516
SR 13076 SR __15076

Thaeweremsigniﬁcantmlaiedpartytanmﬁomdlmgthecightmnthsendﬂd
November 30, 2005 and the year ended March 31, 2005,

INVENTORIES

Inventories at Novernber 30, 2005 and March 31, 2005 are comprised of the following:

Baw materials
Work in process
Finished goods

Total
Less: provision for slow moving inventories

Inventones - net

Novemnber 30,
2005

SR 64,085,492
10,886,375
2,358,686

77,330,553

March 31,
2005

SR 33,387,359
10,119,789

2,398,525
45,905,673

(1.708.313) (1,708,371}

SR 75,022,240

SR 44,197,302
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipmeent are comprised of the following:

Aprif 1, Additions November 30,

November 30, 2005 2005 (transfers) Disposals 2003
Cost
Land SR - SR 1,314,381 SR - SR 1,316,381
Buildings and resideatial

houses 0.641.847 23,989 882 - 33.631,72%
Machinery end equipment 6,508,729 7619374 - 14,128,103
Motor vehicles 6,570,818 639,011 {18,000} 7.191,829
Furniture and fixtures 2,588,892 237,350 - 2,826,242
Projects under

construction 5.846.24 (4. 792 450h - 1,053,798
Total 3]1.156.534 29009 548 {18.600) ol). 148,082
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and residential

houses 4,972,872 1,156,021 - 6,128,893
Machinery and equipment 2,828,656 650,875 - 3,479,531
Motor vehicles 5,781,889 198,232 {18,000 5,962,121
Furniture and fixtures 2,174,101 211,068 - 2385,169
Total 15, 757518 2216196 {18.000} 17.955.714
Property, plant and

equipment - net S8 15399016 SR 42,192,368

April 1, Additions March 31,

March 31, 2005 2004 (transfers) Disposals 2005
Cost
Buildings and

residential houses SR 10,591,795 SR 903,041 SR (1,852,989 SR 9,641,847
Machinery and equipment 8,139,552 349,558  (1,980,381) 6,508,729
Modor vehicles 6,233,818 577338 (240,338). 6,570,813
Furniture and fixtures 2,498,493 20,350 - : 2,588,892
Leasehold improvements 2,988,340 - (2,988,340) -
Projects under

construction 594.911 5251337 - 5.846.248
Total 31047409 7171673 {7.062.548) 31.156.534
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and

residential houses 6,284,253 512,873 (1,824,254 4,972,872
Machinery and equipment 3,800,257 982,363 {1,953,964) 2,828,656
Motor vehicles 5,707,526 301,578 (227,213) 5,781, B8O
Furniture and fixtures 1,964,569 29,532 - 2,174,101
Leasehold improvements 2.966.445 22395 _ (2988840} -
Total 20723050 2.028.741 {6.994.273) 15,757.51%
Property, plant and

equipment - net =R.10.324.339 SR..15.399.0i6
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The Company has a 5-year renewable operating lease commencing from November 1,
2001 for land upon which the Company's Jubail Industrial City ("JIC™) production
facilities are located. Annual lease payments to JIC are SR 0.7 million, The Company
also has 2 10-year operating lease commencing from July 1, 1997 for land upon which
the Company's Jebel Ali Free Zone production facilities are lccated. Anmual lease
paymuents to Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority are SR 0.5 million. Also see Note 22 with

respect to future renta! commitments,

Projects under construction include costs incurred to construct a production facility in
Accra, Ghana, Also, see Note 24 with respect to capital commitments.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investinent properties are comprised of the following:
April |, November 30,

November 30, 2005 2005 Additions  Disposals 2005
Cost .
Land SR 6477897 SR - SR - SR 0477897
Buildings and

residential houses 52.391.957 820.690 _(8.545.607) H.667.040
Total 58,869,854 820,690 (8,545,607) 51,144,937
Accurmmlated depreciation
Buildings and

residential houses 2E.313.60{ 2645 {4.683.383) 26,275 890
Investment

properties - net SR 30,526,234 SR 24,809,047

April 1, - March 31,

March 31, 2005 2004 Additions  Disposals . 2005
Cost .
Land SR 6477897 SR - SR~ SR 6477897
Building and

residential houses 59,809,819 3.557.835 (11.065.697) 52,391,957
Total 66,377,716 3,557,835 (11,065,697 58,869,854
Accumulated depreciation
Building and

residential houses 28365817 5015275 (5.667.492) 28.313.600
Investment

properties - net SR 38,011,899 SR.30.556.254

These investment properties are held for long-term rental vields and are not occupied
by the Company. Aiso see Note 22 with respect to operating leases.
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SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS

Short-term bank borrowings at November 30, 2005 and March 31, 2005 are comprised
of the following:

MNovember 30, March 31,

2005 2005
Bank overdrafis SE. 741,234 SR -
Shart-term bank loans - 5000004
Total SR, 741.234 SR 5.000,000

Short-term bank borrowings bear financing charges at market rates, which are generally
based on Saudi Inter Bank Offer Rate (SIBOR). Unused short-term bank credit
facilities available to the Company at November 30, 2005 wee approximately
SR 63.1 million (March 31, 2005 - SR 138.1 million). Such hank borrowings are

unsecured.

ACCRUED EXTENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other canrent habilities at November 30, 2005 and March 31,
2005 are comprised of the following:

November 30, March 31,

2005 2005
Employee-related {see Note 19) SR 22,651,159 SR 30,422,381
Unearned revenne 1,769,621 - 1,250,443
Other 2,187,790 . 5,768,191
Total SR.27.208.570 - SR.37441.015

ZAKAT AND FOREIGN INCOME TAXES

Zalat and foreign income taxes are charged to the consofidated statement of income.
The Company and its subsidiary file separate zakat and income tax declarations, which
are filed on unconsolidated basis. Significant components of the Company's zakat base
are comprized of chareholders' equity, provisions at the beginning of the period/yvear
and adjusted net income, less deductions for the net book value of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and certain other items. Zakat and foreign income tax
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included in the consolidated statement of income for the eight months ended November
30, 2005 and for the year ended March 31, 2005 are as follows.

November 30, March 31,

2005 2005
Zakat of the Company SR 4,570,647 S8R 2,511,096
Foreign income tax of RSG - -
Total SR_4570617 SR 2511096
Accrued zakat

The movernents in accrued zakat account for the eight months ended November 30,
2005 and for the year ended March 31, 2005 are as follows:

November 30, March 31,

2005 2005
Balance at beginning of period/year SR 2799494 SR 1,950,641
Provided during the period/year 4,570,647 2,511,096
Payments during the period/year {3.205.668) (1.662.243)
Balance at end of period/year SR._ 4164473 SR__2.799.494

Zakat status

The Company has finalized its zakat status and obtained the final zakat certificate for
the year ended March 31, 2004.

The Company has filed its final zakat return for the year ended March 31, 2005, which
is still under review by the DZIT. Anyadd:ﬂomiznkathab:htyﬁaima}rbeassessadby
theDZITupunﬁeﬁnﬂlzanmofmeCompanyszakatmmmsforthﬂopenymmﬂ
be recorded by the Company when finalized with the DZIT.

SHAREHOLDERS' ACCOUNTS

The movements in sharcholders” accounts for the eight months ended November 30,
2005 and for the year ended March 31, 2005 are as follows:

November 30, March 31,

2005 2005
Balance at beginning of period/year SR 12,927,175 SR 8,780,151
Net movements during the period/year (10,116,127 4,147.024
Balance at end of periodfyear SR_Z2811.048 SR 12997175

Such balance does not bear any finance cost and is due on demand.
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EMPLOYEES' TERMEINATION BENEFITS

The movements i employees' iermmination benefits for the eight months ended
November 30, 2005 and for the year ended March 31, 2005 are as follows:

Movember 30, March 31,

2005 2005
Balance at beginning of period/vear SR 5,731,901 SR 4,863,143
Provided during the period/year 570,177 1,106,255
Payments during the period/year (72.243) (237.497)
Balance at end of pegiodfyear SR 6229835 SR_5.731.90]

SHARE CAPITA]L

The Company's share capital of SR 3 million at November 30, 2005 and March 31,
2005 comsists of 3,000 fully paid and issued shares of SR 1,000 each, and is held as

follows:

Ovmership
percentape
Dabbagh Group Holding Company Lid. 96%
Tammniah Commercial Group Company Ltd. 4%
Total _100%

The shareholders of the Company resolved to increase the Company's share capital
from SR 3 million to SR 300 miliion and to increase the number of shares from 3,000
to 6 million shares. Such increase in capital was affected by transferring SR 147
million from retained eamings to proposed increase in capital as of November 30,
2005, and by contributing cash of SR 150 million on December 4, 2005.

STATUTORY RESERVE

bn accordance with its Articles of Association and the Regulations for Companies in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company maintains a stahrtory reserve equal to one-half
of its share capital. Such reserve is not currently available for distribution fo the
shareholders. No transfers to statutory reserve were made for the eight months ended
November 30, 2005 and for the year ended March 31, 2005 as the reserve at those dates
represented 50% of the registered share capital,
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REVENULS

Revenues for the eight months ended November 30, 2005 and for the year ended March
31, 2005 are comprsed of the following:

November 30, March 31,
2005 2005
Contract revenues SR261,342,722 SR 398,905,269
Rental income 11.841,761 22.719.040
Total SR273.184483 BR421.624.309

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Selting and marketing expenses for the eight months ended Novemtber 30, 2005 and for
the vear ended March 31, 2005 are comprised of the following;:

November 30, March 31,
2005 2005
Freight outward SR 10242949 SR 18,434,246
Employee-related costs 4509248 5,672,957
Sales conymission 1,537,140 3,318,646
Other 484 793 406.145
Total SR 16,774,130 SR 27,831,994

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses for the eight months ended November 30, 2003
and for the year ended March 31, 2005 are comprised of the following:

November 30, March 31,

2005 2005
Employeesrelated costs SR 12,159,096 SR 15,691,316
Depraciation 208,631 72,041
Professional fees 270,555 360,693
Insurance 182,776 208,280
Fent 00,463 173,830
Other 1.313.666 1,776.267

Total SR 14,225,187 SR.18.282.477



19,

21.

63

REVERSAL OF EXCESS ACCRUALS

In prior years, the Company had accrued for management bonuses, which were based
on management’s estimates aud wnderlying agrecments. However, based on on-going
discussions and agreements reached with the concerned management personnel during
the eight months ended November 30, 2005, it was determined that an amount of
SR 14.7 million was accrued by the Company in excess of the amount due to the
management as of that date. Accordingly, such amount was reversed and credited to the
consolidated statement of income for the eight months ended November 30, 2005.

OTHER INCOME

Other income for the eight months ended November 30, 2005 and for the year ended
March 31, 2005 is comprised of the following:

November 30, March 31,

2005 2005
Gain on sale of property and equipment, and
investment properties SR 2355533 SR 1,881,751
Other 635277 443,283
Total SR._2.900810 SR 2325034

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company's operations are in a single industry segment, comprising of
manufacturing and sale of non-concrete residential and commercial buildings and
leasing of such properties. The Company's operations are conducted in Savidi Arabia,
United Arab Emirates ("UAE"), Ghana am certain other geographical areas. Selected
financial information as of November 30, 2005 and for the eight months then ended,
and as of March 31, 2005 and for the year then ended, summarized by geographic area,
is as follows (SR 000's):

Saudi Ceptral Other .
Arabia UAE Africa Asia _countries Total
November 30, 2005
Property, plent and
equipment - net 574 21,849 19,76% - - 42,192
Investment
propertics - net 18,592 658 1,904 1,687 2,032 24,569
Revenues - net 113,003 6,395 F1,115 65,817 10,194 273,184

Net income 52,00 1,662 19,443 17,112 2,752 93,060
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Saudi Central Other

Arabia UAE Adrica Asia  _countries Total

March 21, 2005
Property, plaat and

equipment - net 595 9.321 5,485 - - 15,390
Invesiment

properties - net 20,926 ¥F5 2,187 4,053 2355 30,556
Revenues - net 226,134 1,228 0% B30 71,150 23,262 421,624
Met income 04,032 245 16,830 13,104 3,722 97013
OPERATING LEASES

The Company has various operating leases for its offices, warehouses and production
facilities. Rental expenses for the eight months ended November 30, 2005 are SR 2.7
million (year ended March 31, 2005 - 5R 3.5 million}. Future rental commitments

under these operating leases are as follows:

Years ending March 31:
2006 SR 457 370
2007 _ _ 1,483,092
2008 453 3949
Total SE__2.393.86]

The Company hasleasecl ot various residential houses (see Note 8) imder operating
lease agreements. Rental income from such leases for the eight months ended
November 30, 2005 am_mmtcd to SR 11.8 million (year ended March 31, 2005 -

SR 22.7 mﬂhon)

Operating leasés for réntal inicome with terms expiring within one year and in excess of
one year as of November 30, 2005 arc as follows (SR in millions):

Within one yedar | 158
Between two and five years -
More than five years -
Total 158

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION

The total remuneration of the key management personpel for the eight months ended
November 30, 2005 amounted to SR 11.7 million (for the year ended March 31, 2005 -
SR 15.2 million). The remuneration includes basic salaries, bonuses and other beneﬁts

as per the Company's policy.
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The Managing Director and the General Managers of Accra and Jubail operations are
cach entitled to a fixed monthly salary as well as to an annuat incentive bonus of 2.7%
of the Company's consolidated net income before zakat according to their employment

conracts.

Key management personnel are those persons, including the Managing Director, having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Company, directly or indirectly. '

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company bas outstanding bank guarantees and letters of credit amounting to
SR 20.9 million at Novernber 30, 2005 (March 31, 2005 - SR 10.9 million) issued in
the normal ¢ourse of bustness.

At November 30, 2005, the Company has a committnent to purchase buildings at a cost
of SR 5.5 million.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial assets and liabilities carried on the consolidated balance shest include cash
and cash eguivalents, trade and other accounts receivable, frade and other accounis
payable, short-term bank borrowings, and other liabilities.

Credit risk is the risk that one party will fail to discharge an obligation and will cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company has no significant concentration
of credit risks. Cash is placed with banks of sound credit ratings. Trade accounts
reccivable are mainly due from customers and are stated at their estimated realizable

values,

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks are the exposure to various risks
associated with the effect of fluctuations in the prevailing interest rates on the
Company's financial position and cash flows. As the Company has no significant
interest bearing assets at November 30, 2005 and March 31, 2005, the Company's
income and operating cash flows are independent of changes in market interest rates.
The Company's interest rate risks arise mainly from its short-term bank borrowings,
which are at floating rates of interest, and are subject to re-pricing on a regular basis.
Management monitors the changes in interest rates and believes that the fair value and
cash flow interest rate risks to the Company ate not significant.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in r2ising funds to
meet commitments associated with its financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result
from the inability to sell a financial asset quickly at an amount close to its fair value.
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26.

Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring on 2 regular basis that sufficient funds are
available to meet the Company's future commitments.

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluciuate due io
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's management believes that there is
no currency risk as the Company's transactions are principally in Saudi riyal, United
States dollar and UAE Dirbatn.

Fair vatue is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length tfransaction. As the
Company's consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
miethod, differences can arise between the book values and the fair value estimates.

The management belicves that the fair values of the Company's financial assets and
liahilities are not matesially different from their carrying values.

MANAGEMENT'S APPROVAL

- These comsolidated fimancial statements have been approved for issue by the

Company's management on February 8, 2006.



7 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of Red Sea’s finandal condition and results of operations is based upon and should be read in
conjunction with the audited finandal statements of Red Sea as at and for the years ended 31 March 2003, 2004, which have been
audited by Sami E. Farah, Abdulhamid M. Bushnaq & Partners; as well as the audited finandal statements of Red Sea as at and for
the year ended 3| March 2005G and the first eight months ended November 30 2005G, which have been audited by Al Juraid &
Company, member firm of Price wate rhouse Coopers.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finandal Condition and Results of Operations section contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results for the Company could differ materally from those contemplated by
these forward-loking statements as a result of various factors, including those discussed below and elsewhere in this Prospectus,
particularty under the heading “Risk Factors”.

7.1 DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION FOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Red Sea confims that it has sufficient working capital for the twelve (12) months immediately following the date of this
Prospectus.

The Directors declare that the financial information presented in the Prospectus is extracted without material change from
the Audited Financial Statements and that the Audited Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with SOCPA
Accounting Standards.

Save as disclosed herein, the directors declare that there has been no maternial adverse change in the financial ortrading
position of the company during the last two (2) years ending March 31 2005G, 2004 G, and from November 30, 2005G until
the date of publication of the prospectus.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors, the Directors, the Managing Director, and the Company Secretary declare as of the
date of the Prospectus that they have not at any time been bankrupt or been subject to bankruptcy proceedings.

Save as disclosed herein, the directors and senior management team declare that they do not have any powers allowing them
to borrow from the issuer.

Save as disclosed herein, neither the senior executives nor the secretary or any of their relatives and affiliates have a direct or
indirect interest in the shares of the Company.

The Directors further declare that there has not been any interruption in the business of the issuerand the group which may
have or have had a significant effect on the financial position in the last 12 months.

In addition, the Management declares that there are no mortgages, rights, and charges on the Company’s properties as of the
date of this Prospectus.
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7.2 OVERVIEW

Exhibit 7.1: Ownership Structure of Red Sea

Pre-Offering Post-Offering

Shares Percent  Capital (SAR)* Shares Percent  Capital (SAR)*
Dabbagh Group Holding
Company Limited 24,300,000  81.00% 243,000,000 15300000 51.00% 153,000000
Tanmiah Commercial Group 1,200,000 4.00% 12,000,000 1,200,000 4.00% 12,000,000
Supreme Foods Company
Limited 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000000 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000
National Scientific Company
Limited 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000000 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000
Marketing and Commercial
Agencies Company Limited 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000
Offering Subscribers 0 0.00% 0 9,000,000 30.00% 90,000,000
Total 30,000000 100.00% 300,000,000 30,000,000 100.00% 300,000,000

*SAR 10 parvalue/share
Source: Red Sea

The purpose of the Company is to use its extensive range of products and the strategic location of its manufacturing facilities
to provide tailored manufactured housing products and solutions to meet the specific needs of its diverse clientele.
Competitive pricing, quick delivery, and value added services are stressed upon to achieve competitive advantage against the
competition to provide both tumkey solutions as well as stand alone products. The Company cumently has three
manufacturing facilities located in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the UAE, and the Republic of Ghana.

Pursuant to the Partners Resolution signed by the Existing Shareholders and notarized before the Notary Public of the
Chamber of Commerce and Industry in the Eastern Province on 29/6/1427H (Corresponding to 25/7/2006G), the Capital of
the company was increased from SAR 3 million (consisting of 3000 Shares at a nominal value of SAR 1,000 each) to SAR
300 million (consisting of 30,000,000 Shares at a nominal value of SAR 10 each) through a transfer of SAR 147 million from
retained eamings as of November 30, 2005G and the injection of SAR 150 million in new capital by the Dabbagh Group, on
December4, 2005G.

7.3 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table shows a summary of Red Sea’s results of operations for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G,
and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.
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Exhibit 7.2: Results of Operations (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30

2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Revenues 177,126 394,763 421,624 307,681 273,184
Cost of Revenues (126326) (287 486) (278571) (200,724) (163080)
Gross Profit 50,800 107,277 143053 106957 110,104
Selling and Marketing (13988) (15969) (27832) (20998) (16,774)
General and Administrative (15487) (29879) (18282) (13350) (14225)
Reversal of Excess Accruals - - - - 14,700
Financial Income (Charges) - Net (44) (154) [,180 332 835
Other Income 2,064 3,736 2,325 1,650 2991
Income Before Zakat 23,345 65,01 | 100444 74591 97,631
Zakat 612) (1,981) 511 (1,854) @571)
Net Income 22,733 63,030 97,933 72,737 93,060

*Unaudited Financials

Source: Red Sea Audited Financial Statements, Figures are rounded

Exhibit 7.3: Results of Operations (% of Revenues)

Eight months ended

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30

2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of Revenues (713)% (72.8)% (66.1)% (652)% (59.7)%
Gross Profit 28.7% 27.2% 339% 34.8% 40.3%
Selling and Marketing (7.9)% (4.0)% (6.6)% 69)% (6.1)%
General and Administrative (8.7)% (7.6)% (4.3)% 43)% (5.2)%
Reversal of Excess Accruals - - - - 5.4%
Financial Income (Charges) - Net (0.0)% (0.0)% 0.3% 0.1% 0.3%
Other Income 1.2% 0.1% 0.6% 05% [.1%
Income Before Zakat 13.2% 16.5% 238% 24.2% 35.7%
Zakat (0.3)% (0.5)% (0.6)% ©06)% (1.7)%
Net Income 12.8% 1 6.0% 232% 23.6% 34.0%

*Unaudited Financials

Source: Red Sea Audited Financial Statements, Figures are rounded

7.3.1 REVENUES

The following table gives a breakdown of revenues of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and
2005G as well eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.
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Exhibit 7.4: Breakdown of Revenues (SAR 000s)
Eight months ended

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30

2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Building Revenues 152,240 355,864 398,905 301,669 261,343
Buiding Revenues Growth 3% 134% 12% (**) 13% (**) (13%)
% of Total Revenues 86% 90% 95% 98% 96%
Rental Revenues 24,886 38,899 22,719 6,012 11,841
Rental Revenues Growth 217% 56% (42%) (**) (60%) (**) 97%
% of Total Revenues 14% 10% 5% 2% 4%
Total Revenues 177,126 394,763 421,624 307,681 273,184
Total Revenues Growth 24% 123% 7% (**)17% (**) (3%)

*Unaudited Financials, ** Percentages are computed by annudlising the 8-months figures (8-months figures*12/8)
Source: Red Sea, Figures are rounded

Building revenues mainly comprise four main categories namely (i) revenues from factory-built modular housing, (i) revenues
from cabins for water and sewage treatment plants, (iii) revenues from cabins for power generation plants, and (iv) revenues
from site developments.

The first category, revenues from factory-buitt modular housing, is the major contributor to the building revenues (75%), and
consists of empty manufactured building modules (sometimes includes fumiture according to the customer specifications)
such as housing, offices, schooals or hotels.

The second category consists of specially equipped manufactured cabins used at treatment plants and contributes 1 0% to the
building revenues.

The third category comprises manufactured cabins built to house power generation units and contributes 5% of the building
revenues.

The fourth category consists of manufactured building modules in remote areas where Red Sea performs all additional work
to improve the site, and accounts for | 0% of revenues.

The majority of contracts are short-term, however, in case of a long term contract; a percentage of completion method is
applied to calculate the building revenues.

To date, product rentals have been camied out on a small scale basis. However, Red Sea is finding more and more customers
interested in renting complete camps. An increasing number of customers ask to rent ready-made manufactured buildings
over a period of time at the end of which, the manufactured buildings are retumed to the storage area. The customer has to
provide Red Sea with bank guarantees to ensure the retum of these units. After the buildings retum to the storage area Red
Sea does the repair and cleaning to make them ready forthe next tenant or put them up for sale.

Rental services are not major contributors to the total revenue, however, management intends to increase them in the future
as there is a strong potential for greater market share and increased profits especially in Saudi Arabia in the energy and mining

sector.

The following table gives a breakdown of the Company’s revenues by customer segment for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.
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Exhibit 7.5: Breakdown of Revenues by Customer Segment (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Oil & Gas / Construction 130,126 115,637 203,624 184,930 212,650
Mining 22,000 0 10,000 0 19515
Government and Muttilateral Organizations 25,000 279,126 208,000 122,751 41,019
Total Reveues 177,126 394,763 421,624 307,681 273,184

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Demand for the company's products was driven by increased exploration activity which resulted in higher revenues for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2005G. Revenues for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004G for the oil & gas sector dropped
compared to fiscal year ended March 31,2003G due to the fact that great emphasis was placed by Red Sea on higher margin
Government and Multilateral Organizations orders.

The following table gives a geographic breakdown of the Company’s revenues for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G,
2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005 G.

Exhibit 7.6: Breakdown of Revenues by Geography (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 3| November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004 G* 2005G
Middle East 99,864 331,962 84.1% 252,815 600%| 160,135 119,398  43.7%
Africa 24,268 8,288 21% 97921 232% | 71477 77775 28.5%
Asia 52,994 54,513 138% 70,888 168% | 76069 76011 27 .8%
Total Revenues 177,126 394,763 100% 421,624 100% | 307,681 273,184 100%

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

The variance in revenues among the different customer segments and geographies reflects the management strategy of
seeking the most profitable business regardless of location and industry sector.

The following table gives a breakdown of the Company’s revenues by operation for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G,
2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005 G.

Exhibit 7.7: Breakdown of Revenues by Operation (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Jubail Operation 62,664 290,877 226,135 160,650 113,003
Jebel Ali Free Zone Operation 107 398 102,316 195,489 147,031 159,436
Accra Operation 0 745
Property Management 7,064 1,570 0 0 0
Total Revenues 177,126 394,763 421,624 307,681 273,184

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Revenues from the Jubail Factory and the Jebel Ali Free Zone Factory increased in 2004G and 2005G as they were the major
providers of manufactured housing to Government and Multilateral Organizations customers. The Jebel Ali Free Zone factory
sells its products to other countries in the Middle East and Africa while the Jubail factory sells its products to customers inside
Saudi Arabia. The Property Management activities were slowed down during 2004G and 2005G to focus on the production
of prefabricated housing and respond to the increasing demand for these products. In 2006 G, Red Sea decided to increase its
Property Management activity level.
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7.3.2 COST OF REVENUES AND GROSS PROFIT

The following table summarizes the Company’s cost of revenues and gross profit for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G,
2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005 G.

Exhibit 7.8: Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30

2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Cost of Building Revenues 14573 260,993 263,308 191,690 155,300
% of Building Revenues 75% 73% 66% 64% 59%
Cost of Rental Revenues ['1,753 26,493 15,263 9,034 7,780
% of Rental Revenues 47% 68% 67% 1 50% 66%
Total Cost of Revenues 126326 287,486 278571 200,724 163,080
% of Total Revenues 71% 73% 66% 65% 60%
Gross Profit on Building Revenues 37,667 94,87 | 135,597 109,979 106,043
% of Building Revenues 25% 27% 34% 36% 41%
Gross Profit on Rental Revenues 13,133 12,406 7456 (3,022) 4,061
% of Rental Revenues 53% 32% 33% (50%) 34%
Total Gross Profit 50,800 107,277 143,053 106,957 110,104
% of Total Revenues 29% 27% 34% 35% 40%

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

As may be observed from the Exhibit above, the gross profit varies from 25% to 41 % for the building revenues and from 32%
to 53% for the rental services during the three fiscal years under review. This variance can be attributed to the following

reasons:

®  |n 2004G, the gross profit margin for Buildings Revenues increased from 25% to 27%. This is due to
the increased prices to local customers, while Management kept prices for overseas customers
relatively stable. The gross profit margin for Rental Revenues decreased from 53% to 32% in 2004G
mainly due to the fact that Red Sea decided to discontinue the Property Management division during
2004G to focus on the production of prefabricated housing and respond to the increasing demand for
these products. In 2006 G, Red Sea decided to increase its Property management activity level.

m  The gross profit for Buildings Revenues increased in 2005G compared to the gross profit for Buildings
Revenues in 2004G due to the decrease in the raw matenal cost of approximately 6% and the
significant savings on labor costs due to more hiring from the labor supplying companies.

The rental cost mainly consists of the depreciation of the cost of the manufactured buildings that are being leased. Some of
the houses that were used for leasing have now been sold. Red Sea priced those houses according to their book value with

an approprate mark up.

The following table summarzes the breakdown of cost of revenues of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2003G, 2004 G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.9: Breakdown of Cost of Revenues (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005
Raw Material Cost 98,144 77.7% 225030  783% 211,529 759% | 151,704 108,329
Direct Labor Cost 15,104 12.0% 26,307 9.1% 28,137 10.1% | 24495 18,745
Factory Overhead Cost 13,078 103% 36,149 12.6% 38905 140% | 24525 36,006
Total Cost of Revenues 126,326 100% 287,486 100% 278,571 100% | 200,724 163080

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded
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The total raw matenial costs increased significantly during 2004G reflecting the large increase in sales. The 6% decrease in
2005 resufted from the decrease in raw material prices, especially in PVC, Wood, and Paint. Please refer to “Major Raw
Material Prices” in Exhibit 7.10 below.

The Direct Labor costs, as shown in Exhibit 7.9, consist of the basic salaries of the laborers, laborers’ allowances, and bonuses.
The following is an explanation of the vanances:

m |n order to meet increased production demand, Red Sea signed contracts with agencies to provide
them with factory laborers in retum for hourly wages paid directly to the agencies. Red Sea included
these costs in the basic salaries cost causing it to increase by | 16% in 2004G and by 4% in 2005G. At
the same time, the housing and transportation allowances did not increase by the same percentage as
the basic salaries since outside workers are not paid extra allowances.

B Red Sea distributes 10% of the profits as bonuses to all its employees including the factory laborers
and since the profit increased considerably in 2004G and 2005G, bonuses therefore increased in line
with profits. The bonus expenses are charged to the income statement and are allocated among Cost
of Revenues, General and Administrative and Selling and Marketing based on each employee or
laborer department. The bonus expenses charged for the year ended March 31, 2003G amounted to
SAR 3512 million, SAR 9.762 million in 2004G, SAR 12.144 million in 2005G, and SAR 10025 million
for the period ended November 30, 2005.

m  Otherallowances such as vacation pay, tickets, etc. decreased by 34% in 2004 G due to the closure of
the property management division in Jeddah at the beginning of 2004G.

The increases and decreases of the components of the Direct Labor cost caused the totals to increase by 74% in 2004G and
by 7% in 2005G.

Factory overhead consists of fixed costs such as depreciation, indirect salaries, factory rent, etc. and vanable costs such as
electricity bills, water bills, factory cleaning expenses etc. As can be noticed in Exhibit 7.9, the factory overhead cost increased
by 176% in 2004G and by 7% in 2005G. This was mainly due to the increase in the variable costs, which increased in line with
revenues.

The following table summarizes the prices of major raw matenials used in the Company's operations for the fiscal years ended
March 31,2003G, 2004G, and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.10: Raw Material Prices (SAR)

Category (Unit of Measurement) Fiscal Year Ended March 31

2003G 2004G 2005G
Lumber (CBM) 423.75 630.00 648.00
Steel (MT) 214.00 214.00 229.00
PVC (KGS) 270 3.68 34l
Wood (CBM) 5891 5891 4890
Paint 20 LTR) 365.00 370.50 352.00

Source: Red Sea

Most of the products utilized for production by Red Sea are commodities. Accordingly, the prices of these products are a
function of the global changes in the supply and demand forces. In addition, PVC is an oil derivative product, thus the price of
PVC is highly correlated to the price of oil which has been rising rapidly. Based on the trend analysis presented above, it is
highly evident that the prices of Lumber, Steel, and PVC have been increasing significantly, while the prices of Wood, and
Paint fluctuated in narrow ranges.

7.3.3 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The following table summarzes the breakdown of general and administrative expenses of the Company for the fiscal years
ended March 31,2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.
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Exhibit 7.1 | : Breakdown of General and Administrative Expenses (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Employee Salaries, Benefits, and Bonus 13984 26,778 15,747 11,947 12,159
Other Expenses 1,502 3,101 2,535 1,403 2,066
Total General and Administrative Expenses 15,486 29,879 18,282 13,350 14,225
% of Total Revenues 9% 8% 4% 4% 5%

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Employee related costs have increased in 2004G compared to 2003G and decreased in 2005G. The reason is related to
accruals of SAR 4.7 million for management bonus in 2004 G, which subsequently was determined to have been estimated
in excess of the actual bonus that was agreed on. Due to the fact that the actual amount of the bonus was agreed on with
the related employees’ subsequently, the reversal was made during the eight months ended November 30, 2005G and
credited to Other Income (Please referto section “Other Income and Financial Income (charges) -Net").

Other expenses comprise mainly of office supplies, utilities, professional fees, travel expenses, insurance, depreciation, bad
debts, and rental expenses. Other expenses increased by 105% in 2004G compared to 2003G due mainly to higher
insurance expenses, office supplies expenses, professional fees, utilities expenses, and bad debts amounted to SAR 447
thousands in 2004G. Other expenses declined by 18% in 2005G compared to 2004G due mainly to lower utilities expenses,
office supplies expenses, and bad debts that amounted to SAR 79 thousands in 2005G.

7.3.4 SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

The following table summarizes the breakdown of selling and marketing expenses of the Company for the fiscal years ended
March 31,2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.12: Breakdown of Selling and Marketing Expenses (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Employee Salaries and Benefits 2,303 3,296 5,673 3,986 4,509
Freight Expenses 8,934 10,564 18,434 14316 10,243
Commission on revenues 2,036 1,609 3,319 2,394 1,537
Others 715 500 406 302 485
Total Selling and Marketing Expenses 13,988 15,969 27,832 20,998 16,774
% of Total Revenues 8% 4% 7% 7% 6%

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Employee salaries and related benefits increased by SAR | million from 2003G to 2004 G and by SAR 24 million from 2004G
to 2005G. The main reason for the increase in this account is due to the increase in the bonus account in line with the
increase in the net income.

Commission on revenues decreased by SAR 427 thousand from 2003G to 2004G and increased by SAR |.7 million from
2004G to 2005G. The main reason for this change is that the customers during 2004G purchased from Red Sea directly and
not through the agencies. The main reason for the increase in 2005G is a sales agency introducing new customers, which had
a significant impact on the revenues.

The Freight expenses increased by SAR | .6 million from 2003G to 2004G and by SAR 79 million from 2004G to 2005G.
The main reason for these increases is the increase in the international revenues during the years ended March 31, 2003G,
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2004G, and 2005G. International revenues increased from SAR 102 million in 2004G to SAR 195 million in 2005G, an
increase of 91 %.

7.3.5 OTHER INCOME AND FINANCIAL INCOME (CHARGES) - NET

The following table summarizes the breakdown of other income and financial income (charges) - net of the Company for the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.13: Breakdown of Other Income and Financial Income (Charges) - Net (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Miscellaneous Income 474 418 443 223 635
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 1,590 3317 1,882 1,427 2,356
Total Other Income 2,064 3,735 2,325 1,650 2991
Total Financial Income (Charges) - Net (44) (154) 1,180 332 835

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Seq, figures are rounded

In 2004G, the Company had accrued for management bonus, which was made based on management’s estimates and
underlying agreements. However, based on on-going discussions and agreements reached with the concemed management
personnel during the eight months ended November 30, 2005G, it was determined that an amount of SAR 4.7 million was
accrued by the Company in excess of the amount due to the management. Since the excess accrual is no longer valid, such
amount was reversed and credited to the statement of income for the eight months ended November 30, 2005G.

Miscellaneous income includes scrap sale such as scrap containers and scrap steel. The profit on sale of fixed assets is mainly
from the sale of buildings that were used for leasing. It varies from one year to another due to the fact that each year a

different leasing contract is closed with a different amount of buildings retured that will either be used for another leasing
period or put up forsale.

7.4 BALANCE SHEET

The following table summarizes the balance sheet of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and
2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.14: Balance Sheet Summary (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G**
Current Assets 81,973 186,283 220,326 219,926 390,414
Fixed Assets 56319 48,336 45,955 41,167 67,062
Total Assets 138292 234,619 266,281 261,093 457476
Current Liabilities 59,720 124,651 106,150 77844 94,287
Non-Current Liabilities 4,873 4,863 5732 5,407 6,230
Shareholders’ Equity 73,699 105,105 154,399 177,842 356,959
Total Shareholders' Equity and Liabilities 138292 234,619 266,281 261,093 457476

*Unaudited Financial
** Unaudited pro-forma condensed consolidated financial statements for the eight months ended November 30, 2005G
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded
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7.4.1 CURRENT ASSETS

The following table presents a breakdown of the current assets of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G,
2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005 G.

Exhibit 7.15: Breakdown of Current Assets (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G**
Cash and Cash Equivalent 19,468 55,830 100,815 89,000 198,45 |
Trade Accounts Receivable-Net 40,090 65,625 65,954 65,442 97455
Due from Related Parties 823 101 100 21,730 100
Advances to Suppliers 0 8,019 5,308 3,762 8,991
Prepayments and Other 4,503 5,024 3952 7,150 9,795
Inventories-Net 17,089 51,684 44,197 32,842 75622
Total Current Assets 81,973 186,283 220,326 219926 390414

*Unaudited Financials
#* Unaudited pro-forma condensed consolidated financial statements for the eight months ended November 30, 2005G
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Trade Accounts Receivable

The following table summarizes the trade accounts receivable of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G,
2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005 G.

Exhibit 7.16: Summary of Trade Accounts Receivable - Net (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Trade Accounts Receivable 40,590 67,366 67,199 66,951 98,700
Allowance for doubtful debts (500) (1,741) (1,245) (1,509) (1,245)
Trade Accounts Receivable - Net 40,090 65,625 65,954 65,442 97,455

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Trade accounts receivable are stated at original invoice amounts less any provisions for uncollectible amounts. An estimate for
doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.

The outstanding allowance as of March 31, 2005G and November 30, 2005G represent doubtful receivables from two
customers. As the Company enjoyed an excellent collections position, the Company maintains a provision for each customer
independently when his balance is considered doubtful. The net accounts receivable balance as of November 30, 2005G
represents less than one year ageing.

Trade accounts receivable increased in absolute terms by 66% in 2004G compared to 2003G mainly as a result of higher
business volumes and remained stable in 2005G compared to 2004G. However, in proportion to revenues, trade accounts
receivable declined from a level of 83 days of revenues in 2003G to 61 days of revenues in 2004G and 57 days of revenues
in 2005G. This was mainly a result of significant improvement in the trade accounts receivable collection by the Company
thanks to Management initiatives taken in this regard over this period. As for the period ended November 30, 2005G Trade
accounts receivable increased by 47% compared to March 31, 2005G. Accordingly, the accounts receivable tumover
increased from 57 days in March 31, 2005G to 130 days in November 30, 2005G. This increase is due to the increase in
sales, in November 30, 2005G, of SAR 48 million and the issuance of the related invoices to customers in the same month.

The following table presents trade accounts receivable tumover of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G,
2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005 G.
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Exhibit 7.17: Tumover of Trade Accounts Receivable - Net (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Revenues 177,126 394,763 421624 307,68l 273,184
Trade Accounts Receivable - Net 40,090 65,625 65,954 65,442 97455
Tumover (Days of Revenue) 83 61 57 78 130

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

The total amount of trade accounts receivable as of the end of fiscal year 2005G that is due for more than one yearis SAR
|4 million representing 2% of total trade accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful debts as of the end of fiscal year
2005G of SAR 1.745 million provides 100% to cover for these trade accounts receivable due for more than one year. The
Company has not encountered any major problem in collecting its receivables in the past.

Due from Related Parties

The only related parties of the Company are the subsidiaries of Dabbagh Group. Due from related parties arise from a
related party buying the Company’s products. Such transactions are however carried out on an ams length bass. The
following table summarizes due from related parties of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and
2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.18: Due from Related Parties (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Total Due from Related Parties 823 101 100 21,730 100

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

There were no significant related party transactions during the years ended March 31,2005G, 2004G, and 2003 G.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, net of provisions for slow moving and obsolete items. Net
realizable value is based upon estimated selling prices less anticipated costs of disposal. Finished goods and work in progress
cost is comprised of direct material, direct labor and appropriate allocation of manufacturing overheads. Cost is arved at

using the first in first out method.

The following table presents a breakdown of inventories of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G,
2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005 G.

Exhibit 7.19: Breakdown of Inventories (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30

2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G

Raw Material 10,616 24,186 33,387 25,375 64,085
Work in Progress 7427 26,153 10,120 8286 10,886
Finished Goods |53 2,657 2,398 493 2,359
Allowance for Slow Moving Inventories (1,108) (1,312) (1,708) (1,312) (1,708)
Total Inventories - Net 17,088 51,684 44,197 32,842 75,622

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded
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Most of the raw matenals comprised steel, wood, PVC, paints and gypsum. Raw matenal increased by SAR I3 million from
2003G to 2004G and by SAR 9 million from 2004G to 2005G. The main reason for this was the Management decision to
purchase large quantities of raw materials to take advantage of good prices from the suppliers and as a precaution for
expected market price increases. The work in progress increased by SAR 9 million from 2003G to 2004G and decreased by
SAR 16 million from 2004G to 2005G. The increase from 2003G to 2004G was related to three projects that were under
production up to year end and delivered subsequently. As of November 30, 2005G the Raw matenal increased by SAR
30.698 million, the main reason for this increase was due to the startup of the Company's plant in the Republic of Ghana
which required the purchase of large quantities of raw materials to transfer to the Republic of Ghana in order to meet the
production requirements.

The following table presents inventories tumnover of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and
2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.20: Tumover of Inventories (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Cost of Revenues 126,326 287,486 278,571 200,724 163,080
Ending Inventory - Net 17,088 51,684 44,197 32,842 75,622
Inventory Turnover (Days of Cost of Revenues) 49 66 57 40(**) |1 3(**)

*Unaudited Financials ** Computed by annualising the 8-months figures (8-months figures*| 2/8)
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

The inventory turnover in Exhibit 7.20 above estimates the number of days needed for the company to sell the current
inventory. The inventory tumover increased from 49 days in 2003G to 66 days in 2004G mainly as a result of the bulk
purchase of raw matenials to take advantage of the attractive prices available. The inventory turover decreased to 57 days in
2005G as the raw materials were used in production and inventories retumed back to normal levels. The average inventory
tumover in the three years under review was within 60 days. The inventory turnover increased from 57 days in March 31,
2005G to |13 days in November 30, 2005G mainly due to the increase in the inventory balance as a result of the Republic of
Ghana plant start-up in October2005G.

Prepayments and Other

The following table summarizes the prepayments and other debit balances of the Company for the fiscal years ended March
31,2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.21: Prepayments and Other (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Total Prepayments and Other 4,503 5,024 3,952 7,150 9,795

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Prepayments mainly include prepaid housing allowances, prepaid rent for factories and land, prepaid insurance, and margins
on letters of guarantee.

7.4.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of property, plant and equipment is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Fixed assets of the Company consist only of
property, plant and equipment.
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The following table presents a breakdown of the net book value of property plant and equipment of the Company for the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.22: Breakdown of Property, Plant and Equipment (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 3| November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Land 6,478 6,478 6,478 6,478 7,794
Buildings and Residential Houses 45,526 35,842 28,748 28,877 45894
Machinery and Equipment 3,124 4,339 3,679 3814 10,649
Motor Vehicles 475 526 789 823 1,230
Fumiture and Fixtures 322 534 415 518 44|
Leasehold Improvements 66 22 0 22 0
Projects under Construction 328 595 5,846 635 1,053
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 56,319 48,336 45,955 41,167 67,061

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

The following table presents a summary of the depreciation charge of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2003G, 2004 G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.23: Summary of Depreciation Charge (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Total Depreciation Charge 7,187 10,058 7,044 4,133 4,862
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 56,319 48,336 45,955 40,588 67061

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Land and some of the buildings and residential houses, recorded at a cost of SAR 59.9 milion, are considered to be
investment properties. Red Sea is currently using these investment properties for long term rental fields. The major portion of
property, plant and equipment comprses building and residential houses which are depreciated over a period of five to
twenty years using the straight-line method. The major additions during the period under review were buildings for SAR 3.6
million and projects under construction for SAR 5.8 million.

The change in the yearly depreciation charge results from annual additions and disposals of assets and the fact that some
assets are fully depreciated.

The following table presents a summary of property, plant and equipment additions and disposals of the Company for the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.24: Summary of Property, Plant and Equipment Additions and Disposals (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Additions 14,042 13,530 10,730 1,565 29,830
Disposals 5776 18,341 18,128 6,901 8,564
Gain on Disposals 1,590 3317 1,882 1,427 2,356

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

The Company's property, plant and equipment are covered under a comprehensive insurance policy and a review of
insurance is usually carried out at the time of policy renewal. Management takes many aspects into account when considering
what should be adequate coverage. Red Sea's general rule is to cover only major casualties considering the cost of the various
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amounts of coverage and the degree of risk the Management deems appropriate. The plant and equipment are not

mortgaged to any third party and are fully owned by the Company.
The following breakdown represents the Insurance Contracts as of November 30, 2005G:

Exhibit 7.25: Breakdown of Assets and Inventory Insurance (SAR 000s)
Asset Nature of Insurance

Insurance Limit

Motor Vehicles Accidents
Buildings and Residential Houses Fire
Fumiture and Fixture Fire

Fire & Burglary
Fire & Burglary

Machinery and Equipment
Inventory
Total

2,462
36,807
446
11,025
32,500
84,240

Source: Red Sea, Figures are rounded

7.4.3 CURRENT LIABILITIES

The following table presents a summary of current liabilities of the Company for the fiscal years
2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005 G.

Exhibit 7.26: Breakdown of Current Liabilities (SAR 000s)

ended March 31, 2003G,

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Bank Overdrafts and Short Term Loans 0 2,145 5,000 5,000 741
Trade Accounts Payable 30,542 50,572 39811 24,344 53,641
Due to Related Parties 0 I5 5 15 I5
Advances From Customers 2,439 17,673 8,157 3,940 5,705
Accrued Expenses and Other 24912 43516 37441 42,403 27,209
Accrued Zakat 636 | 951 2,799 2,142 4,165
Shareholders’ Accounts [,189 8,780 12,927 0 2811
Total Current Liabilities 59,718 124,652 106,150 77,844 94,287

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

The following table presents a summary analysis of current liabilities of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31,

2003G, 2004 G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.27: Analysis of Current Liabilities

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G**
Current Ratio (Times) | 4 l.6 20 28 2.5
Quick Ratio (Times) Il [ 16 24 1.7
Debt Ratio (%) 47% 55% 42% 32% 33%

*Unaudited Financials

#* Ratios forthe eight months ended November 30 2005G are computed without takinginto account the SAR | 50 million injection in new capital.

Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Current Ratio (Current Assets / Current Liabilities): This ratio is used to determine short-term debt paying ability of the

Company. It has increased from 1.6 times in the year 2004G to 20 times in 2005G.
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Quick Ratio ((Current Assets — Inventory) / Current Liabilities): This ratio best determines the Company's ability to pay

its short-term obligations without sale of inventory. The ratio has increased from | .| times in the year 2004G to |6 times in
the year 2005G.

Debt Ratio (Total Liabilities / Total Assets): This ratio determines the Company’s long-term debt paying ability. It indicates
the percentage of assets financed by creditors, thus it helps to determine how well creditors are protected in case of

insolvency. From the perspective of long-term debt paying ability, the lower this ratio, the better the Company’s position. This
ratio remained close to 0% in the years 2004 G and 2005G due to very small level of debt at the Company during this period.

Bank Overdrafts and Short-Term Loans

The following table presents a summary of bank overdrafts and short-term loans of the Company for the fiscal years ended
March 31,2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.28: Summary of Bank Overdrafts and Short-term Loans (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Short-term Bank Loans 0 2,000 5,000 5,000 0
Bank Overdrafts 0 145 0 0 741
Total Bank Overdrafts and Short-term Loans 0 2,145 5,000 5,000 741

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

In 2004G, the Short-term loan represents a loan taken from Riyadh Bank on November 10, 2003G and was scheduled to be
repaid over a one year period. In 2005G, another short-term loan for SAR 5 million was obtained. In April 2005G, the
Company paid the full amount of SAR 5 million to Riyadh Bank.

Red Sea has credit facilities for bank overdrafts, letters of credit and guarantee, long and short-term loans with Riyadh Bank,
Saudi Hollandi Bank, and Emirates Bank. Short-term bank borrowings bear financing charges at market rates, which are
generally based on Saudi Inter Bank Offer Rate (“SBOR +"). Unused short-term bank credit facilities available to the
company at March 31,2005G were approximately SAR 138 million (2004G SAR 45 million).

Trade Accounts Payable

Trade accounts payable are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by
the supplier or not. Provisions are recognized when the company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from the
past event, and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably measured. The company's normal
credit period ranges from 30-90 days from the date of the invoice based on the contracts with the suppliers and sub-
contractors, and in accordance with the Company’s payment policy.

The following table presents a breakdown of the trade accounts payable of the Company by operation for the fiscal years
ended March 31,2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.
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Exhibit 7.29: Breakdown of Trade Accounts Payable by Operation (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Jubail Operation 15,267 27,773 24,730 21,776 30057
Jebel Ali Free Zone Operation 12,713 22,405 15,081 2,266 14,794
Accra Operation 0 8,541
Head Office 2,562 394 0 302 249
Total Accounts Payable 30,542 50,572 39,811 24,344 53,641

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

The trade accounts payable increased by SAR 20 milion from 2003G to 2004G and decreased by SAR || million from
2004G to 2005G. The main reason for the increase from 2003G to 2004G is the increase in business volumes in 2004G as
well as bulk purchase of raw matenals to take advantage of attractive prices, which increased the level of dealings with
suppliers. The decrease from 2004G to 2005G is due to a decrease in inventory holding coupled with an increase in
payments to the suppliers.

Management deals with different suppliers to optimize prices and to meet its requirements. The average payment period
decreased from 65 days in 2004G to 51 days in 2005G.

Advances from Customers

Advances from customers amounted to SAR 24 million in 2003G, SAR 17.7 million in 2004G, and SAR 8.1 million in 2005G.
The increase in this account in 2004G which is almost a 624% increase was due mainly to the advance payments received on
projects related to Alba phase 3 in Malabo, Equatonial. Guinea at the end of 2003G and the beginning of 2004 G.

Accrued Expenses and Other

The following table presents a breakdown of accrued expenses and other credit balances of the Company for the fiscal years
ended March 31,2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.30: Breakdown of Accrued Expenses and Other (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended

Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Employee-related 12964 35,137 30,422 38,196 22 651
Uneamed Revenue 6,749 2,439 1,251 1,434 1,770
Other 5,199 5,940 5768 2,773 2,788
Total Accrued Expenses and Other 24,912 43516 37,441 42,403 27,209

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Please refer to section “Other Income and Financial Income (charges) Net’ for further details and explanation of the
fluctuation of the employee related cost accruals, as of November 30 2005.

Uneamed revenue is related to the Company’s rental revenues contracts. The reason for the decrease in this account over
the years ending March 31 2004G and 2005G and for the period ending November 30 2005G is related to discontinuing the
property management division in 2004G. The balance as of March 31, 2005G and November 30 2005G is related to Desert
Palm Compound in Jubail which is owned by the Company.
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Shareholders’ Accounts

The following table presents a summary of the shareholders’ accounts of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.31: Summary of the Shareholders’ Accounts (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Balance at Beginning of the Year 0 1,189 8,780 8,780 12927
Dividends Transferred During the Year 10,987 31,624 48,639 0 40,500
Withdrawals During the Year (9,798) (24033) (44492) (8,780) (50616)
Balance at the End of the Year 1,189 8,780 12,927 0 2,811

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Dividends are declared and distributed every year in accordance with the Company's Articles of Associations related to
dividends distibution. In the past, the policy has been to pay out 50% of net income as dividends and to retain 50% for
working capital and capital investment needs.

7.4.4 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities comprise only end of service benefits to employees, due under the Labor law.

End of Service Benefits

The following table presents a breakdown of the end of service benefits of the Company by operation for the fiscal years
ended March 31,2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.32: Breakdown of End of Service Benefits (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Jubail Operation 4,470 4,320 5,036 4817 5,402
Jebel Ali Free Zone Operation 403 543 696 589 828
Total End of Service Benefits 4,873 4,863 5,732 5,406 6,230

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

Since Red Sea is incorporated in Saudi Arabia, it must abide by the prevailing labor laws and regulations of Saudi Arabia. The
Jebel Ali Free Zone branch in Dubai follows the laws and regulations of the Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority (“JAFZA™) which
require that seven days of the employee’s basic salary is accrued every year for all the years the employee works for the
Company. Regarding the Republic of Ghana employees, no End of Service Benefits provision was required as of November
30, 2005G due to the fact that the plant start-up was in October 2005G.

The end of service benefits remained stable between 2003G and 2004G while this account increased by SAR 09 million in

2005G which is an 18 % increase. This increase was due to the increase in number of employees from 609 in 2004G to 630
in 2005G. Estimated monthly provisions were made during the yearand recalculated at year end.
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7.4.5 SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The following table presents a breakdown of the shareholders’ equity of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2003G, 2004 G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.33: Breakdown of Shareholders' Equity (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G**
Share Capital 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 300,000
Statutory Reserves 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500
Retained Earnings 69,199 100,605 149 899 173342 55459
Total Shareholders’ Equity 73,699 105,105 154399 177842 356959

*Unaudited Financials

#* Unaudited pro-forma condensed consolidated financial statements for the eight months ended November 30, 2005G. In addition
to the amount transferred from retained eamhgs for the inaease in capital of SAR 147 milion, the Partners injected SAR 150
million on December 4 2005G, which was deposited at Saudi Hollandi Bank for the capital increase. Accordingly, the total capital of
the Company dfter the proposed increase will be SAR 300 million.

Source: Red Seq, figures are rounded

The shareholders' equity of the Company increased by 43% in 2004G compared to 2003G and by 46% in 2005G compared
to 2004 G. This was due mainly to the healthy profitability of the Company and the resulting retained eamings over this
period.

The following table summarzes the movements in retained eamings of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2003G, 2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30, 2004G and 2005G.

Exhibit 7.34: Movement in Retained Eamings (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30
2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G
Opening Balance 57,453 69,199 100,605 100,605 149,899
Net Income forthe Year 22,733 63,030 97933 72,737 93,060
Dividends Paid During the Year (10987) (31624) (48,639) 0 (40500)
Proposed increase in capital 0 0 0 0 (147,000)
Ending Balance 69,199 100,605 149899 173342 55,459

*Unaudited Financials
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

7.5 CASH FLOWS

The following table presents a summary of the cash flows of the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003G,
2004G, and 2005G as well as eight months ended November 30,2004 G and 2005 G.
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Exhibit 7.35: Cash Flows (SAR 000s)

Eight months ended
Fiscal Year Ended March 31 November 30

2003G 2004G 2005G 2004G* 2005G**

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 36,116 57,008 89,403 56,261 26,123
Cash Flow from Investing Activities (8,189) 1,242 (2,781) 4,464 (23612)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities (17924) (21,888) (41637) (27555) 95,125
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,003 36,362 44,985 33,170 97,636
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance 9,465 19,468 55,830 55,830 100,815
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance 19,468 55,830 100815 89,000 198451

*Unaudited Financials
#* Unaudited pro-forma condensed consolidated financial statements for the eight months ended November 30, 2005G
Source: Red Sea, figures are rounded

2005G Cash flow

The contribution of cash from operations for the year 2005G was SAR 894 million. This is related to the record level of
profits before depreciation charge (non-cash) of SAR 105 million. As the company enjoyed excellent cash inflow, it reduced
the payable balance levels which brought the net cash flow from operations to SAR 89.4 million.

The net cash used in investing activities for the year 2005G amounted to SAR 2.7 million. This resulted mainly from property
and equipments additions of SAR 10.6 million that includes SAR 6.5 million for the construction of the Republic of Ghana
plant and the rest mainly for rental properties to clients. Cash proceeds, which were generated mainly from sale of buildings
and residential houses to customers, amounted to SAR 7.9 million, which had a net book value of SAR 6 million.

The cash used in financing activities for the fiscal year 2005G amounts to SAR 41 .6 million, mainly related to dividends paid to
the Company’s shareholders.

2004G Cash flow

The year 2004G cash flow from operations of SAR 57 milion was mainly derived from the substantial increase in profits
before depreciation of SAR 73 million. The difference of SAR 16 million in cash from operations was utilized to finance the
Company’s working capital requirements, related mainly to the increase in trade accounts receivable and inventories. The
increase in the working capital requirements was due mainly to the substantial increase in the Company’s business activity.

The net cash flow from investing activities in 2004G contributed to SAR 1.2 million resulting from buildings and residential
houses and machinery and equipment additions of SAR 3.5 million and proceeds from sale of camps due to discontinuing
the property management division of SAR 14.7, which had a net book value of SAR | 1.5 million.

The cash used in financing actiities in 2004G of SAR 22 million resulted from withdrawal of SAR 24 million by the
Company’s shareholders as dividends and receipt of short term loan of SAR 2 million.

2003G Cash flow

The contribution to cash from operations for the year 2003G was SAR 36 million. This was mainly derived from profits
before depreciation charge of SAR 30 million, with the remaining SAR 6 million resulting from efficient control over working
capital mainly extending supplier's credits.

The Company's net investing activities in 2003G had a negative cash flow of SAR 8 million. This resulted from additions to

property and equipment of SAR 4 million which was partially offset by SAR 59 million from proceeds from sales of mainly
building and residential houses and other assets at net book value of SAR 4.3 million.
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The cash used in financing activities in 2003G of SAR 17.9 million was mainly used for settlement of short term debts of SAR
8 milion with the balance of SAR 99 million withdrawn by the shareholders of the Company in the form of dividends.
Working Capital

Generally, the working capital requirements of Red Sea would be expected to rise in line with the growth in the Company's
business and revenues. Such longer-term trends may however be distorted by short-term increases or decreases in
inventories, receivables, and payables.

7.6 OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (CONTINGENT LIABILITIES)

Off balance sheet items comprise mainly letters of guarantee and letters of credit. The tables below present breakdowns of
letters of guarantee and letters of credit, by bank and value outstanding as of March 31, 2005G.

Exhibit 7.36: Breakdown of Letters of Guarantee (SAR 000s)

Bank Value Outstanding Margin
Riyadh Bank — Jeddah 1,803 236
Saudi Hollandi Bank [,154 0
Emirates Bank - Dubai [,870 595
Total 4,827 831

Source: Red Sea, Figures are rounded

Exhibit 7.37: Breakdown of Letters of Credit (SAR 000s)

Bank Value Outstanding Margin
Emirates Bank - Dubai 6,145 0
Total 6,145 0

Source: Red Sea, Figures are rounded

The outstanding guarantees mainly relate to performance bonds, guarantees against advance payments and bid bonds given
to customers. The majority of these expired in 2005G. Only Riyadh Bank and Emirates Bank charge a cash margin on the
guarantee issued.

As of March 31,2005G, 2004G and 2003G the Company had the following commitments and contingencies outstanding:

m  Letters of guarantee amounting to SAR 48 million (SAR 4.1 million in 2003G and SAR 9.6 million in
2004G) on which margins of SAR 0.8 million were paid (SAR 0.1 million in 2003G and SAR 0.7 million
in 2004G).

m  Letters of credit amounting to SAR 6.1 million (SAR 0.4 million in 2003G and SAR [1.7 million in
2004G) on which no margins were paid.

7.7 CURRENT TRADING AND PROSPECTS

Red Sea’ operations have achieved consistent and healthy profitability which has grown over the years with a net income
margin averaging 7% over the last three fiscal years 2003G-2005G. Red Sea has been able to successfully improve its
profitability while also growing its revenues and improving its market position resulting in high levels of cash generation. The
latest financials for the 8 months ended November 30, 2005 released by the Company show a net profit of SAR 93 million
which represents a record net income margin of 34%.

Long-term growth prospects of Red Sea appear positive with expectations of continuing high levels of project activity and

industnialization across the Middle East, driven especially by (i) high oil prices (i) government efforts aimed at economic
diversification and (iii) massive development potential in Africa in the face of increasing intemational efforts and development
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aid. Red Sea intends to continue its policy of providing the most suitable products to its customers supported by the state of
the art technology, equipment, and practices which will require continuous investments in the facilities and human resource
capabilities.

Currently the Company does not have any plans to undertake any material change to the nature of its business.

7.8 STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A™) has been drafted by
the Management of Red Sea and approved by the Board of Directors. Except as set forth in this Prospectus, Management
believes that there has been no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of the Company as of the date
of this Prospectus and accepts full responsibility for the authenticity and accuracy of the information and analysis of financial
results and confirms, after making all reasonable inquiries, that full and fair disclosure has been made and there are no other
information or documents the omission of which make any information or statements therein misleading.
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8 DIVIDEND RECORD AND POLICY

The Company intends to pay dividends to its shareholders with a view to maximizing shareholder value depending on the
Company's income, its financial condition, market conditions, general economic conditions, and other factors, including
available investment opportunities, and reinvestment needs, cash and capital needs, business prospects, as well as other legal
and regulatory considerations. Dividends will be distributed in Saudi Arabian Riyals (“SAR”).

Although the Company intends to pay annual dividends to its shareholders, it does not make any assurance that any
dividends will actually be paid nor any assurance as to the amount, which will be paid in any given year. The distrbution of
dividends is subject to certain limitations contained in the Company's By-Laws.

The Offer Shares will be entifled to receive dividends declared by the Company from the date of commencement of the
Offering Period and for subsequent fiscal years. The following table summarizes the Company’s net income and dividends

declared by the Company forthe fiscal years ending March 31, 2003G, 2004G, and 2005G.

Exhibit 8.1: Dividend Record of the Company (SAR 000s)

Year Net Income Dividends Declared
2003G 22,733 10,987
2004G 63,030 31,624
2005G 97933 48,639

Source: Red Sea

ft should be noted that the Company is expected to pay approximately SAR 60 million in dividends to the Existing
Shareholders for the fiscal year ending March 31 2006G.
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9 CAPITALIZATION

The table below sets out the capitalization of Red Sea as derived from the audited finandal statements of the Company for the eight
months ended November 30, 2005G. The following tabk should be read in conjunction with the finandal statements, and the notes
thereto, included in the section “Auditor's Report” of this Prospectus.

Exhibit 9.1: Red Sea Capitalization as of November 30, 2005G (SAR 000s)

Debt:
Short Tem 741
Long Term 0
Shareholder Loans 2811
Total Debt and Shareholders Accounts 3,552
Shareholders' Equity
Share Capital 3000
Transferred from retained eamings for the increase in capital * 147,000
Legal Reserves 1,500
Retained Eamings 55459
Total Shareholders' Equity 206,959
Total Capitalization 210511

Source: Red Sea, Figures are rounded

** In addition the amount transfemed from retained eamings for the increase in capital of SAR 147 million, the Dabbagh Group
injected SAR 150 million on December 4 2005G, which was deposited at Saudi Hollandi Bank for the capital increase. Accordingly,
the total capital of the Company dfter the proposed increase will be SAR 300 million.

Pursuant to the Partners Resolution signed by the Existing Shareholders and notarized before the Notary Public of the
Chamber of Commerce and Industry in the Eastern Province on 29/6/1427H (Corresponding to 25/7/2006G), the Capital of
the company was increased from SAR 3 million (consisting of 3000 Shares at a nominal value of SAR 1,000 each) to SAR
300 million (consisting of 30,000,000 Shares at a nominal value of SAR 10 each) through a transfer of SAR 147 million from
retained eamings as of November 30, 2005G and the injection of SAR 50 million in new capital by the Dabbagh Group, on
December4, 2005G.

The table below sets out the Pro Forma capitalization of Red Sea including SAR 147 million transfered for retained eamings as of
November 30, 2005G 2005G and the injection of SAR 150 million in new capital by the Dabbagh Group.

Exhibit 9.2: Red Sea Pro Forma Capitalization after Injection of SAR 150 Million in New Capital (SAR 000s)
Debt:

Short Term 741
Long Term 0
Shareholder Loans 2811
Total Debt and Shareholders Accounts 3,552
Shareholders' Equity
Share Capital 3,000
Transferred from retained eamings for the increase in capital * 147,000
Capital Injection 150,000
Legal Reserves | ,500
Retained Earmings 55459
Total Shareholders' Equity 356,959
Total Capitalization 360511

Source: Red Sea, Figures are rounded

The Existing Shareholders injected SAR 150 million to increase the capital for the following reasons:
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B A strengthening of the Company’s balance sheet was deemed necessary to ensure Red Sea could capitalize on attractive
opportunities for continued growth. Red Sea is bidding on an increasing number of large-scale projects and since the
services provided by Red Sea are critical to the ability of its clients to commence operations, its customers are
increasingly demanding sizeable bid bonds, performance bonds, warranties or other evidence that bidders have the
capability to deliver on their projects. Such bonds frequently amount to around 10% - 5% of the amount of the

underlying contract size.

B Red Sea continues to invest in high levels of inventory to ensure that it may compete aggressively on delivery times for
large and profitable projects. The absence of a down-payment in many contracts requires significant avaiability of funds
to finance the start-up phase of such projects. Such projects also require additional investment in other areas, including

additional personnel to meet project strict specifications (e g. safety officers).

B The establishment of the Republic of Ghana plant constituted an important strategic milestone for Red Sea but required
significant financial investment. In addition to the SAR 6.5 million for the plant construction, Red Sea also invested heavily
in inventories, and purchases to meet production requirements in Ghana constituted the main driver of the SAR 30.698
million increase in raw materials as of November 30, 2005G. The capital injection serves to ensure the Company retains
sufficient levels of liquid capital to meet its further expansion objectives.

B  Red Sea has recently been successful in obtaining an important contract related to the Qatargas 3 and Qatargas 4 LNG
gas projects following a bidding process which dates back several months. In addition to the sizeable working capital
requirements to fund inventories to camy out this contract, Red Sea has also taken the decision to establish a new
manufacturing plant in Qatar. The Company is in the process of acquiring land in Qatar and the total investment costs
are expected to be broadly similarto the investment in Ghana.

B  The Company has been developing an important new initiative relating to a housing compound in Algeria which would
represent a total investment cost of approximately US$ 9 million (SAR 33.75m). If successful, the Company would seek
to roll this concept out in other markets, with a project in South East Asia already under review.

B |n addition to the considerable opportunities for organic growth, Red Sea may also consider other opportunities to
expand its core activities. These could include diversification into related sectors (such as the water treatment sector)
and strategic acquisitions of other industry players.

All ordinary shares of the Company are issued and fully paid. Red Sea confims that neither the Company's capital nor the
capital of any affiliates is under option.

As of 31/03/2005G, the Company had no contingent liabilities otherthan as disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Exhibit 9.3: Ownership Structure of Red Sea

Dabbagh Group Holding
Company Limited

Tanmiah Commercial Group

Supreme Foods Company
Limited

National Scientific Company
Limited

Marketing and Commercial
Agencies Company Limited
Offering Subscribers

Total

Pre-Offering Post-Offering
Shares Percent  Capital (SAR)* Shares Percent  Capital (SAR)*
24300000  81.00% 243,000,000 15300000 51.00% 153,000,000
1,200,000 4.00% 12,000,000 1,200,000 4.00% 12,000,000
1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000
1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000
1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000 1,500,000 5.00% 15,000,000
0 0.00% 0 9,000,000 30.00% 90,000,000
30,000,000 100.00% 300,000,000 30,000,000 100.00% 300,000,000

*SAR 10 par value/share
Source: Red Sea
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The Company's liquidity is strong, as evidenced by its consistent capacity to generate positive operating cash flows and as a
consequence, claims have traditionally been met from current cash flows. However, in the event of short-term liquidity being
required, Red Sea has unused bank facilities, in aggregate of SAR [38.1 million. The Company's policy is to use its bank
facilities primarily to fund the working capital requirements on a short term basis. For additional information of the Company’s

borrowings and repayments, please refer to the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” section of this Prospectus.
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10 USE OF PROCEEDS

The total proceeds from the Offering are estimated at SAR 522000,000, of which an estimated SAR 23,000,000 will be
applied towards issue expenses, which includes fees due to the financial advisor, legal advisor, accounting advisor, media and
public relations consultants, in addition to underwriting expenses, receiving bank expenses, printing and distribution expenses,
and other issue related expenses. The estimated net proceeds of SAR 499,000000 will be distrbuted to the Selling

Shareholder. The Company will not receive any part of the proceeds from the Offering. The Selling Shareholder will bear all
Offering expenses.
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11 DESCRIPTION OF THE SHARES
11.1 SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of Red Sea shall be SAR 300 million consisting of thirty (30) million Shares with a nominal value of SAR 10
each, all of which are cash shares representing the entire paid in capital of the Company upon conversion.

Once it is ascertained to be economically feasible and after obtaining the approval of the competent authorities, the General
Assembly may, in an Extraordinary Meeting, adopt a resolution to increase the Company’s capital once or several times by
issuing new shares having the same nominal value as the original shares, provided that the original capital shall have been paid
in full, with due consideration to the requirements of the Companies Regulations. The said resolution shall specify the mode
of increasing the capital, and the Shareholders shall have pre-emptive rights to subscribe for the new cash shares. The said
shares shall be allotted to the original Shareholders who have expressed their desire to subscribe thereto, in proportion to
the original shares owned by them, provided that the number of shares allotted to them shall not exceed the number of new
shares they have applied for. The remaining new shares shall be allotted to the original Shareholders who have asked for
more than their proportionate share, in proportion to the original shares they own, provided that that their total allotment
does not exceed the number of new shares they have asked for. Any remaining new shares shall be offered for public
subscription.

The Company may, based on certain justifiable causes, reduce its capital if it proves to be in excess of the Company’s needs
or if the Company sustains losses. This decision must be made through a resolution adopted by the General Assembly in an
Extraordinary Meeting, and requires approval of the Minister of Commerce and Industry. Such resolution shall be issued only
after reading the auditor's report on the reasons calling for such reduction, the obligations to be fulfilled by the Company and
the effect of the reduction on such obligations, with due consideration to the provisions of the Companies Regulations. The
resolution shall provide for the manner in which the reduction shall be made. If the reduction of the capital is due to its being
in excess of the Company’s needs, then the Company’s creditors must be invited to express their objection thereto within
sixty (60) days from the date of publication of the reduction resolution in a daily newspaper published in the city where the
Company's head office is located. Should any creditor object and present to the Company evidentiary documents of such
debt within the time limit set above, then the Company shall pay such debt, if already due, or present an adequate guarantee
of payment if the debt is due on a later dates.

11.2 THE SHARES

The Shares shall be nominal shares and may not be issued at less than their nominal value. However, the shares may be
issued at a value higher than their nominal value, in which case, the difference in value shall be added to the legal reserve,
even if the reserve has reached its maximum limit. A share shall be indivisible. If a share is held by several persons, they shall
designate one person to act on their behalf in exercising the rights connected with the share. In such a case, they shall be
jointly responsible forthe obligations resulting from the share ownership.

The transfer of Shares shall be governed by and comply with the regulations goveming companies listed on Tadawul.
Transfers made other than in accordance with these Articles shall not be valid.

11.3 SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Each Share shall give its holder equal rights in the Company’s assets and dividends as well as the right to attend and vote at
meetings of the General Assembly.

11.4 VOTING RIGHTS

Each shareholder holding twenty (20) Shares or more shall have the right to attend the General Assembly. A shareholder
may delegate in the form of a written proxy, another shareholder, other than the members of the Board of Directors, to
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attend the General Assembly on his/her behalf. The votes in the Ordinary General Assembly as well as in the Extraordinary
General Assembly shall be counted on the basis of one vote for every share.

Resolutions of the Ordinary General Assembly shall be made only by an absolute majority vote of the shares represented
therein.

Resolutions of the Extraordinary General Assembly shall be made by a majority vote of two thirds (2/3) of the shares
represented at the meeting, except for resolutions pertaining to the increase or the reduction of the capital, the extension of
the duration of the Company before its term or the merger into another company or establishment. In such cases, the
resolution shall not be considered as valid unless issued by the majority vote of three quarters (3/4) of the shares represented
at the meeting.

Each shareholder shall have the right to discuss the items listed in the General Assembly’s agenda and to raise questions to
the members of the Board and the Auditor in this respect. The Board of Directors or the Auditor shall answer the
Shareholders’ questions to the extent that does not nsk harming the interest of the Company. Should a shareholder feel
unsatisfied with the reply, he can raise the issue with the General Assembly whose resolution is to be considered as final.

11.5 SHAREHOLDERS ASSEMBLIES

A General Assembly duly convened shall be considered representing all the Shareholders, and shall be held in the city where
the Company’s head office is located.

Meetings of the General Assembly may be conducted by way of ordinary or extraordinary meetings. Except for matters
reserved for the Extraordinary General Assembly, the Ordinary General Assembly shall be in charge of all matters conceming
the Company. The Ordinary General Assembly Meeting must be held at least once per year during the six months following
the end of the Company's fiscal year. Other ordinary assemblies may be convened as often as needed.

The Extraordinary General Assembly shall have the power to amend the Company’s By- Laws, except for such provisions as
may be impermissible to be amended under the Regulations. Furthermore, the Extraordinary General Assembly may pass
resolutions on matters falling within the competence of the Ordinary General Assembly under the same conditions applicable
to the latter.

A notice of the date and agenda of the General Assembly shall be published in the Official Gazette as well as in a daily
newspaper, distributed in the city of the Company’s headquarters, at least twenty five (25) days prior to the date of meeting.
Altematively, it is sufficient to send invitations by registered mal to all the Shareholders. A copy of the invitation and the
agenda is to be sent to the Companies General Department at the Ministry of Commerce and Industry.

The Board of Directors shall convene a meeting of the Ordinary General Assembly if requested to do so by the Auditors or
by a number of Shareholders representing at least five percent (5%) of the Company’s capital.

The meeting of the Ordinary General Assembly shall not be considered representative unless attended by Shareholders
representing 51 % of the Company's capital at the minimum. Should such participation level not be achieved in the first
meeting, the Assembly shall be convened once again within the following thirty (30) days. The invitation shall be issued as
determined by Article (32) of the Company’s By-Laws. The second meeting shall be considered representative imespective of
the number of shares represented.

To be considered representative, the meeting of the Extraordinary General Assembly should be attended by a number of
Shareholders representing at least 51 % of the Company’s capital. If such requirement is not met in the first meeting, the
Assembly shall be summoned once again within the following thirty (30) days. The second meeting shall be considered
representative if attended by a number of Shareholders representing at least one quarter (I /4) of the Company's capital.

The General Assembly shall be presided over by the Chairman of the Board of Directors or, in his absence, the Director
designated by him. The Chairman shall appoint a secretary for the meeting and a canvasser. Minutes shall be prepared for the
meeting showing the names of Shareholders present in person or represented by proxy, the number of the shares held by
each, the number of votes attached to such shares, the resolutions adopted at the meeting, the number of votes assenting or
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dissenting to such resolutions and a comprehensive summary of the discussions that took place at the meeting. Such minutes
shall be regularly recorded after each meeting in a special register to be signed by the Chairman of the Assembly, the
secretary and the canvasser.

11.6 ZAKAT

The Company is subject to zakat in accordance with the regulations of the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (*DZIT").
Zakat is accrued and charged to the statement of income currently. The Jebel Ali branch is not subject to any zakat or
income taxes in the country of operations.

11.7 DURATION AND WINDING-UP OF THE COMPANY

The duration of the Company shall be 99 years commencing on the date of issuance of the Minister of Commerce’s
resolution announcing the conversion of the Company. The duration may be extended by a resolution of the Extraordinary
General Assembly taken, at least, one year priorto the expiration of the term of the Company.

Upon the expiration of the Company's period, or in case of dissolution before its term, the Extraordinary General Assembly
shall decide upon the method of liquidation based on the Board of Directors’ recommendation. It shall also appoint one or
more liquidators and determine their functions and fees.

The powers of the Board of Directors shall cease upon the Company’s expiry. However, the Board of Directors shall remain

responsible for the management of the Company until the liquidators are specified. The Company's administrative
departments shall maintain their powers to the extent that they do not interfere with the powers of the liquidators.
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12 SUMMARY OF THE COMPANY’S PROPOSED BY-

LAWS

Name of the Company: The name of the Company shall be “Red Sea Housing Services Company”, a Saudi joint stock

company.

Objectives of the Company: The objectives of the Company are:

To purchase lands and real estates with the object of developing and improving same, to construct residential and
commercial buildings thereon and to exploit same by sale or lease for the benefit of the Company.

Buildings General Contracting: “Construction-Repair-Demolition and Renovation”. This includes general buildings
— residential, commercial and industrial buildings — educational facilities — entertainment and sports facilities —
health facilities — airport buildings and manufactured buildings.

Undertake maintenance and operation of buildings, roads, water and sewerage facilities, medical centers, sports
centers, maintenance and operation of electrical and mechanical installations, city cleaning.

Manufacturing of pre-fabricated buildings and building components utilizing metal, wood, lightweight concrete,
PVC and fiberglass including but not limited to single and multistory houses, offices, dormitories, recreation
buildings, dining halls, kitchens, chiller/freezer rooms, laundry rooms, store rooms, security rooms, schools, clinics
and hotels.

Manufacturing of transportable waste water treatment plants, potable water treatment plants, shipping containers
and power generation plants.

Manufacturing of molded fiberglass plumbing fixtures such as but not limited to, sinks, shower sumrounds, bathtubs,
countertops, tanks and associated moldings.

Maintenance of ail field and petrochemical steel structures of all types including on-shore and off-shore
equipment.

Extrusion manufacturing of all types of PVC and polystyrene shapes.

To undertake the construction of utility and civil works including but not limited to concrete, plumbing, electrical,
waste collection treatment and removal, recreational faciliies such as sports courts, swimming pools, roadways,
walkways, lighting, communication systems, fire detection and fire fighting systems and any other related civil
works.

. Management of residential and commercial real estate properties.

. To engage in retal and wholesale trade of building materials, industrial equipment and road construction

equipment.

. To engage in sub-contracting of specialzed works such as but not limited to decorations of all types, earth

removal filling and compacting, finishings, buildings erections and installations, construction equipment hire and
operation.

The Company shall obtain the necessary licenses from the relevant authorities prior to performing any of the activities listed
above which require a license.

The Company may have an interest in, or participate in any manner with, other organizations or companies which perform
activities similar to those it undertakes or which may help it to realize its objectives. The Company may also own shares in
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other existing companies and may merge with, be taken over by, or purchase other companies. The Company may also own
shares in such companies and other existing companies, may merge with, be taken over by, or purchase these companies.
The Company may participate in any form with other companies provided that its level of participation shall not exceed 20%
of the Company’s free reserves and 0% of the share capital of the company in which it invests. The General Assembly shall
be notified of any such participation at its first meeting.

Head Office of the Company: The Company’s head office shall be in the city of Jubail, Saudi Arabia. The Board of Directors
may transfer the head office to any other city in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and may establish branches, offices or agencies
forthe Company within or outside the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Duration of the Company: The duration of the Company shall be ninety-nine (99) years commencing on the date of
issuance of the Minister of Commerce’s resolution announcing the conversion of the Company. The Company’s period may
always be extended by a resolution of the Extraordinary General Assembly taken at least one year prior to the expiration of
the term of the Company.

Capital of the Company: The share capital of the Company shall be three hundred million Saudi Riyals (SAR 300,000000),
divided into thirty million (30,000000) registered shares of equal value of ten Saudi Riyals (SAR 10) each, all of which are

cash shares representing the entire paid in capital of the Company upon conversion.

Shareholders of the Company: The owners of the Shares upon conversion are as follows:

No. Name Percentage = Number of Shares Value in Saudi Riyals
O,
I Dabbagh Group Holding Company 51% 15,300000 153,000,000
Limited
2 Tanmiah Commercial Group % 1,200,000 12000000
(o)
3 Supreme Foods Company Limited >% 500000 15000000
4 National Scientific Company Limited >% 1500000 15000000
O,
> Marketing and Commercial Agencies >% 1500000 15000000
Company Limited
Total 70% 21,000,000 210,000,000

The remaining shares, amounting to nine million (9,000,000) shares and representing 30% of the Company’s capital, shall be
offered for public subscription through participating banks in Saudi Arabia in accordance with the Companies Regulations and
the Capital Market Law and its Implementing Regulations.

Preferred Shares: Upon approval of, and in accordance with guidelines set by, the Minister of Commerce and Industry, the
Company may issue non-voting preferred shares in an amount not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the Company’s capital. In
addition to their right to receive dividends, holders of such shares shall be granted the following:

a) The right to a specified percentage of net income, after deducting statutory reserves and before distributing any
of the Company’s profits, in an amount not less than five percent (5%) of the par value of each share,

b) Preference in recovery of the value of their shares upon liquidation of the Company, and in receving any specified
proceeds from such liquidation.

The Company may purchase these shares in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. These shares do not

factor into calculation of the quorum required to hold a General Assembly, pursuant to Articles (34) and (35) of the
Company's By-Laws.
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Bonds: The Company may issue negotiable and indivisible bonds of equal value against the borrowings it contracts in
accordance with the Companies Regulations and the Capital Market Law and its Implementing Regulations.

Non-Payment of Shares: If a Shareholder fails to pay the value of the shares at the times set therefore, then the Board of
Directors may sell such shares in a public auction, after having wamed the Shareholder by means of a registered letter to the
address stated in the Shareholders Register. However, the Shareholder may still, in such a situation, pay the value due plus the
expenses incurred by the Company up to the day set for the auction. The Company shal recover what is due to it from the
sale proceeds and refund the balance to the Shareholder. If the sale proceeds are insufficient to cover the Company's dues,
then the Company may recover the entire amount due from the Shareholders’ wealth. If this is done, then the Company shall
cancel the share sold and give the purchaser a new share bearing the same number of the cancelled share, a notation of
which shall be made in the Shareholders Register.

The Shares: The shares shall be nominal shares and may not be issued at less than their nominal value. However, the shares
may be issued at a value higher than their nominal value, in which case the difference in value shall be added to the statutory
reserve, even if the reserve has reached its maximum limit. A share shall be indivisible vis-a-vis the Company. In the event that
a share is owned by several persons, they shall select one person from amongst them to exercise, on their behaff, the rights
pertaining to the share, and they shall be jointly responsible for the obligations arising from the ownership of the share.

Transfer of Shares: The shares shall be transferable in accordance with the rules, regulations and directives issued by the
Capital Market Authority.

Shareholders Register: The nominal shares shall be transferred by being recorded in the Shareholders Register which shall
contain the names of the Shareholders, their nationalities, their occupations, their domicile and address, the serial numbers of
the shares and the value paid-up on such shares. An annotation of such recording shall be made on the share certificates. The
transfer of title to a share shall not be effective vis-a-vis the Company or any third party except from the date of such
recording in the said Register or the completion of the transfer procedures through the Shares Information Comp uterized
system. The subscription or ownership of the shares by a Shareholder shall mean the acceptance by the Shareholder of the
Company’s By-Laws and his submission to the resolutions duly passed by the General Assembly of the Shareholders in
accordance with the Company’s By-Laws, whether the Shareholder was present or absent and whether the Shareholder
agreed to such resolutions or objected to them.

Share Certificates: The Company shal issue share certificates with serial numbers. The shares shall be signed by the
Chairman of the Board of Directors, or by a member of the Board authorized on the Chairman’s behalf and stamped with
the Company’s stamp. The Share certificate shall, in particular, show the number and date of the Ministeral Resolution
announcing the conversion of the Company, the value of the capital, the number of shares, the share’s nominal value, the
paid-up value, a summary of the Company’s objectives and the Company’s head office and term. The shares may have
coupons with senal numbers, and each coupon shall bear the number of the share to which it is attached.

Increase of Capital: Once it is ascertained to be economically feasble and after obtaining the approval of the competent
authorities, the General Assembly may, in an Extraordinary Meeting, adopt a resolution to increase the Company’s capital
once or several times by issuing new shares having the same nominal value as the original shares, provided that the orginal
capital shall have been paid in full, with due consideration to the requirements of the Companies Regulations and the Capital
Market Law and its Implementing Regulations. The said resolution shall specify the mode of increasing the capital, and the
Shareholders shall have preemptive rights to subscribe for the new cash shares. The Shareholders shall be notified of the
preemptive rights vested in them by notice to be published in a daily newspaper addressing the capital increase resolution
and the conditions of subscription, or by written notice to the shareholder by registered mail. Each Shareholder shall express
the desire to exercise such preemptive rights, if they so wish, within fifteen (15) days of the publication of such notice or
receipt of such notice by registered mail.

The said shares shall be allotted to the original Shareholders who have expressed their desire to subscribe thereto, in
proportion to the original shares owned by them, provided that the number of shares allotted to them shall not exceed the
number of new shares they have applied for. The remaining new shares shall be allotted to the original Shareholders who
have asked for more than their proportionate share, in proportion to the ornginal shares they own, provided that that their
total allotment does not exceed the number of new shares they have asked for. Any remaining new shares shall be offered
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for public subscription. Article (10) of the Company's By-Laws shall apply to payment of the value of shares issued pursuant
to Article (15) of the Company's By-Laws.

Decrease of Capital: The Company may, based on certain justifiable causes, reduce its capital if it proves to be in excess of
the Company’s needs or if the Company sustains losses. This decision must be made through a resolution adopted by the
General Assembly in an Extraordinary Meeting, and requires approval of the Minister of Commerce and Industry. Such
resolution shall be issued only after reading the auditor's report on the reasons calling for such reduction, the obligations to
be fulflled by the Company and the effect of the reduction on such obligations, with due consideration to the provisions of
the Companies Regulations. The resolution shall provide for the manner in which the reduction shall be made. If the
reduction of the capital is due to its being in excess of the Company's needs, then the Company’s creditors must be invited
to express their objection thereto within sixty (60) days from the date of publication of the reduction resolution in a daily
newspaper published in the city where the Company’s head office is located. Should any creditor object and present to the
Company evidentiary documents of such debt within the time limit set above, then the Company shall pay such debt, if
already due, or present an adequate guarantee of payment if the debt is due on a later date.

Constitution of the Board of Directors: The Company shall be managed by a Board of Directors composed of nine (9)
members to be appointed by the Ordinary General Assembly for a term of three years commencing as of the date of the
Ministerial Resolution dedlaring the Company’s conversion.

Qualification Shares: Each member of the Board of Directors shall be a holder of a number of the Company’s shares having
a nominal value of no less than ten thousand Saudi Riyals (SAR 10000). Such shares shall be deposited in a bank designated
by the Minister of Commerce and Industry within thirty (30) days from the date of the appointment of the director. Such
shares shall be kept aside to guarantee the liability of the Board members and shall remain non-negotiable until the expiry of
the period specified for hearing the liability action provided for under Article 76 of the Companies Regulations or until a
judgment is passed on said action. Each Shareholder in the Company with a legal personality shall provide the qualification
shares for the director representing it or his replacement. Should a member of the Board of Directors fail to submit such
qualification shares within the period specified therefore, his membership in the Board shall be deemed null and void.

Vacancies: Membership of the Board of Directors shall be terminated upon the expiration of the appointment period, or
resignation of the Director, or death of the Director, or if he is removed from his office by a resolution passed by a majority
of 51% of the shares represented at an Ordinary General Assembly meeting or if he is convicted of an offence involving
dishonesty, fraud or moral turpitude, or if he becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or compounds with his creditors.
Termination of membership shall also occur under any law or regulations prevailing in Saudi Arabia. Termination of
membership shall also occur if the member becomes unsuitable for membership under any law or regulations prevailing in
the Kingdom.

If the office of a Board member becomes vacant, the Board may appoint a member in the vacant position temporarily,
provided that such appointment is put forward before the first meeting of the Ordinary General Assembly for endorsement.
The term of office of the new member designated to fill a vacancy shall only extend to the term of office of his predecessor.
In case the number of the members of the Board of Directors falls below the quorum required for the proper convening of
the Board meetings, the General Assembly shall be called for an Ordinary Meeting as soon as possible in order to appoint the
necessary number of Board members.

Powers of the Board of Directors: Without prejudice to the powers conferred on the General Assembly, the Board of
Directors shall be vested with full powers to manage the business of the Company and supervise its affairs within and outside
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The Board of Directors is empowered, for example and without limitation, to represent the Company in its relationship with
others and before all Govemment departments, the Shariah Courts, the Board of Grievances, Labour Offices, Primary and
Supreme Committees of Settlement of Labour Disputes, the Committee for the Enforcement of Negotiable Instruments, and
all other courts of law or judicial bodies, Boards of Arbitration, Police Departments, the Directorate of Civil Rights, Chambers
of Commerce and Industry, all companies and establishments, commercial banks, exchanges, financial institutions, government
funds and other lenders; to plead, raise, defend, ask for, accept and settle claims, enforce and defend against judgments,
participate in tenders, to sign on behalf of the Company all documents including articles of association of companies in which
the Company shall participate, and to amend the same, to sign winding-up resolutions, as well as any other contracts, deeds,
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and declarations before public notaries or other official bodies, to sign loan agreements, guarantees, mortgages, leases and
deeds for the sale and purchase of land and buildings and all other contracts and agreements, and to delegate some or all of
these powers, under powers of attomey or any other written authorizations to any other person or persons; to open,
operate and close bank accounts, to receive and issue checks and to sign receipts, discharges, acknowledgments, bills of
exchange, promissory notes, checks, and all negotiable instruments; to buy, sell, and mortgage real estate.

The Board of Directors is specifically empowered to contract loans with government financial funds and institutions and
commercial loans with commercial banks and financial institutions for any term including terms exceeding three (3) years.

The Board of Directors may provide financial support to any of the companies in which the Company participates or any of
the Company’s affiliates or sister companies and may guarantee the credit facilities obtained by any of the companies in which
the Company participates or any of the Company’s affiliates or sister companies provided that the other shareholders in
these companies provide such financial support each in proportion to its ownership in that company.

The Board of Directors may release the Company’s debtors from their obligations as it deems necessary.

The Board of Directors may, within the limits of its jurisdiction, authorize and delegate one or more of its members or a third
party to undertake a specific function or functions, and revoke such delegations in whole or in part.

Remuneration of Board of Directors: Remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors (if any) shall be determined
by the Ordinary General Meeting in accordance with the official decisions and instructions issued in this regard, within the
limits of the provisions of the Companies Regulations and the laws or regulations complementary thereto. Directors may in
addition be paid an attendance and transportation allowance as determined by the Board of Directors and the regulations
and decisions issued in this respect. The report submitted by the Board of Directors to the Ordinary General Assembly shall
contain a statement of all payments made to the members of the Board during the fiscal year; salaries, share in profits,
attendance allowance, expenses and other benefits. It shall as well contain a statement of payments made in consideration for
technical, administrative or consultancy assignments carmied out by the Board's members.

Chairman, Managing Director and Secretary: The Board of Directors shall appoint a Chairman from among its members.
The Board of Directors may also appoint a Managing Director from among its members. The Board may choose one person
to be the Chairman and the Managing Director at the same time. The Chairman shall have the powers to convene the Board
to meet and preside over its meetings.

The Chairman and the Managing Director (in the event that one is appointed) shall be authorized to individually or jointly
represent the Company in its relationship with others and before judicial bodies, Government departments, Notaries Public,
courts of law, Commissions for setiements of disputes, Boards of Arbitration, Directorate of Civil Rights, Police Departments,
Chambers of Commerce and Industry, all companies and establishments; to issue powers of attorney and to appoint and
remove agents and attomeys; to raise, defend, plead, settle, acknowledge and arbitrate; to accept and reject judgments on
behalf of the Company; to sign and execute all agreements, certificates and instruments including articles of association of
companies in which the Company shall participate, and to amend the same, and to sign winding-up resolutions, as well as any
other contracts, deeds, and declarations, before public notaries or other official bodies, loan agreements with government
financial funds and institutions and commercial banks and financial institutions, guarantees, mortgages, leases, and terminating
them; to collect entittements and settle obligations on behalf of the Company; to buy, sell, make and accept transfers, receive,
deliver, rent, lease, collect and make payments, and to participate in tenders; to open bank and credit accounts and to
withdraw and deposit from the same; to issue instruments, checks and all negotiable instruments; to hire, contract with and
appoint employees and workmen and to specify their salaries and remunerations and remove them, to request visas for
employees and workmen from abroad, grant residency permmits and work visas, and transfer and temminate their sponsorship;
to authorize or delegate some or all of these powers to any other person or persons to do or cause to be done any act
mentioned hereinabove, and to revoke such authorization or delegation in whole orin part.

The Managing Director shall have such other powers as are specified by the Board of Directors, shall carry out such directives
as are given to him by the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors shall, under a resolution to be adopted thereby, specify the compensation to be given to each of the
Chairman and the Managng Director.
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The Board of Directors shall appoint a secretary from among its members or others, and shall specify his duties, remuneration
and terms of service. The Secretary’s duties shall include having the proceedings and resolutions of the Board of Directors
written in minutes and recorded in a special register, intended for the said purpose, as well as maintaining and keeping such
register.

The term of the office of the Chairman, the Managing Director and the Secretary — if the Secretary is a Board member — shall
not exceed their respective term of service as Directors. The term of the Chairman, the Managing Director and the Secretary
of the Board may be renewed.

Board Meetings: The Board of Directors shall be convened at least twice a year upon a call by the Chairman. Such call shall
be made in writing and delivered by hand or fax or sent by registered mail not less than two weeks prior to the date set for
the meeting, unless otherwise agreed by the Board members. The Chairman of the Board shal call for a meeting if so
requested by any two (2) Board members.

Quorum and Representation: A Board meeting shall be valid only if attended by at least four (4) members, three (3) of
whom must attend in person. In the event that a member of the Board of Directors gives a proxy to another member to
attend the Board meetings on his behalf, then such proxy shall be given in accordance with the following:

a) A member of the Board of Directors may not act on behalf of more than one Board member as to attending the
same meeting.

b) A proxy shall be made in writing.

c) A Board member acting by proxy may not vote on resolutions on which his principal is prohibited from voting
under the law.

The Board resolutions shall be adopted with the approval of the majority vote of the members present in person or
represented by proxy and otherwise eligble to vote on the matter in question. In case of a tie, the Chairman of the Board or
the Director presiding overthe Board in the absence of the Chaimman shall have a casting vote.

The Board may adopt its resolution by circulation unless one Board member requests a meeting for deliberations on such a
resolution. Such Resolutions shall be adopted with the approval of the majority vote of the Board members and shall be laid
before the Board in its first following meeting.

Minutes of Meetings: The Board deliberations and resolutions shall be drawn in minutes to be signed by the Board
Chairman and the Secretary. Such minutes shall be recorded in a special register to be signed by the Board Chairman and
the Secretary.

Conflicts of Interest Members of the Board of Directors must declare to the Board of Directors or Executive Committee,
as the case may be, any personal interest, whether direct or indirect, in any proposal, transaction or contract made for the
account of the Company. Such declaration must be recorded in the minutes of the Board or Executive Committee meeting,
as the case may be, and the interested Board member shall not participate in the deliberation or voting on the resolution to
be adopted in this respect.

Executive Committee: The Board of Directors may appoint from among its members an Executive Committee. The Board
of Directors shall appoint a Chairman from among the members of the Committee and shall specify the number of members
of the Committee and the required quorum for its meetings. In accordance with the directions and guidelines prescribed by
the Board from time to time, the Committee may exercise all of the powers authorised by the Board. The Executive
Committee may not revoke oralter any of the resolutions adopted, or rules laid down, by the Board of Directors.

General Assembly: A General Assembly duly convened shall be deemed representing all the Shareholders, and shall be held
in the city where the Company'’s head office is located.

Each shareholder owning twenty or more shares shall have the right to attend the General Assembly, whether in person or
by proxy. Each shareholder, regardless of the number of shares held, shall have the right to attend the General Assembly.
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Each Shareholder may authorize in writing another Shareholder, other than the members of the Board of Directors or
employees of the Company, to attend the General Assembly on his/its behalf.

Conversion General Assembly: The Conversion General Assembly shall be competent to deal with the following matters:
I} To ascertain that the capital of the Company has been fully subscribed for.
2) To approve the final text of the Company’s By-Laws.
3) To delberate on the report in respect of the activities and expenses required by the Company's conversion.

The Conversion General Assembly shall be valid only if attended by a number of Shareholders representing at least fifty-one
percent (51%) of the Company's capital.

Ordinary General Assembly: Except for matters reserved for the Extraordinary General Assembly, the Ordinary General
Assembly shall be in charge of all matters conceming the Company. The Ordinary General Assembly shall be convened at
least once a year, within six (6) months following the end of the Company's fiscal year. Additional Ordinary General
Assembly meetings may be convened whenever needed.

Extraordinary General Assembly: The Extraordinary General Assembly shall have the power to amend the Company’s By-
Laws, except for such provisions as may be impermissible to be amended under the law. Furthermore, the Extraordinary
General Assembly may pass resolutions on matters faling within the competence of the Ordinary General Assembly under
the same conditions applicable to the latter.

Manner of Convening General Assemblies: The General Assembly shall be convened by the Board of Directors. The Board
of Directors shall convene a meeting of the Ordinary General Assembly if requested to do so by the Auditors or by a
number of Shareholders representing at least five percent %) of the Company’s capital. The summons shall be published in
the Official Gazette and in a daily newspaper circulated in the city where the Company's head office is located at least
twenty-five 25) days prior to the time set for such meeting. The summons shall include the agenda of the meeting. However,
so long as the Company's shares remain nominal, notice may be given at the time fixed above by registered letters. A Copy
of the notice and the agenda shall be sent, within the period set for publication, to the Companies Department at the
Ministry of Commerce and Industry.

Record of Attendance at the Meetings of the General Assembly: At the start of the General Assembly, a statement shall
be prepared showing the names of the Shareholders, present or represented, and their addresses, as well as the number of
shares hold by them and the number of votes to which they are entitled. Any interested party shall have the right to examine
such list.

Quorum of Ordinary General Assembly: A meeting of the Ordinary General Assembly shal be valid only if attended by
Shareholders representing at least fifty-one percent (519%) of the Company’s capital. If such quorum cannot be attained at the
first meeting, a second meeting shall be held within thirty (30) days following the time set for the preceding meeting. Such
notice shall be published in the manner prescribed in Article 32) of the Company's By-Laws. The second meeting shall be
deemed valid irrespective of the number of shares represented therein.

Quorum of Extraordinary General Assembly: A meeting of the Extraordinary General Assembly shall be valid only if
attended by Shareholders representing at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the Company's capital. If such quorum cannot be
attained at the first meeting, a second meeting shall be convened in the same manner provided for in Article (34) of the
Company'’s By-Laws. The second meeting shall be valid only if attended by a number of Shareholders representing at least
one-quarter (1/4) of the Company's capital.

Voting Rights: Each shareholder shall have one vote for each share hefit represents at the Conversion General Assembly.

Votes at the meetings of Ordinary and Extraordinary General Assemblies shall be computed on the basis of one vote for
each share represented at the meeting.
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Voting Majorities: Resolutions of the Conversion General Assembly and Ordinary General Assembly shall be adopted by an
absolute majority of the shares represented thereat.

Resolutions of the Extraordinary General Assembly shall be adopted by a majority vote of two thirds of the shares
represented at the meeting. However, if the resolution to be adopted is related to increasing or reducing the capital,
extending the Company's period, dissolving the Company prior to the expiry of the period specified therefore under the
Company'’s By-Laws or merging the Company with another company or establishment, then such resolution shall be valid
only if adopted by a majority of three-quarters (3/4) of the shares represented at the meeting.

Rights of Shareholders at the Meetings of the General Assembly: Each shareholder shall have the right to discuss the
items listed in the General Assembly’s agenda and to direct questions in respect thereof to the members of the Board and
the auditors in this respect. The members of the Board or the auditors shall answer the Shareholders’ questions to the extent
that does not expose the Company’s interest to any damage. If the Shareholder deems the answer to the question
unsatisfactory, then he/it may refer the issue to the General Assembly and its decision in this regard shall be conclusive and
binding.

Proceedings of the General Assembly: The General Assembly shall be presided over by the Chairman of the Board of
Directors or, in his absence, the Director designated by him. The Chairman shall appoint a secretary for the meeting and a
canvasser. Minutes shal be written for the meeting showing the names of the Shareholders present in person or represented
by proxy, the number of the shares held by each, the number of votes attached to such shares, the resolutions adopted at
the meeting, the number of votes assenting or dissenting to such resolutions and a comprehensive summary of the
discussions that took place at the meeting. Such minutes shall be regularly recorded after each meeting in a special register to
be signed by the Chairman of the Assembly, the secretary and the canvasser.

Appointment of Auditor: The Company shall have one or more auditors to be selected from among the auditors licensed
to work in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The auditor shall be appointed annually and its compensation shall be fixed by the
General Assembly. The General Assembly may further reappoint the same auditor. The existing shareholders have appointed
Al Juraid & Company, member fim of PricewaterhouseCoopers, as the Company's first auditor for the first financial year
following conversion to a joint stock company.

Access to Records: The auditor shall have access at all times to the Company's books, records and any other documents,
and may request information and clarification as it deems necessary. It may further check the company’s assets and liabilities.

Auditor’'s Report: The auditor shall submit to the annual General Assembly a report showing how far the Company has
enabled it to obtain the information and clarifications it has requested and what it has discovered of violations of the
Companies Regulations and these By-Laws and its opinion as to whether the Company’s accounts conform to the facts.

Financial Yearr The Company’s fiscal year shall commence as on the Ist of January and expire on the 31st of December of
each Gregorian year. However, the Company's first fiscal year shall cover the period commencing as of the date of issuance
of the Ministerial Resolution announcing the conversion of the Company and expiring on the 3 |st of December of the same
year.

Annual Accounts: The Board of Directors shall prepare at the end of each fiscal year an inventory of the Company's assets
and liabilities on such date, the Company’s balance sheet and profit and loss account, a report on the Company’s activities
and its financial position for the preceding year. The report shall include the method proposed by the Board for the
distribution of net income for that financial year and shall be ready within a period not exceeding forty (40) days after the end
of the annua financial period to which they relate. The Board of Directors shall place such documents at the auditor’s
disposal at least fifty-five (55) days prior to the time set for convening the General Assembly. Such documents shall be signed
by the Chairman of the Board of Directors and a set thereof shall be available at the Company’s head office for the
Shareholders' review at least twenty-five (25) days prior to the time set for convening the General Assembly. The Chairman
of the Board of Directors shall cause the Company's balance sheet, profit and loss account, a comprehensive summary of the
Board of Directors' report and the full text of the auditor's report to be published in a newspaper circulated in the city where
the Company’s head office is located, and shall send copies of such documents to the Companies Department at the Ministry
of Commerce at least twenty-five (25) days priorto the date set for convening the General Assembly.
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Distribution of Annual Profits: After deducting all general expenses and other costs, the Company’s annual net income shall
be allocated as follows:

a) Ten percent (10%) of the annual net income shall be set aside to form a statutory reserve. Such setting aside may
be discontinued by the Ordinary General Assembly when said reserve totals one-half (1/2) of the Company's
capital.

b) There shallbe paid to the holders of preferred shares the specified percentage pertaining to such shares.

c¢) The Ordinary General Assembly may, upon request of the Board of Directors, set aside a percentage of the
annual net income to form an additional reserve to be allocated for the purpose or purposes decided by the
Ordinary General Assembly.

d) Out of the balance of the profits, if any, there shall be paid to the Shareholders an initial payment of not less than
five percent (5%) percent of the paid-up capital.

e) No more than five percent (5%) of the remaining amount shall be paid as compensation to the members of the
Board of Directors.

f)  The balance shall be distributed among the Shareholders as an additional share of the profits or transferred to
retained profits account.

The Company may distribute semi-annual and quarterly profits after it has completed the necessary procedures put in place
by the competent authorities.

Distribution of Dividends: The Company shall notify the Capital Market Authority without delay of any decisions to
distribute profits orany recommendation to do so. The profits to be distributed among the Shareholders shall be paid at such
place and times as determined by the Board of Directors, in accordance with the instructions issued by the Ministry of
Commerce and Industry.

Non-Distribution of Dividends: In the event of non-distribution of profits in any fiscal year, profits of forthcoming years shall
not be distributed before the portion specified in Part (a) of Article (8) of the Company's By-Laws is paid to the owners of
non-participatory shares for that year. If the Company fails to pay this portion of the profits for a period of three consecutive
years, the Private Assembly of these interest holders may, in accordance with Article 86 of the Companies Regulations,
resolve to either attend the General Assemblies of the Company and participate in the voting thereof, or to designate
representatives on their behalf in the Board of Directors, in accordance with their share of the Company capital. This shall
remain the case until the Company manages to fully pay the initial profits for past years specified for the owners of such
shares.

Company Losses: If the Company's losses total three-quarters (3/4) of its capital, then the members of the Board of
Directors shall call the Extraordinary General Assembly for a meeting to consider whether the Company shall continue to
exist or be dissolved prior to the expiry of the period specified therefore under Article (5) of the Company’s By-Laws. In all
cases the Assembly’s resolution shall be published in the Official Gazette.

Disputes: Each Shareholder shall have the right to file a liability action, vested in the Company, against the members of the
Board of Directors if they have committed a fault which has caused some particular damage to such Shareholder, provided
that the Company's right to file such action shall still be valid. The Shareholder shall notify the Company of his/its intention to
file such action.

Dissolution and Winding up of the Company: Upon the expiry of the Company's period, or if it is dissolved prior to the
time set for the expiry thereof, the Extraordinary General Assembly shall, based on a proposal by the Board of Directors,
decide the method of liquidation, appoint one or more liquidators and specify their powers and fees. The powers of the
Board of Directors shall cease upon the Company's expiry. However, the Board of Directors shall remain responsible for the
management of the Company until the liquidators are specified. The Company's administrative departments shall maintain
their powers to the extent that they do not interfere with the powers of the liquidators.
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Application of the Companies Regulations: The Companies Regulations shall apply to all other matters not specifically
provided forin the Company's By-Laws.

Filing and Publication of the Company’s By-Laws: These By-Laws shall be filed and published in accordance with the
Companies Regulations
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13 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS

13.1 PROJECT AGREEMENTS

Red Sea is party to project agreements with a number of oil & gas, construction, and mining companies as well as
government agencies and multilateral organizations. The cumrent material project agreements can be summarized as follows:

m  Letter of Intent with Chiyoda Technip Joint Venture dated 26 October 2005 in respect of the
manufacture, supply, delivery & installation of various buildings for RasGas onshore / onplot expansion.

m  Master Wordwide Construction Contracts with Equatorial Guinea LNG Train | S. A. dated 29 July
2004 and 21 August 2004 in respect of the manufacture, supply, delivery & installation of various
buildings for OCN Village, East Site Project — Malabo, Equatorial Guinea.

m  Various Purchase Orders with PAE Government Services in respect of the supply of manufactured
camp buildings, clinics, offices and other facilities.

m  Onshore Construction Subcontract with Bechtel Intemational Inc. dated 3 October 2003 in respect of
the performance of all work and supply of all materials, services, tools, consumables and equipment
necessary to receive, erect and commission a construction camp and an office Complex.

m  Offshore Subcontract with Overseas Bechtel, Inc. dated 10 October 2003 in respect of the
performance of all work and supply of all materials, services, tools, consumables and equipment
necessary to engineer, provide and delivera construction camp and an office complex.

m  Contract with BGP Intemational Equipment (ME) FZE dated 7 June 2005 in respect of the
manufacture, delivery, installation and commission of seismic camp buildings for Saudi S-51 Camp
Project.

m  Sales Order with Ministry of Mines and Energy E.G. in Equatorial Guinea dated 27 March 2004 in
respect of the manufacture, supply, delivery & installation of 160-person camp.

®  Various Purchase Orders with Nabors Drilling Intemational Limited in respect of the manufacture and
delivery of buildings for several camps.

m  Sales Order with Bechtel Corporation dated 8 July 2005 in respect of the manufacture, supply, delivery
& installation of various buildings for camp expansion project.

m  Letter of Intent with Nesam & Partners Contracting Co., Ltd dated 18 June 2006 in respect of the
fabrication, supply and installation of prefabricated portable units for the Saudi Aramco temporary
camp and offices fadilities in Khurais, Saudi Arabia.

The project agreements provide in most cases for fixed pricing for the duration of the relevant agreement and prices are
normally not subject to escaltion. Payment terms vary from one agreement to the other, but generally provide for progress
payments to be made to Red Sea as specific project milestones are met. In certain cases, liquidated damages are assessed
against Red Sea in case of performance or milestone delays, calculated either on a daily or percentage basis. Most of the
agreements provide that the relevant customer may terminate the agreement at any time, and in certain cases, with prior
notice.
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13.2 BANKING AGREEMENTS

Red Sea is party to a number of banking related agreements with various commercial banks in Saudi Arabia and the UAE.
Through these agreements, the banks have made various credit facilities available to Red Sea, including the provision of
overdraft fadilities, letters of credit and guarantee facilities, long and short-term loans and foreign exchange contracts with
Riyadh Bank, Saudi Hollandi Bank, and Emirates Bank. Certain bomrowings are guaranteed jointly by Sheikh Abdullah
Mohamed Ali Al-Dabbagh and certain of his sons. In most cases, however, corporate guarantees and promissory notes are
issued by Dabbagh Group Holding Company.

Short-term bank borrowings bear financing charges at market rates, which are generally based on Saudi Inter Bank Offer Rate
(SIBOR). Unused short-term bank credit facilities available to the company at March 31, 2005 were approximately SAR 138
million (2004 SAR 45 million). The following table summarizes the key aspects of these facilities:

Exhibit 13.1: Details of Banking Facilities (SAR 000s)

Riyadh Bank

Saudi Hollandi Bank

Emirates Bank

Total

Used Used Amount  Total Unused

Facility Start Date End Date Amount L/C and L/G Amount

34,500 17/3/2003  Renewal every year 5,000 1,803 27,697
Automatically

25,000 0/2/2002  Renewal every year 0 [,154 23,846
Automatically

14,600 13/4/2005 0 8015 6,585

74,100 5,000 10,972 58,128

Source: Red Sea

13.3 REAL ESTATE LEASE AGREEMENTS

Red Sea is party to a number of lease agreements in connection with its manufacturing facilities and staff accommodations.
The principal lease agreements currently in place are as follows:
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Lease Agreement with Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority dated | June 1997, as amended, pursuant to
which Red Sea leases 44,208 square meters of land in Jebel Ali, UAE on which a manufacturing plant
resides.

Lease Agreement with the Govemment of Dubai dated 8 August 2005, pursuant to which Red Sea
leases 9,982 square meters of premises in Jebel Ali, UAE.

Sublease Agreement dated 3 May 2005 pursuant to which Red Sea subleases certain leasehold
property covering approximately 18 acres in the Tema Industrial Part Free Zone in Accra, Republic of
Ghana (on which Red Sea’s manufacturing facility resides) from Intemational Land Development
Company (“ILDC") Limited for the remaining term (approximately 46 years) of the lease agreement
entered into between ILDC and Republic of Ghana Free Zones Board dated 7 November 2000.

Lease Agreement with Dubai Investments Park Development Company LLC dated 25 October 2003,
pursuant to which Red Sea leases 5,780 square meters of premises in Dubai Investments Park used as
accommodation forits employees.

Land Lease Agreement with Khonaini Intemational Company Ltd. dated 25 November 2002, as
amended, pursuant to which Red Sea leases 44,000 square meters of land in Jubail on which a
manufacturing plant resides at an annual rent of SAR 737625 for a term of five (5) years renewable
for similar term(s).



m Lease Agreement with Lootah Real Estate Development Est. dated |7 December 2005, pursuant to
which Red Sea leases approximately 1006 square meters of land located in the Dubai Investments
Park on which an employee accommodation owned by Red Sea sits.

m Tenancy Contracts with Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority dated 3 December 2003 pursuant to which
Red Sea leases accommodation forits staff.

The lease agreements are in most cases long-term in nature and contain customary provisions covering improvements,
termination and permitted assignments by Red Sea.

13.4 SUBCONTRACTOR AGREEMENTS

Red Sea has subcontracted certain of the services it provides under the project agreements described in section “Project
Agreements” above pursuant to subcontractor agreements with a number of third party services providers. The material
subcontract agreements can be summarized as follows:

m  Service Contract with Nova Engineering Works dated | June 2005 in respect of the provision of
welding, fabrication, electrical, mechanical and other related work.

m  Service Contract with Essa Al Muhain Technical Cont. dated 6 June 2005 in respect of the provision of
welding, fabrication, electrical, mechanical and other related work by suitable experienced personnel
provided by Essa Al Muhairi Technical Cont.

m  Service Contract with Al Arabia Al Emiratia Elect. Paint Cont. dated 6 June 2005 in respect of the
provision of welding, fabrication, electrical, mechanical and other related work by suitable experienced
personnel provided by Al Arabia Al Emiratia Elect. Paint Cont.

m  Service Contract with Al Hooti Technical Services LLC dated 6 June 2005 in respect of the provision
of welding, fabrication, electrical, mechanical and other related work by suitable experienced personnel
provided by Al Hooti Technical Services LLC.

m  Service Contract with BYSSM General Maintenance dated | June 2005 in respect of the provision of
various kinds of steel fabrication, mechanical, electrical and other technical services.

The subcontractor agreements are generally valid for one (1) year and renewable for further periods. The agreements may
be terminated by either party forany reason with 10 days prior written notice.

13.5 SALES REPRESENTATION AND AGENCY AGREEMENTS

Red Sea has agreements with sales representatives and agents located in in Houston (USA), Calgary (Canada), Luanda,
(Angoh), Sanaa (Yemen), Doha (Qatar), and Tripoli (Libya):

m  Sales Representation Agreement with Falcon Marketing Services LLC dated |7 August 2005 pursuant
to which Falcon Marketing Services LLC is granted the non-exclusive right to solicit orders from
purchasers of the products manufactured or supplied by Red Sea and to act upon sales inquiries and
leads introduced to Falcon Marketing Services LLC by Red Sea.

B Agency Agreement with Alhuthelly dated |13 March 2005 pursuant to which Red Sea appoints

Alhutheily as its agent in Yemen and grants it the authority to represent, market, and sell the
Company's products in Yemen.
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B Agency Agreement with Transorga AG dated 3 April 2005 pursuant to Red Sea appoints Transorga
AG as its agent in Angola and grants it the authority to represent, market, and sell the Company's
products in Angola.

m  Dealership Agreement with Alimaz for Metal Structure & Oil Field Services dated | July 2002 pursuant
to which Red Sea appoints Alimaz for Metal Structure & Oil Field Services as its exclusive dealer in
Libya and grants it the authority to market, distribute, resell and install the Company’s products in
Libya.

m  Sales Representation Agreement with George Fermandez dated | July 2003 pursuant to which Mr.
Ferandez is appointed as sales representative for the Company’s products in Canada.

B Agency Agreement with Euro Tec Projects Development Company dated | November 2005
pursuant to which Red Sea appoints Euro Tec Projects Development Company as its exclusive agent
in Qatarand grants it the authority to represent, market, and sell the Company’s products in Yemen.

The sales representation and agency agreements provide, in certain cases, for Red Sea to make payments to the relevant
counterparty on a commission basis, while in other cases the agreements provide an undertaking by Red Sea to sell the
relevant counterparty products of Red Sea in the amount ordered and accepted by Red Sea at the wholesale prices
established by Red Sea for such products.

The agreements are generally valid for one (1) year and renewable automatically unless terminated by either party for
matenrial breach, and in certain other circumstances. The agreements contain temritorial restrictions and strict confidentiality
restrictions which prohibit unauthorized disclosure of technical and non-technical information relating the Red Sea to third
parties.

13.6 INSURANCE AGREEMENTS

Red Sea maintains various insurance policies with respect to its business, properties or employees inside and outside Saudi
Arabia include public and products liability, fire, burglary, money, personal accident medical, vehicle and workmen'’s
compensation, in addition to project-specific insurance policies issued from time to time. These policies have been issued by
various insurers including Gulf Cooperation Insurance Co, Ltd EC, Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance (Middle East) Ltd. EC,
Norwich Union Insurance (Gulf) BSC, Arab Orient Insurance Company P.S.C. and Oman Insurance Company (PS.C.).
Contractors’ general liabllity policies are arranged individually for each project undertaken by Red Sea depending on the terms
of the particular project contract.

The policies are in accordance with normal prudent business practices and in full force and effect Red Sea has not received
notice of termination of such policies.

Gulf Cooperation Insurance Co. is wholly owned by Dabbagh Group, the principal shareholder in Red Sea.
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14 LITIGATION

The Directors and management of Red Sea confirm that the Company is not involved, as of the date of this Prospectus, in
any litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings that would, individually or in aggregate, have a material adverse effect
on its financial condition and results of operations.
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15 UNDERWRITING

15.1 UNDERWRITERS

Saudi Hollandi Bank

(Lead Underwriter), Banque Saudi Fransi and National Commercial Bank will be the underwriters (the

“Underwriters”) for the Offering.

15.2 SUMMARY OF UNDERWRITING ARRANGEMENT

15.2.1 SALE AND UNDERWRITING OF THE OFFER SHARES

Under the terms and subject to the conditions contained in the Underwriting Agreement between the Selling Shareholder,
the Company and the Underwriters:

)

b)

The Selling Shareholder undertakes to the Underwriters that on the Completion Date (as defined in the
Underwriting Agreement) they will sell the Offer Shares to purchasers procured by the Underwriters or
to the Underwriters themselves

The Underwriters undertake to the Company and the Selling Shareholder that they will on the
Completion Date purchase the number of Offer Shares not subscribed for, if any, at the Offer Price

15.2.2 GROUNDS FOR TERMINATION

The Lead Underwriter may terminate the Underwriting in specified circumstances prior to the admission of the Shares to the
Official List, including as follows:

a)
iii.
V.
V.
vi.
b)

If, at or prior to 10.00 am on the Completion Date or such other time as the Lead Underwriter may
determine, there has occurred:

A suspension or matenial limitation in trading in securities generally on Tadawul;

A moratorium on commercial banking activities in Riyadh declared by the relevant authorities
or a material disruption in commercial banking or securities settlement or clearance services in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia;

A change or development involving a prospective change in law, regulations or taxation
adversely affecting the Company, the Shares, the transfer of Shares or the Offering;

An outbreak or escalation of hostilities or a terrorist incident involving the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia orthe declaration by the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia of a national emergency orwarn,

Any material adverse change, disruption or other condition in the intemational or domestic
money, debt, capital or any other financial markets whether in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia or
elsewhere induding without limitation any matenal adverse change to the Tadawul All Share
Index; or

Other calamity or crisis or any change in financial, political, monarchical or economic conditions
or currency exchange rates or controls in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia or elsewhere effecting
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that may, in the sole opinion of the Underwriters, prejudice or
make it impractical or inadvisable to proceed with the Offering or delivery of the Offer Shares
as contemplated by the Prospectus, the Underwriters may, in their absolute discretion, by
notice to the Company terminate the Underwriting Agreement.

If, at or prior to 10.00 am on the Completion Date or such other time as the Lead Underwriter may
determine, an intemationally recognized rating agency has in respect of any sovereign securities relating
to the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia issued any notice:



i downgrading such securities;
i, indicating that it intends to downgrade, or is considering the possbility of downgrading, such
securnties; or
iil. indicating that it is reconsidering the rating of such securities without stating that this is with a
view to upgrading them,

that, in any such case, in the opinion of the Lead Underwriter makes the success of the Offering doubtful or which, in the
opinion of the Lead Underwriter would make it impracticable or inadvisable to proceed with the Offering, then the Lead
Underwriter will consult with the Company and the Selling Shareholder to the extent practicable, but the Lead Underwriter
may, in their absolute discretion, by notice to the Company terminate the Underwriting Agreement.

15.2.3 COMMISSION AND EXPENSES

The Selling Shareholder will pay to the Lead Underwriter (on behalf of the Underwriters) an underwriting fee based on the
gross proceeds from the Offering. Moreover, the Selling Shareholder will pay to the Lead Underwriter fees, costs and
expenses in connection with the Offering.
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16 SUBSCRIPTION TERMS AND CONDITIONS

All Subscribers must carefully read the Subsciption Terms and Conditions prior to completing the Subscription Application Form, since
the execution of the Subsaiption Application Form constitutes acceptance and agreement to the Subscription Terms and Conditions.

16.1 SUBSCRIPTION TO OFFER SHARES

The Selling Shareholder is soliciting applications from Subscribers for acquiring the Offer Shares. A signed Subscription
Application Form submitted to the Lead Manager or Receiving Banks represents a legally binding agreement between the
Selling Shareholder and the Subscriber.

The Selling Shareholder owns 81% of the issued share capital of the Company prior to the Offering. 30% of the total number
of Shares of the Company will be available to Saudi nationals under this Offering. Potentil investors may obtain both the
main and abridged Prospectus in addition to the Subscription Application Form from:

Saudi Hollandi Bank

Banque Saudi Fransi National Commercial Bank

Al Rajhi Banking and Investment Corp.

Al-Dhabab Street
P.O.Box 1467

Riyadh-1 1431

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Arab National Bank
P.O.Box 9806

Riyadh- 1423

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Saudi British Bank
P.O.Box 9084
Rivadh-11413

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

P.O.Box 56006
Riyadh-1 1554
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Bank Albilad

P.O.Box 140
Riyadh-1141 1|

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Samba Financial Group
P.O.Box 833

Riyadh-1 1421

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

P.O.Box 3555
Riyadh-21481
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Bank Aljazira

P.O.Box 6277
Riyadh-21442

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The Saudi Investment Bank
P.O.Box 3533

Riyadh-1 148

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

P.O. Box 28
Riyadh-I 1411
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Riyad Bank

P.O.Box 22622
Riyadh-I 1416

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The Lead Manager and Receiving Banks will commence receiving Subscription Application Forms at their branches
throughout Saudi Arabia from Saturday 18/7/1427H (corresponding to 12/8/2006G) up to and including Monday
27/7/1427H (Corresponding to 21/8/2006G). Once the Subscription Application Form is signed and submitted, the Lead
Manager and Receiving Banks will stamp it and provide the Subscrber a copy of the completed Subscription Application
Form. In the event the information provided in the Subscription Application Form is incomplete or inaccurate, or not
stamped by the Lead Manager and/or Receiving Banks, the Subscription Application Form will be considered void.

Each Subscriber is required to specify the number of Offer Shares applied for in the Subscription Application Form. The
amounts due from each Subscriber shall be equal to the number of Offer Shares applied for multiplied by the Offer Price of
SAR 58 per New Share. Subscriptions for less than ten (10) Offer Shares or fractional numbers will not be accepted. In
addition, each Subscriber may not apply for more than twenty five thousand (25,000) Offer Shares.

Each Subscriber is required to submit the Subscription Application Form during the Offering Period accompanied by the
original and a copy of the nationa identification card, family identification card in addition to sufficient funds in an amount
equal to the number of Offer Shares applied for multiplied by the Offer Price of SAR 58 per Share. In the event an
application is made on the behalf of a Subscrber (parents and children only), the name of the person signing on behalf of the
Subscriber should be stated in the Subscription Application Form accompanied by the original and a copy of the power of
attomey supporting such person’s authority to act on the behalf of the Subscriber. The power of attormey must be issued
before a notary for those who are in Saudi Arabia and must be legalised through the Saudi Embassy or Consulate in the
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relevant country for those who are outside Saudi Arabia. The Lead Manager and Receiving Banks will verify all copies against
the originals and will retumn the originals to the Subscriber.

One Subscription Application Form should be completed for each household (ie. family members appearing on the family
identification card) if dependent Subscribers apply for the same number of Offer Shares as the prime Subscriber. In this case:
(i) all Offer Shares allocated to the prime Subscnber and dependent Subscribers will be registered in the prime Subscribers’
name; (ii) the prime Subscriber will receive any refund in respect of amounts paid for Offer Shares applied by the prime
Subscriber and dependent Subscribers and not allocated, and (iii) the prime Subscriber will receive all dividends distributed in
respect of the Offer Shares allocated to the prime Subscriber and dependent Subscribers (in the event the Shares are not
sold or transferred). If a wife wishes to subscribe for the shares in her name / account, she must complete a separate
Application Form as a prime subscriber. In such case, applications made by the husbands on behalf of their spouses will be
cancelled and the independent application of the wives will be processed by the Receiving Bank.

Separate Subscription Application Forms must be used if: (i) the Shares that will be allocated are to be registered in a name
other than the name of the prime Subscriber; or (i) dependent Subscribers are to apply for a different quantity of Offer
Shares than the prime Subscriber; or (3) the wife wishes to subscribe in her name and wishes to add allocated shares to her
account, however, she must complete a separate Application Form as a prime subscriber (in such case, applications made by
the husband on behalf of his wife will be cancelled and the independent application of the wife will be processed by the
Receiving Bank.

Each Subscriber agrees to subscribe for and purchase that number of Offer Shares specified in the Subscription Application
Form submitted by the Subscriber for an amount equal to the number of Shares applied for multiplied by the Offer Price of
SAR 58 per Share. Each Subscriber shall have purchased the number of Offer Shares allotted to him upon: (a) delivery by the
Subscriber of the Subscription Application Form to the Lead Manager or Receiving Banks, (b) payment in full by the
Subscriber to the Lead Manager or Receiving Banks of the total value of Offer Shares subscribed for; and (c) delivery to the
Subscriber by the Lead Manager or Receiving Banks the allotment letter specifying the number of Offer Shares allotted to
him.

The Total value of the Offer Shares subscribed for must be paid in full to a branch of the Lead Manager or Receiving Banks
by authorising a debit of his/her account held with the Lead Manager or Receiving Banks where the Subscription Application
Form is being submitted. If the Subscriber is not an account holder with the Manager, he must open an account with the
Managerto submit his application.

If a submitted Subscription Application Form is not in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Offering, the
Company shall have the right to reject, in full or in part, such an application. The Subscnber shall accept any number of
Shares allocated to him orher so long as such Shares do not exceed the number of Shares applied for.

16.2 ALLOCATION AND REFUNDS
The Lead Manager and Receiving Banks shall open and operate an escrow account named as follows:

Red Sea IPO

Saudi Hollandi Bank
Al-Dhabab Street
P.O.Box 1467

Riyadh-1 1431

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Each of the Lead Manager and Receiving Banks shal deposit all amounts received by the Subscribers into the escrow account
“Saudi Hollandi Bank — Red Sea IPO".

Each Subscriber must apply fora minimum of ten (10) Offer Shares. Each Subscriber may not apply for more than twenty five

thousand (25,000) Offer Shares. Each Subscriber will be allocated a minimum of ten (10) Offer Shares with the remaining
Offer Shares being allocated on a pro-rata basis. The Company does not guarantee the minimum allocation of ten (10) Offer
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Shares in the event that the number of Subscribers exceeds nine hundred thousand (900,000). In that case, the Offer Shares
will be allocated equally between al Subscribers. If the number of Subscribers exceeds the number of Offer Shares, the
allocation will be determined at the discretion of the CMA.

The final number of Offer Shares allocated to each Subscriber, together with any refund due to the Subscriber, is expected
to be announced no later than Monday 48/14727H (Cormresponding to 28/8/2006G). The Company will make an
announcement in the national newspapers in Saudi Arabia informing the Subscribers of the above and instructing the Lead
Managerand Receiving Banks to begin the refund process.

The Lead Manager and Receiving Banks will send confirmation/notification letters, to the Subscribers informing them of the
final number of Offer Shares allocated together with the amounts, if any, to be refunded. The Lead Manager and Receiving
Banks will also refund to the Subscribers any funds in respect of which no Offer Shares have been allocated to the relevant
Subscribers, as provided in the confirmation/notification letters. Refunds will be made in full without any charge or
withholding by crediting Subscribers’ accounts at the bank. Subscribers should communicate with the branch of the Lead
Manager or Receiving Banks where they submitted their Subscription Application Form forany further information.

16.3 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

By completing and delivering the Subscription Application Form, the Subscriber:
" Accepts subscribing for the Company’s shares with the number of shares specified in the Subscription Application

Form.

Warrants that he had read the Prospectus and understood all its contents.

Accepts the By-Laws of the Company and all subscription instructions and terms mentioned in the Prospectus.

Keeps his right to sue the Company for damages caused by incorrect or incomplete information contained in the

Prospectus, or by ignoring major information that should have been part of the Prospectus and could affect the

Subscribers’ decision to invest.

Dedlares that neither himself nor any of his family members included in the Subscription Application Form has

previously subscribed to the Company’s shares and the Company has the right to reject all applications.

Accepts the number of shares allocated to him and all other subscription instructions and terms mentioned in the

Prospectus and the Subscription Application Form.

Warrants not to cancel or amend the Subscription Application Form after submitting it to the Lead Manager or

Receiving Banks.

16.4 MISCELLANEOUS

The Subscription Application Form and all related temms, conditions and covenants hereof shall be binding upon and inure to
the benefit of the parties to the subscription and their respective successors, permitted assigns, executors, administrators and
heirs; provided that, except as specifically contemplated herein, neither the Subscription Application Form nor any of the
rights, interests or obligations arising pursuant thereto shall be assigned or delegated by any of the parties to the subscription
without the prior written consent of the other party.

The Prospectus has been released in both Arabic and English Languages. In the event of a discrepancy between the English
and Arabic text, the Arabic text of the Prospectus will prevail.

16.5 THE SAUDI ARABIAN STOCK EXCHANGE (TADAWUL)

Tadawul was founded in 2001G as the successor to the Electronic Securities Information System. In 999G, full electronic
trading in Saudi Arabia equities was introduced. The market capitalisation was in excess of SAR .96 trillion as of July 6,

2006G. 81 companies are currently listed and traded on Tadawul.

Trading on Tadawul occurs through a fully integrated trading system covering the entire process from trade order through
settlement. Trading occurs each business day between 1000 am to 1200 pm. and 430 pm. to 630 p.m. After close of
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exchange trading, orders can be entered, amended or deleted until 800 p.m. From 8:00 am. (the system is not available
between 800 pm. and 8:am) new entries and inquiries can be made. For the opening phase (starting at 10:00 a.m.) the
system starts opening procedures, it establishes the opening prices and determine orders to be executed according to the
matching rules.

Transactions take place through the automatic matching of orders. Each valid order is accepted and generated according to
the price level. In general, market orders (orders placed at best price) are executed first, followed by limit orders (orders
place at a price limit), provided that if several orders are generated at the same price, they are executed according to the
time of entry.

Tadawul distributes a comprehensive range of information through varous channels, including in particular the Tadawul
website and Tadawul Information Link. The Tadawul Information Link supplies Tadawul in real time to information providers
such as Reuters.

Exchange transactions are settled on a T+0 basis, meaning that ownership transfer takes place immediately after the trade
executes.

Issuers are required to report all materal announcements via Tadawul for onward dissemination to the public.

Surveillance and monitoring is the responsibility of Tadawul as the operator of the market The aim of supervision is to
ensure fair trading and an orderly market.

16.6 TRADING ON TADAWUL

ft is expected that dealing in the Shares will commence on Tadawul upon finalzation of the allocation process. Tadawul will
announce the start date of trading once determined. Dates and times included in this Prospectus are indicative only and may
be changed or extended subject to the approval of CMA.

Furthermore, Shares can only be traded after allocated Shares have been credited to Subscribers’ accounts at Tadawul and
the Company has been registered in the Official List and its Shares listed on the Exchange. Pre-trading is strictly prohibited

and Subscribers entering into any pre-trading activities will be acting at their own risk. The Company shall have no legal
responsibility in such an event.
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The following documents will be available for inspection at Red Sea's head office in Red Sea Housing Services Company
(under conversion) P.O. Box 1531, Jubail 31952, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, between the hours of 830 am. to 5:00 pm. one

17 DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

week priorto and during the Offer Period:
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The Company's proposed Bylaws

Partners Resolution concerning the conversion of the Company into a joint stock company

Resolution of the Minister of Commerce and Industry No. 1801 dated 5/7/1427H (Corresponding to
30/72006G) authorizing the conversion of the Company into a joint stock company

CMA approval to the Offering

Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003,2004 and 2005 and eight months
ended November 30,2005

The pro-forma condensed consolidated financial statements for the eight months ended November 30,
2005G and the special purpose auditors’ report

ISO certification documents

Al Juraid & Company's written consent to the inclusion in the Prospectus of their Audit Report for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2005G as well as the eight months ended November 30, 2005G, and the
review report forthe eight months ended November 30, 2004G

Emst & Young written consent to the inclusion in the Prospectus of their Audit Report for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2003G and 2004G

Report of the Commission for Africa, March 2005

Article from the “Norwegian State Department’ website summarzing the conclusions of the Oslo
Donors' Conference on Sudan 2005

Article from “AME Info” describing the expected investment in Jubail 2 industrial city in Saudi Arabia
Article from “AME Info" describing the expected investment in Yanbu 2 industrial city in Saudi Arabia
Valuation Report prepared by the Financial Advisor

Icon Group Intermational report



